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Financial Summary

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

BEt-A=t-RALEE
Year ended 31 December

“B-5f _T-WFE —T-=Ff —T-_F "F—F
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
AR¥TRT AR%®TT AR%TRE AR%®TT AR%®TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
WA Revenue 4,908,022 5,084,012 4,724,888 4,252,081 3,790,323
SHEMR Cost of sales (3,992,520) (4,230,150) (3,988,435) (3,708,888) (3,328,699)
E Gross profit 915,502 853,862 736,453 543,193 461,624
DA Distribution costs (251,990) (211,439) (156,411) (121,635) (133,239)
THEY Administrative expenses (172,148) (143,046) (140,300) (93,815) (79,948)
Hile A Other income 52,141 19,469 23,139 9,550 10,016
Hinlezs/(F518) — B% Other gains/(losses) — net 842 (2,314) (8,556) (2,817) (103)
BERF Operating profit 544,347 516,532 454,325 334,476 258,350
A Finance income 15,090 20,931 8,871 7,655 6,274
ECSEN Finance costs (99,039) (96,635) (91,334) (67,374) (48,017)
MR~ FE Finance costs — net (83,949) (75,704) (82,463) (59,719) @1,743)
NGl Share of profit of associates 3 514 565 1,057 93
B —FIA 4 AREH  Share of profit of a joint venture 32,083 29,736 30,459 25,613 19,826
BRETEBATER Profit before income tax 492,484 471,078 402,886 301,427 236,526
FrEREY Income tax expense (126,176) (113,797) (105,501) (71,082) (62,610)
FEERA Profit for the year 366,308 357,281 297,385 230,345 173,916
Htt2mEBA Other comprehensive income
HETRBENEE ltems that may be subsequently
B&mIEE reclassified to profit or loss
— INETEERE — Currency translation differences 1,198 (1,783) (11,927) (3,112) 3,077
FEEAWAESE Total comprehensive income
for the year 367,506 355,498 285,458 227,233 176,993
EERANEER Total profit attributable to:
ARRERFEEA Equity holders of the Company 350,809 345,335 286,304 220,758 157,242
IR Non-controlling interests 15,499 11,946 11,081 9,587 16,674
366,308 357,281 297,385 230,345 173,916
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Financial Summary

B2T-A=t-BLEE
Year ended 31 December
—2-1f -—T-QNFfF —F-=f ZF-Zf ZT—F

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
ARETR ARETT AR¥ETT ARETT AR®TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEBAEBR Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
AREEEREA Equity holders of the Company 352,007 343,552 274,377 217,646 160,319
S| % Non-controlling interests 15,499 11,946 11,081 9,587 16,674
367,506 355,498 285,458 227,233 176,993
AATERBEAEL  Earnings per share for
BAHERERN profit attributable to
equity holders of the
Company
—BEARREEERAR  —Basicand diluted earnings
(AERARES per share (expressed in
5I8R) RMB cents per share) 17 17 17 15 10
RE Dividends 122,783 103,601 242,891 114,240 -
mEEEHARE CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R+=BR=+-H
As at 31 December
~¥-3f -F-MF ZF-=% ZFF ZFF%
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
ARETRE ARETT AR¥ETT ARETT AR®T:R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FRBEELSE Total non-current assets 1,659,219 1,343,851 1,024,842 963,873 922,447
REEELE Total current assets 4,623,948 4,221,023 3,854,820 2,369,781 1,908,479
BEE Total assets 6,283,167 5,564,874 4,879,662 3,333,654 2,830,926
BB EASE Total non-current liabilities 406,712 95,366 125,391 139,838 145,707
REAEEE Total current liabilities 2,976,887 2,835,582 2,347,229 2,269,830 2,026,244
BERR Total liabilities 3,383,599 2,930,948 2,472,620 2,409,668 2,171,951
BRESR Total equity 2,899,568 2,633,926 2,407,042 923,986 658,975

201543% o AnnualReport2015 05



ITRBRES

Chairman’s Statement
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Tenwow International Holdings Limited (the
“Company” or “Tenwow"), | would like to present the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2015 (the “Year”).

In 2015, the economy of the PRC and overall retail industry
continued to slow down. The growth rate of the country’s
gross domestic product (“GDP”) decelerated to 6.9%, the
slowest pace in 25 years, while the consumer price index
rose merely by 1.4%, marking a six-year low. The readings
reflected a weakening consumer market in the PRC. The
transformation of the country’s economy and the
restructuring of its retail sector cast uncertainty over all
industries and sectors and made the economic
environment more challenging. Nevertheless, the Group,
with the efforts of its whole staff and its business partners,
pressed on with its strategy for focusing on the
development of its own brands that resulted in a
consistently rising proportion of its own-brand business in
total revenue. The move yielded satisfactory results. The
Group also modified the product mix of the third-party
brands to improve its overall business.

The Group’s revenue slightly decreased by 3.5% to
RMB4,908.0 million in 2015. A breakdown shows that
revenue derived from the Group’s own-brand business rose
by 21.7% to RMB2,072.9 million, accounting for
approximately 42.2% of the total revenue. Revenue derived
from the third-party brand business was RMB2,835.1
million, accounting for approximately 57.8% of the total
revenue. Thanks to the strategic expansion of its own-brand
business, the Group quickly gained recognition among
distributors and consumers for its own-brand products.
Revenue derived from the Group’s own brand products
grew rapidly over the past few years, soaring from
RMB858.8 million in 2010 to RMB2,072.9 million in 2015,
with its proportion in total revenue increasing from 22.7% in
2010 to 42.2% in 2015. The Group expects the sales of its
own-brand products to maintain rapid growth momentum.
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The Group’s own brands remain its major growth driver.
The move to actively develop the own-brand business
resulted in varying degrees of impressive growth in the
sales of the three main categories of its own-brand
products. In 2015, the Group recorded a strong increase of
48.2% in the sales of its own-brand alcoholic beverages, a
consistently satisfactory growth rate of 28.7% in the sales of
its own-brand food and snacks and an 8.4% increase in its
own-brand non-alcoholic beverages. These results are all
the more encouraging since they were achieved amid an
overall economic downturn and a depressed retail industry.
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”) for the Year increased by 1.6% to
RMB350.8 million, and basic earnings per share were
RMB16.92 cents for the Year.

Having taken into account of the Group's performance,
earnings, financial condition and capital expenditure in
2015, the Board has decided to recommend payment of a
final dividend of HK3.41 cents per share and a special
dividend of HK1.04 cents per share in cash to the
Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2015 at the
annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM") to be held
on 18 May 2016. The proposed payment of a final dividend
of HK3.41 cents per share and a special dividend of HK1.04
cents per share, together with the paid interim dividend of
HK2.71 cents per share, will bring the total dividend for the
Year to HK7.16 cents per share. The Group’s payout ratio
for the Year increased from 30% to 35%, with the additional
5% being the proposed special dividend.

20154%% o AnnualReport2015 Q7
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In the year under review, the Group achieved balanced
development in all aspects of its business. It recorded a
satisfactory increase in revenue from the sales of its own-
brand alcoholic beverages, mainly because the sales of
wines in the second half of the Year were very good
and the sales of “V Planet” cocktail (" [VE | TEFA") met
its expectations with thanks to the large-scale marketing
campaigns launched in the fourth quarter of the Year. It has
also set up a special sales team for the “V Planet” cocktail
to step up the sales effort. The Group will combine the sales
team with its rich experience in alcoholic beverage business
and extensive channels as well as its various online and
offline marketing campaigns. This can lead to impressive
growth in the sales of “V Planet” cocktail. In its own-brand
food and snack business, Tenwow gift boxes remained
popular and were chosen by many people as gifts during
the Spring Festival due to their high quality and reasonable
prices, thus enabling the Group to maintain a satisfactory
increase in sales at that business segment. Revenue from
sales of snacks such as roasted nuts and seeds also grew
considerably despite fierce online competition. In its own-
brand non-alcoholic beverages, revenue from the sales of
“VitC VitE" juice drinks surged by 42%. The juice drinks will
be one of the featured products of the Group in 2016. The
Group also made smooth progress in the sales of new
products such as “Tribute Spring” ("&£ & ") natural mineral
water and Tenwow natural water. The Group will endeavor
to boost the sales of its bottled water series. Apart from
“VitC VitE" juice drinks, the Group will make extra effort to
develop markets for the two new products — bottled water
series and "V Planet” cocktail series. With effective
marketing endeavours and well-established channels, the
Group will scale new heights in its own-brand business.
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The Group has always been committed to the development
of its own-brand business, and most of the proceeds raised
from its initial public offering were invested in that business
and the construction of production lines. As the Tetra Pak
production lines in Shanghai, hot-fill production lines in
Chengdu and aseptic production lines in Wuhan and Putian
of Fujian were completed, the Group has basically built up
its production capacity nationwide. In the short term, the
Group's fixed-asset investments will only include
non-alcoholic beverage production lines in an industrial
park in Tianjin and production lines for food, snacks and
flavorings in an industrial park in Chengdu. The strategic
establishment of production bases across the country will
effectively reduce the Group's transportation costs and
enable it to deliver its products quickly to the markets. This
has allowed it to realize the sales model of “marketing
goods locally”. The Group will continue to identify any
opportunity for developing its own-brand business and for
enhancing its sales channels so as to consolidate its market
position.

As household income increases and urbanization
accelerates, the gap between urban and rural areas is
further narrowed and the general living standard of Chinese
citizens keeps going up. Despite the challenging market
environment, China’s per capita income in recent years
continued to rise steadily, leading to an increasingly strong
purchasing power. Chinese people are pursuing better lives,
and they want products of better quality. This shift in
consumption habits, to which the Group has adapted its
development strategy, will bring good opportunities to the
Group. Clearly positioning itself as a producer and
distributer of a variety of high-quality, healthy and
innovative products and adhering to product differentiation,
the Group is bound to secure a strong market presence.

201543% o AnnualReport2015 09
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In 2016, the Group will work hard to further develop its sales
channels throughout the country, expand the range and
mix of its own-brand products, introduce changes into its
existing products and launch products with new flavors and
new packaging to cater for the market's demands. The
Group has established a network of sales channel for non-
alcoholic beverages covering major cities across the
country. In the future, the Group will continue to enhance
the market penetration of its products in the existing
markets and expand into other second- and third-tier cities.
The Group expects to reinforce the cooperation with its
existing distributors and will seek for more excellent clients
and distributors to speed up the sales of its own-brand
products throughout the country for mutual benefits. In
addition to its effort to expand its non-alcoholic beverage
business, the Group will also set up separate sales teams in
2016 for alcoholic beverages and sales teams for food and
imported products in different regions across the country
S0 as to replicate the Group’s success in East China in other
regions and improve the network of its sales channel to
promote the Group’s own-brand products. The Group will
set up separate online sales teams to seize opportunities
brought about by the emergence of online sales channels.

The Group's development strategy in 2016 is “adjusting
product mix, building foundation, ensuring growth and
profit, and creating hit products”. The Group will continue to
improve its product portfolio, make effort to build up
various sales channels and foster markets to ensure
sustainable growth of its own-brand business. Even though
the market environment remains complex and is changing,
the Group will endeavor to expand its own-brand business
step by step with unremitting and down-to-earth efforts and
will also seek to create hit products under the Tenwow
brand so as to produce good results that it can share with
its Shareholders.
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2016 will be a key year for Tenwow. Now that Nanpu Food
(Group) Co., Ltd. ("Nanpu”) has stopped being the sole
distributor of Tenwow non-alcoholic beverages, Tenwow
sees both opportunity and challenge. We shall put more
efforts in market research and follow-up tasks to build our
own sales teams for the markets in China as fast as possible
to boost our market presence and market share. We shall
Swiftly seize any opportunity as soon as it emerges and take
appropriate actions in a timely manner with a view to
boosting the value of the Group and bolstering the market
position of Tenwow's brands in China.

2016 will mark the 20th anniversary of the Tenwow brand.
All the staff of the Group will make their best endeavors to
accomplish every task and make their contributions to
celebrate the 20th anniversary, laying a solid foundation for
the future development of the Group, creating more value
and bringing more pleasant surprises to our Shareholders
and investors.

APPRECIATION

To cope with the very challenging market environment in
China in 2015, the Group adjusted its development strategy
and quickened the development of its own brands, thereby
realizing rapid growth in the sales of its own-brand
products. The Group would not have made such
achievements without the strong support and efforts of its
staff and business partners. On behalf of the Board, | would
like to extend my sincere gratitude to our clients,
distributors, suppliers, business partners and Shareholders
for their unwavering support. | would also like to thank all
the staff for their contributions in the past year.

Lin Jianhua
Chairman
22 March 2016

20154 % o AnnualReport2015 11
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ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

In 2015, the complicated and volatile domestic and
international economic environment continued to hinder
the development of China’s overall economy. According to
statistics released by the National Bureau of Statistics of the
PRC, the country’'s GDP in 2015 grew by 6.9%, at its slowest
pace in 25 years. Meanwhile, China’s consumer price index
in 2015 rose by merely 1.4%, which demonstrated a
weakened retail market. In addition, China’s food and
beverage market was affected by various factors during the
year. Non-alcoholic beverage market was impacted by
abnormal weather, while demand for high-end alcoholic
beverages, especially imported wines, remained weak
under the PRC government’'s ongoing anti-corruption
campaign.

The Group is a leading producer and distributor of mid-
range and high-end packaged foods and beverages in
China. The Group emphasizes product quality and is able to
develop a variety of unigue products to satisfy consumers’
demand for high-quality products and capture opportunities
arising from the product upgrading in China.

REVIEW OF 2015

In 2015, the Group seized the opportunity to accelerate its
business structural adjustment amidst an overall sluggish
consumer environment by pooling resources to develop its
own brand products business. As a result, revenue
generated by the Group’s own brand products increased
significantly, partly offsetting the decline in revenue from
third-party brand products. The Group's total revenue
slightly decreased by 3.5% to RMB4,908.0 million, while
gross profit increased by 7.2% to RMB915.5 million. Both
revenue contribution and profit margin of own brand
products were improved, pushing the Group's overall gross
profit margin up by 1.9 percentage points to 18.7%.
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The Group focused on developing its own brand products
through continuously expanding and optimizing sales
channels, and launched competitive new products to
increase revenue contribution of its own brand products. In
2015, the Group’s own brand business maintained
satisfactory growth, with revenue increased by 21.7% to
RMB2,072.9 million. In particular, revenue derived from own
brand alcoholic beverages increased by 48.2% to RMB370.4
million; revenue from own brand food and snacks increased
by 28.7% to RMB933.2 million; and revenue from own brand
non-alcoholic beverages increased by 8.4% to RMB728.2
million.

Revenue contribution from own brand products increased
from 33.5% to 42.2%, while revenue contribution from third-
party brand products decreased from 66.5% to 57.8%.
Moreover, since own brand products have higher gross
profit margins than third-party brand products, gross profit
contribution from own brand products increased from
57.2% t0 66.5%, while that from third-party brand products
decreased from 42.8% t0 33.5%.

Net profit attributable to Shareholders increased by 1.6% to
RMB350.8 million. Earnings per share were RMB16.92 cents.

REVENUE

The Group produces and distributes a wide range of own
brand products and many well-known international and
domestic third-party brands of food and snacks, non-
alcoholic beverages, alcoholic beverages and other fast
moving consumer goods in the PRC. The Group’s own
brand products and third-party brand products are mutually
complementary.

In 2015, the Group recorded revenue of RMB4,908.0 million.
Its own brand business maintained a relatively fast growth,
with revenue increased by 21.7% to RMB2,072.9 million and
revenue contribution increased from 33.5% to 42.2%. Due
to structural adjustment, revenue from third-party brand
products declined by 16.1% to RMB2,835.1 million, with
revenue contribution dropped from 66.5% to 57.8%.

201543% o AnnualReport2015 13
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The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue contribution
by product segments and main product categories for the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014:

BE+T-HA=+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-HF

—ZT—puF
2014
ARET T
RMB'000

2015

000

BEREER own brand products

JER AR Non-alcoholic beverages 728,205 14.8% 671,774 13.2%

B RS RRE Alcoholic beverages 370,432 7.6% 249,866 4.9%

BERAER Food and snacks 933,160 19.0% 724,861 14.3%

Hfth Others 41,126 0.8% 56,509 1.1%
2,072,923 42.2% 1,703,010 33.5%

E£=HREESR  Third-party brand

products

Eliy 1 Non-alcoholic beverages 47,909 1.0% 58,044 1.1%

B R Alcoholic beverages 1,962,807 40.0% 2,464,681 48.5%

BEmEER Food and snacks 678,357 13.8% 716,660 14.1%

Hp@ Others® 146,026 3.0% 141,617 2.8%
2,835,099 57.8% 3,381,002 66.5%

st Total 4,908,022 100% 5,084,012 100%

Bt Notes:

HAREBEIE )] PR BB EREE -

2 HbhxZaiERtAM -
14 KIEEPRIZAAIRAT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

(1) Primarily includes “Chuan Xiang” Chinese seasonings and packaging

materials.

2) Primarily includes household care products.
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GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN
In 2015, the Group’s gross profit increased by 7.2% to
RMB915.5 million. Overall gross profit margin further
improved by 1.9 percentage points to 18.7%. This was
primarily due to the Group's focus on the development and
expansion of own brand products which have higher profit
margins than third-party brand products. The Group
optimized its product portfolio by trimming third-party
brands with low profit margins or unsatisfactory
performance to consolidate resources to expand its own
brand business.

The table below sets forth the Group’s gross profit,
contribution and margin by product segments and main
product categories for the years ended 31 December 2015
and 31 December 2014:

HE+T-A=1+-HILEE
Year ended 31 December
“B-F
2015 2014
E7
ikt EFIE Gross fhLk
Margin profit  Contribution
AR®FT
RMB'000 %

EH%
Margin

% %

BEREER  Own brand products
IEER R Non-alcoholic beverages 221,804 24.2% 30.5% 183,030 21.4% 27.2%
SEREEE Alcoholic beverages 103,835 11.3% 28.0% 86,380 10.1% 34.6%
EmKkER Food and snacks 271,790 29.7% 29.1% 206,210 24.2% 28.4%
Hh Others 12,045 1.3% 29.3% 13,182 1.5% 23.3%
609,474 66.5% 29.4% 438,802 57.2% 28.7%
E=HRMES Third-party brand products
SEEERR Non-alcoholic beverages 5,408 0.6% 11.3% 2,807 0.3% 4.8%
BAE R Alcoholic beverages 240,848 26.3% 12.3% 307,206 36.0% 12.5%
BEmMRER Food and snacks 51,049 5.6% 7.5% 46,850 5.5% 6.5%
Hh Others 8,723 1.0% 6.0% 8,197 1.0% 5.8%
306,028 33.5% 10.8% 365,060 42.8% 10.8%
st Total 915,502 100% 18.7% 853,862 100% 16.8%

201543% o AnnualReport2015 15
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OWN BRAND PRODUCTS BUSINESS

The Group's revenue derived from own brand products
increased by 21.7% from RMB1,703.0 million in 2014 to
RMB2,072.9 million in 2015, mainly attributable to the
Group's endeavors and achievement in developing its own
brand business. All major product lines under the Group’s
own brands recorded various extents of growth in terms of
revenue. The costs of sales of the Group’s own brand
products increased by 20.5% from RMB1,214.2 million in
2014 to RMB1,463.4 million in 2015. Gross profit of the
Group's own brand products increased by 24.7% from
RMB488.8 million in 2014 to RMB609.5 million in 2015, with
gross profit margin improved by 0.7 percentage point from
28.7% in 2014 to 29.4% in 2015. This increase was mainly
attributable to improvement in the gross profit margins of
food and snacks and non-alcoholic beverages. In 2015, own
brand products contributed 66.5% of the overall gross profit
of the Group (2014: 57.2%).

Food and snhacks

The Group’s own brand food and snacks mainly
include products (such as roasted nuts and seeds, gift
boxes, preserved fruits and meat snacks) sold under
the Group’s flagship “Tenwow” brand and its sub-
brands (such as “Tenwow Ideas” (" XIEEE "), “Nuts’
Manor” ("8 R & "), and “lingcao Family” (" #5 1)t
2 ")) and products sold under other own brands (such
as the oatmeal series sold under “Morning Smile” (" %
55" brand).

Revenue generated by the Group’s own brand food
and snacks increased by 28.7% from RMB724.9 million
in 2014 to RMB933.2 million in 2015, mainly
attributable to a satisfactory increase in revenue from
gift boxes, roasted nuts and seeds, preserved fruits,
meat snacks and “Morning Smile” oatmeal series.
Gross profit of own brand food and shacks increased
by 31.8% from RMB206.2 million in 2014 to RMB271.8
million in 2015. Gross profit margin rose by 0.7
percentage point from 28.4% in 2014 to0 29.1% in 2015,
mainly attributable to the increase of the Group’s
overall sales that led to a dilution of fixed costs and a
decrease in the average unit cost of sales, the decline
in prices of certain raw materials, as well as the
launch of new products with relatively higher gross
profit margins during the year.
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Gift boxes are one of the Group's flagship products
over the years. Reasonably priced, attractively
packaged and coming in wide varieties, the Group's
gift boxes are very popular among consumers. In
2015, a longer sales period prior to the Chinese New
Year and a rebound in the number of group purchases
resulted in a satisfactory growth in sales of the gift
boxes.

For roasted nuts and seeds, the Group insists on
using fresh ingredients to ensure product quality, a
practice which has long been recognized and favored
by consumers. In view of the strong demand for
roasted nuts and seeds in the online market, the
Group recruited staff with extensive industry
experience, dedicating to the development of online
business. This will enable the Group to capture the
rapidly growing online market.
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The Group's preserved fruits come in a variety of
choices and tastes. In the second half of 2015, the
Group launched a new category of fresh and healthy
products — mildly-marinated and naturally-dried fruits
under the brand of “Colorful Orchard” ("% 2 RE "),
which has received positive response in the market.
With respect to preserved meat products, preserved
pork is a star product among the Group’s snacks,
which is produced with quality ingredients selected for
the best taste and quality. Preserved pork products
maintained a good sales growth in 2015.

Alcoholic beverages

The Group's own brand alcoholic beverages, primarily
targeting the mass market in China, include imported
bottled wines and cognac brandy from lItaly, France
and Chile marketed under the Group’s own brands, as
well as Chinese rice wines and "V Planet” cocktail ("[ V
B IERA").

T s eRTisK

ICE TO MEET
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Revenue generated by the Group’s own brand alcoholic
beverages surged by 48.2% from RMB249.9 million in
2014 to RMB370.4 million in 2015, mainly attributable to
robust sales of imported wines under the Group'’s
increased marketing efforts. The Group launched
marketing campaigns in the fourth quarter of 2015 for “vV
Planet” cocktail, which has contributed to the revenue of
Group's own brand alcoholic beverages and is expected
to fuel the growth of the Group. In addition, the Group
saw considerable increases in the sales of the “Reviseur”
("fEE3") cognac newly introduced from France, and the
Chinese rice wines brewed in-house.

Gross profit of the Group’s own brand alcoholic
beverages increased by 20.2% from RMB86.4 million
in 2014 to RMB103.8 million in 2015, with a gross
profit margin of 28.0% (2014: 34.6%). The decline in
gross profit margin as compared with 2014 was
mainly attributable to an increase in promotional
activities and gifts for own brand wines, as well as the
stock clearance of a discontinued brand. The
management believes an appropriate number of
promotional activities and gifts will have a positive
effect on the Group’s overall business.
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Non-alcoholic beverages

The Group’s own brand non-alcoholic beverages
mainly comprise ready-to-drink beverages such as
"VitC VItE" series, “Fruit Tea” series, “Charcoal
Roasted” series, “Pure Tea” series and bottled water
series.

Despite affected by unstable weather conditions and
the supply shortage of the “Charcoal Roasted” series,
revenue generated by the Group’s own brand non-
alcoholic beverages increased by 8.4% from RMB671.8
million in 2014 to RMB728.2 million in 2015. The
Group's “VitC VitE" juice drinks series remained very
popular and recorded a big increase of 42% in sales.
However, overall sales of the non-alcoholic beverages
were impacted by the abnormal weather, with a slight
decrease in sales of the “Fruit Tea” series. The
“Charcoal Roasted” series had undergone product
upgrades and change of original equipment
manufacturers in the first half of 2015, resulting in
shortage of the products. This affected the overall
performance of the “Charcoal Roasted” series. It takes
efforts to get the products into sales channels again
after the interruption and the Group’s sales team has
been striving to renew the sales channels of the
“Charcoal Roasted” series. With respect to new
products, the sales of both the “Tribute Spring”
natural mineral water and “Tenwow Natural Water”
series were in line with the management’s
expectations.

Gross profit of the Group’s own brand non-alcoholic
beverages increased by 21.2% from RMB183.0 million
in 2014 to RMB221.8 million in 2015, while its gross
profit margin increased by 3.3 percentage points from
27.2% in 2014 to 30.5% in 2015. The increase in gross
profit margin was mainly due to the fact that the
decline in prices of certain raw materials.
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The “VitC VitE" juice drinks are the fastest growing
products of the Group. With a tagline of “Beauty
Always Be With You”, the “VitC VitE" series
emphasizes on health, vogue and beauty, and is
highly popular among younger female consumers. In
2016, the Group will upgrade the packaging of the
“VitC VitE” series to improve the visual perception of
the products. The passion fruit-flavored “VitC VitE”
juice drinks have been launched onto the market,
giving one more healthy choice to consumers. The
Group will consolidate its resources to promote the
“VitC VItE" series and attempt to make itself a leading
player in the mixed juice market in China. In 2016, the
Group will launch more offline large promotional
campaigns at campuses across China, and have more
transit advertisements in major cities and effective
terminal promotions, in addition to signing up as title
sponsors for popular TV programs aired on major
satellite TV channels.

For “Fruit Tea” series, there will be a major upgrade
for its packaging in 2016. The bottle will adopt a
streamlined shape to improve visual perception. Four
major flavors, namely, Honey Citron Tea, Honey Pear
Tea, Honey Cranberry Tea, and Honey Calamansi, will
be retained. Ms. Fan Bingbing, a Chinese famous
celebrity, will also return to endorse the “Fruit Tea”
series. During the year, promotion and tasting events
will be held at major stores, business circles, tourist
spots, and other venues for the “Fruit Tea” series.
Furthermore, the Group will also invest in transit
advertisements, title sponsorship activities and
programs.

For the “Charcoal Roasted” series, the Group's aseptic
production lines in Wuhan and Putian were put into
operation in the second half of 2015, enabling it to
manufacture the “Charcoal Roasted” series in-house,
thereby ensuring a stable supply. The “Charcoal
Roasted” series includes milk tea and coffee series,
though no large-scale marketing campaign has been
launched for the coffee series so far.
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“Tribute Spring” natural mineral water is the flagship
product of the Group's water series, and its
production base, being a quality mineral water
source, is located at Huzhou City, at the west of Lake
Taihu of Zhejiang Province, which is famous for its
water quality and a renowned scenic spot believed to
be the location where Lu Yu, the Sage of Tea, wrote
The Classic of Tea. "Tenwow Natural Water”, which
was launched alongside with “Tribute Spring”, also
received positive market responses. The Group has
the advantages in terms of sales channels, and is
currently actively exploring special sales channels
such as bars, karaokes, as well as lounges and shops
in airports and railway stations.

For the new products in 2016, the Group will launch
fresh and healthy “Pure & Coco” ("3 7] A]") coconut
water and high-end “Banuo” (“E27&") coffee series. “Tenwow
Idea”, an innovatively packaged beverages series is also
scheduled to launch. The Group constantly introduces
new products, and will only launch large-scale
promotional activities if market responded positively,
to ensure the advertising expenses for the new
products will result in intended effects.

Others

Other own brand products include “Chuan Xiang” (*)1]
") brand sauces and flavorings as well as packaging
materials.

In 2015, revenue generated by the Group's other
product categories under its own brands was
RMB41.1 million, bringing a gross profit of RMB12.0
million with an increased gross profit margin of 29.3%.
Both sales and gross profit margin of “Chuan Xiang”
sauces and flavorings were improved.
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THIRD-PARTY BRAND PRODUCTS BUSINESS
During 2015, the Group continued the adjustments and
optimization of its products mix. Revenue derived from
third-party brand products therefore decreased by 16.1%
from RMB3,381.0 million in 2014 to RMB2,835.1 million in
2015. Costs of sales of third-party brand products mainly
comprised the purchase costs from brand owners, and
costs of sales therefore reduced by 16.1% from RMB3,015.9
million in 2014 to RMB2,529.1 million in 2015. Gross profit of
third-party brand products decreased by 16.2% from
RMB365.1 million in 2014 to RMB306.0 million in 2015, and
gross profit margin remained the same as that of the
previous year at 10.8%.

— Alcoholic beverages
The third-party brand alcoholic beverage products
include spirits, wine, Chinese wine and beer. The
Group acts as a distributor for a wide range of
international and domestic brands, including Martell,
Hennessy, Remy Martin, Carlo Rossi, Imperial Court,
Maotai and others.

Given the market conditions in 2015, the Group
continued adjustments and optimization of third-party
brand portfolio by reducing sales of spirits. As a result,
revenue derived from third-party brand alcoholic
beverages decreased by 20.4% from RMB2,464.7
million in 2014 to RMB1,962.8 million in 2015. Gross
profit margin slightly decreased by 0.2 percentage
point from 12.5% in 2014 to 12.3% in 2015, while gross
profit of third-party brand alcoholic beverages
decreased by 21.6% from RMB307.2 million in 2014 to
RMB240.8 million in 2015.
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Food and snacks

The third-party brand food and snacks include,
amongst others, Nestle, Dove, Wrigley, Glico and
Kraft.

Revenue derived from third-party brand food and
snacks decreased by 5.3% from RMB716.7 million in
2014 to RMB678.4 million in 2015. Gross profit margin
increased by 1.0 percentage point from 6.5% in 2014
to 7.5% in 2015, while gross profit increased by 8.7%
from RMB46.9 million in 2014 to RMB51.0 million in
2015. Decreased revenue, despite an increase in
gross profit, was mainly because the Group trimmed
the sales channels and products of a particular brand
due to their relatively lower margins.

Non-alcoholic beverages

The third-party brand non-alcoholic beverages, which
account for a relatively small proportion of the
Group's business, include, amongst others, Saratoga
spring water and Red Bull energy drinks.

During 2015, revenue derived from third-party non-
alcoholic beverages amounted to RMB47.9 million.
Gross profit was RMB5.4 million, and gross profit
margin was 11.3%. Despite increasing gross profit and
gross profit margin, third-party non-alcoholic
beverages did not bring about any significant changes
to the overall business as it's a non-core operation.

Others
Other third-party brand category mainly includes
Unilever household care products, etc.

Revenue derived from others under third-party brands
slightly increased by 3.1% from RMB141.6 million in
2014 to RMB146.0 million in 2015. Gross profit of third-
party brand products slightly increased by 6.4% from
RMB8.2 million in 2014 to RMB8.7 million in 2015, and
gross profit margin grew by 0.2 percentage point from
5.8% in 2014 t0 6.0% in 2015.
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WARES D REVENUE BY RETAIL CHANNELS
AEBFAEHE(BRENELEHEERE) MDIHEE The Group distributed its products through direct sales
(BEMERE=ZFHHEM) »HABERERRE=F which include four main sales channels, and distributors
mhhEEE oh © which comprise Nanpu and third-party distributors.

TREIWAEFBNHEEZE-_ZE—HAFL_T—NOF The table below sets forth the Group's revenue contribution
T A=+ HIEFERTERESDHNUATR by retail channels for the years ended 31 December 2015
and 31 December 2014:

BEt+t-HA=1T—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-—TF —T—HF
2015 2014
AR¥T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000
HEHRE Direct channels
BNgRRE ™ On-premise channels™ 599,839 12.2% 778,000 15.3%
MREHF Modern retail channels? 825,793 16.8% 772,324 15.2%
mEREe Small business channels® 504,685 10.3% 582,234 11.5%
HihZRigw Other channels® 197,592 4.0% 104,267 2.0%
et Sub-total 2,127,909 43.3% 2,236,825 44.0%
Bak k5] Distributors
A Nanpu® 1,441,106 29.4% 1,378,799 27.1%
E=FDHEE Third-party distributors 1,339,007 27.3% 1,468,388 28.9%
et Sub-total 2,780,113 56.7% 2,847,187 56.0%
et Total 4,908,022 100.0% 5,084,012 100.0%
BREE - Notes:
(1) PRERARMNERREHRERMNEHER AL RIKHE RIRE Q) Includes chain restaurants, hotels, and leisure and entertainment
ST locations.
) BIREEARES - EHEET RERE - 2 Includes chain hypermarkets, chain supermarkets and chain
convenience stores.
€) PREBEPLREETER - (©) Includes wholesale centers and various retail stores.
(@) FERBREREE - (4) Primarily includes group purchase and online sales.
(5) FRREBEA - (5) Nanpu and its associates.
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BABEE D
TR AEARBE-_T—AFR-FT—NF
T AE+—BLEFEREESRS ORA SR

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHIC LOCATIONS

The table below sets forth the Group's revenue contribution
by sales in different geographic locations for the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014:

BE+=-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E—REF —ZE—O4F
2015 2014
AR®T T AREEFIT
RMB'000 RMB’000
EEHE Eastern China 2,709,559 55.2% 2,739,669 53.9%
#=rh @ Central China 1,430,170 29.1% 1,482,712 29.2%
EEHE Southern China 504,771 10.3% 541,573 10.7%
A @ Northern China 120,718 2.5% 153,856 2.9%
EFHE Western China 142,804 2.9% 166,202 3.3%
4 Total 4,908,022 100.0% 5,084,012 100.0%
78R DISTRIBUTION COSTS

DA EERFERSHEEBBRENESE KHEERM
X IEREN ZRKEHES - REENDHK
AHAZE—NFMHARE21M4BE T EA192%E
ZE-RAFMARE2520BETT - DA AEHA
WABE51%(—T—DU4F  42%) DERANLEAETE
EHRESREEBRIGM B BEEAEEE
EREE RN ERBEROE LM A -

THREX
THERAYTFZRFEEEBEITBRABMNIEREH
URERRITHRAROYE - REREEE BN
ERX AEENTBRAIHE-_ZT-—NFHARK
M30EET EF203%E_E—HFHARKE 1721
BEL THAXEAEERRALERIS%(ZF
—POF 1 2.8%) - TTHRAYX FAFEZRANEEEE
FAUBTEREMNIEN - RITERASIEMATE -
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Distribution costs primarily include advertising and
promotion expenses, wages and benefits and travel and
transportation expenses associated with distribution
activities. The Group's distribution costs increased by 19.2%
from RMB211.4 million in 2014 to RMB252.0 million in 2015.
Distribution costs accounted for 5.1% of the Group’s
revenue (2014: 4.2%). The increase in distribution costs was
primarily due to increases in advertising and promotion
expenses. Moreover, transportation expenses increased
due to an expanding sales network.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses consist primarily of wages and
benefits for management and administrative staff, and
depreciation expenses associated with property, facilities
and equipment for administrative purposes. The Group’s
administrative expenses in 2015 increased by 20.3% from
RMB143.0 million in 2014 to RMB172.1 million in 2015.
Administrative expenses accounted for 3.5% of the Group's
revenue (2014: 2.8%). Increase in administrative expenses
was primarily due to an increase in wages and benefits as a
result of growing number of employees, and increases in
depreciation expenses.
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FINANCE COSTS

The Group’s financial costs primarily include bank loan
interests and handling charges less finance income. Net
finance costs increased from RMB75.7 million in 2014 to
RMB83.9 million in 2015. This was primarily attributable to
the increase in finance expenses due to increase in the
amount of borrowings to fulfill the working capital needs of
the Group, and the decrease in finance income.

OTHER INCOME

The Group’s other income amounted to RMB52.1 million in
2015 (2014: RMB19.5 million). Other income consists
primarily of government grants and rental income.

SHARE OF PROFIT OF A JOINT VENTURE

The Group's share of profit of Nanpu increased by 7.9%
from RMB29.7 million in 2014 to RMB32.1 million in 2015.
Nanpu’s improving profit was mainly attributable to selling
more higher-margin products.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
increased by 1.6% from RMB345.3 million in 2014 to
RMB350.8 million in 2015. Earnings per share amounted to
RMB16.92 cents (2014: RMB16.65 cents per share).

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group’s funds and capital required for operations are
primarily sourced from internal resources and loans
provided by the Group's principal banks.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had bank deposits and
cash in the amount of RMB813.1 million (2014: RMB1,161.4
million). Renminbi accounted for 98.8% of the Group's cash.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total borrowings in
the amount of RMB1,850.5 million (2014: RMB1,570.1
million). Over 80.6% of these borrowings were for terms of
less than 1 year. The majority of the Group’s borrowings
were in Renminbi and Hong Kong Dollar, with Renminbi
accounted for 87.0%. The Group's borrowings were either
obtained at fixed interest rates or variable interest rates.
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The net borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2015
(total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash) was RMB1,037.4 million (2014: RMB408.7
million).

The Group's gearing ratio as at 31 December 2015 was 26.4%
(2014: 13.4%). The Group has sufficient cash and bank lines
of credit that can meet future operation needs. Management
is also prepared to make careful arrangements and decisions
based on changes in domestic and international financial
environments.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 17
September 2013 with net proceeds from the global offering
of approximately HK$1,714.2 million (after deducting
underwriting commissions and related expenses).
According to the intended usage as set out in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 5 September 2013 (the
"Prospectus”), the amount utilized as at 31 December
2015 was as follows:

FERBE(EEBT)
Net Proceeds (HK$ million)

EEA
Utilised

B A
Unutilised

[Zpal
Percentage

A& A
Available

RBRBAEFEEREN Expansion of production capacity
A B2 at the existing facilities and
$EERE construction of new production facilities 45% 7714 535.8 235.6
EERERRE Strengthening and expanding
D HBE K existing distribution network and
EEHE expanding into new regions 25% 428.6 428.6 0
e - MEEWR Research and development,
REREFE such as purchasing research
BRMIAEAR equipment and hiring qualified
research and development personnel 4% 68.6 21.0 47.6
BHERIEETEE Marketing and promotion activities 10% 1714 1714 0
RERTERNERE Refinance existing bank loans 6% 102.8 102.8 0
EEESREM Working capital and other
—MREERE general corporate purposes 10% 1714 1714 0
100.0% 1,714.2 1,431.0 283.2
30 RIBEBIFR IR AR AR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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RAREE SR TS RIBAERERERRET The Company has no intention to use the remaining

BB AR - proceeds contrary to the description as stated in the
Prospectus.

BEXEXRERAHE CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

ZE-RF AEENEAAIREEAARE In 2015, the Group had capital expenditures and

I775EET(ZE—MEF : AR¥3M36BET) ° * investments of RMB377.5 million (2014: RMB343.6 million).

BEME e RE - BH REBRKESTERMNNE This primarily included the expenditures for construction,
s RERTEY - HE-_E—RAE+—-A equipment and land expenses in Shanghai, Wuhan, Putian,
=t—B AEEHEEE ZERTHOABRNER Chengdu and Tianjin production bases. The Group's capital
EHERBAREIOIFETL(ZZ—HF: ARK commitments relating to land and equipment was

3747BET) ° RMB189.4 million as at 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB374.7
million).
FEMKLE=E KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
TREEBEEE—RAFER T —WF+_A=+— The following table sets forth the Group's key financial
AEFEASBENEZEZHBLE ratios for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31
December 2014:
BEZ+=-HA=+—H
Year ended 31 December
—F-1F —T-IF
2015 2014
FEF = Gross profit margin 18.7% 16.8%
LR HE Operating profit margin 11.1% 10.2%
RAEERRSE AEGREEX Margin of profit attributable to the
equity holders of the Company 7.1% 6.8%
Rt+t=—BA=+—8
As at 31 December
—E—-hfF —E—OF
2015 2014
mEpL =& Current ratio 1.55 1.49
REpLL = Quick ratio 1.27 1.24
BEARAELE Gearing ratio 26.4% 13.4%
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INVENTORY, TRADE RECEIVABLE AND
TRADE PAYABLE

Inventory

The Group’s inventory primarily includes finished products,
followed by raw materials and packaging materials, as well
as work-in-process products.

Inventory increased from RMB707.9 million as at 31
December 2014 to RMB847.7 million as at 31 December
2015, while inventory turnover days increased from 62 days
in 2014 to 70 days in 2015. The increases in both inventory
and inventory turnover days were mainly attributable to re-
stocking in late 2015 in light of huge demand for Chinese
New Year products in 2016. On the other hand, as the
Group underwent structural adjustment by selling fewer
third-party alcoholic beverage products, slightly affecting
the stock movement. Management will carefully monitor
the inventory of third-party alcoholic beverage products and
flexibly adjust the procurement strategy.

Trade Receivable
The Group's trade receivable refers to the Group’s accounts
receivable balance from its customers.

Trade receivable increased from RMB1,977.0 million as at
31 December 2014 to RMB2,235.3 million as at 31 December
2015. Trade receivable turnover days increased from 127
days in 2014 to 154 days in 2015. The increases in both
trade receivable and trade receivable turnover days were
primarily attributable to increasing trade receivable as a
result of higher demand in 2016 Chinese New Year leading
to the stocking of products by certain customers at the end
of 2015. In addition, for modern retail channels, which
accounted for a large portion of revenue, saw certain high-
quality customers delayed payments due to challenging
retailing environment. Furthermore, as the Group adjusted
its product portfolio of alcoholic beverages by reducing the
sales of high-end alcoholic beverages with higher selling
prices and shorter turnover days, the average turnover days
of trade receivables were affected to a certain extent.
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The Group made proactive efforts in monitoring the credit
terms of its distributors and customers and follow up with
the regular review of the progress of the collection of
receivables. The Group is gradually optimizing the sales
channel mix in light of current market conditions to improve
the turnover days of trade receivables. As at 11 March
2016, the Group has received RMB1,193.9 million,
representing 53.3% of the trade receivable as of 31
December 2015.

Trade Payable

The Group’s trade payable primarily includes payment due
to suppliers of third-party brand products, raw materials
and outsourced products.

Trade payable increased from RMB976.8 million as at 31
December 2014 to RMB1,056.4 million as at 31 December
2015. Trade payable turnover days increased from 77 days
in 2014 to 92 days in 2015.

The increases in trade payable and trade payable turnover
days were primarily due to better payment terms the Group
successfully obtained from certain suppliers in response to
market conditions, ensuring greater flexibility in cash flow
management.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The majority of the Group's transactions are settled in
Renminbi, which is not a free-floating currency. The
fluctuation of Renminbi during the year did not affect the
Group's performance. The Group will periodically review its
foreign currency risks.

As the Group is exposed to minimal exchange rate
fluctuation risks, the Group has not undertaken any hedging
policy. However, the Group will closely monitor and control
its foreign currency risks and consider hedging where
appropriate.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group was still in
the process of renewing certificates for certain land use
rights with net book value amounting to RMB1.1 million and
RMB1.2 million, respectively. The Group might incur certain
obligations in connection with such application of land use
rights certificates. Since the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability, no provision
was made in the consolidated financial statements.

ASSET PLEDGE

As at 31 December 2015, buildings, machinery and
equipment and land use rights with net book value of
RMB393.7 million, RMB102.2 million and RMB23.8 million,
respectively (2014: RMB268.5 million, RMBO million and
RMB24.4 million, respectively) were pledged for borrowings.
No trade and bills receivables were pledged for borrowings
(2014: RMB95.7 million).

HUMAN RESOURCES AND STAFF
REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 3,277
employees in the PRC and Hong Kong (31 December 2014:
3,001 employees). The Group’s employees are remunerated
with reference to their position, performance, experience
and prevailing salary trends in the market. The Group
provides professional management training to employees,
and offers incentives and share options pursuant to the
Company’s share option scheme based on employee
performance and the Group's profits.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the total employee
benefit expenses (including Directors’ remuneration) were
RMB215.4 million (2014: RMB195.1 million).
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Nationwide Distribution Rights of Own Brand
Non-alcoholic Beverages

As established channels throughout China continued to
improve and Nanpu's nationwide distribution rights of own
brand non-alcoholic beverages expired, the Group
recovered the nationwide distribution rights for non-
alcoholic beverages from Nanpu as at 1 January 2016.
Nanpu is one of the distributors only in eastern China for
the modern retail channel, in particular. Apart from that
specific channel, the Group carried out the nationwide
distribution by itself. The management believes that such
change would have no material effect on the own brand
non-alcoholic beverage business of the Group. This move
helped the Group to define each of the Group’s businesses
more clearly, eliminate unnecessary inter-group
transactions, and improve corporate governance.
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Latest Update on the MOU with Shanghai
Tangjiu

The Group signed a memorandum of understanding
(“MOU") with Shanghai Tangjiu (Group) Co. Ltd. (“Shanghai
Tangjiu") in April 2015 to explore different possibilities of
mutually beneficial cooperation. In addition to the 49%
equity interest in Nanpu, Shanghai Tangjiu intends to
acquire certain equity interest in Nanpu from the Group in
order to be the controlling shareholder of Nanpu, while
exploring possibilities of deepening cooperation with the
Group. Negotiation is still underway, and the Company will
publish further announcement(s) of the latest development
as and when appropriate.

PROSPECTS

2016 will be a year full of challenges and opportunities.
Despite uncertainties, the PRC government continues to
forge ahead, deepening reform and upgrading its industries.
It is expected that the PRC government will use a variety of
timely and flexible monetary policies to regulate the
economy, ensuring steady progress in the overall economic
development at the new equilibrium. With low
unemployment, the minimum wage adjusting upwards and
rising household income, consumption will continue to
increase, driving forward the development of the overall
consumer market.
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FUTURE STRATEGIES

In order to grasp the opportunities in PRC's market for
packaged food, wine and beverage, the Group will continue
to leverage its own competitive advantages to accelerate
the development of the businesses under its own brands in
various regions across the country with determination and
unswerving efforts. The details of the development strategy
are set out as follows:

1. Continue to Enhance and Expand Business
of Own Brand Products
The Group has always focused on the development of
its own brand products. It will continue to enrich the
portfolio of its own brand products while further
solidifying the market position of existing product
offerings. For non-alcoholic beverages, the Group will
mainly expand the businesses of the “VitC VitE", “Fruit
Tea” and “Charcoal Roasted” series, in addition to
developing “Tribute Spring” natural mineral water and
“Tenwow Natural Water”. It is the Group's strategic
goal to meet the contemporary demand of
consumers, enhance its own brands and expand the
businesses under such brands. In 2016, the Group will
redesign the packaging of the bottled “Fruit Tea”
series and add Honey Calamansi to the series. To
introduce new product categories to the market, the
Group plans to launch fresh and healthy coconut
water under the brand “Pure & Coco”, a high-end
coffee series under the “Banuo” brand and “Tenwow
Idea” beverage series in trendy and innovative
packaging. As for foods and snacks, the Group will
continue to launch a variety of new, trendy and
healthy snacks to enhance the market position of the
“Tenwow" brand.

The Group conducted marketing campaigns for its “V
Planet” cocktail in the fourth quarter of 2015 and will
make an extra effort to build up the cocktail’s
presence in various sales channels and retail outlets
in 2016. It will form a specific sales team responsible
for expanding the market for the "V Planet” cocktail
as part of the efforts to advance the development of
the alcoholic beverage business under its own brand.
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Invest in Marketing

In 2016, the Group has investment in online marketing
by sponsoring two television programmes, namely the
Trump Cards K E k2 ¥ F k), a large-scale variety
show program produced by Zhejiang Satellite TV, and
Xie Na's Talk Show (#FHLEEEF )), a program
produced by the Shanghai Dragon TV. This is in
addition to the Group’s increased investment in offline
advertisements on bus and retail store signage. The
advertising has effectively enhanced the brand
recognition of the Group’s non-alcoholic beverages
series and reflected the Group’s determination to
expand the business of its own brands. With
confidence in the future market and determination to
boost growth, the Group will continue to increase
investment and efforts in online advertising. This will
lay the solid foundations for the Group's future
development.

Expand Online Market to Boost Online
Sales

The fast-growing online channels boast of potential
for huge growth. The Group recruited experienced
online salespersons to join the Group so as to lay a
solid foundation for building online channels. The
Group will develop special product lines that cater for
the online market for foods and snacks. The Group
has set up separate sales teams for online and offline
sales channels to ensure the balanced development
of online and offline pricing systems. In 2015, the
Group achieved new breakthroughs and progress in
online sales by setting up and expanding online sales
channels. In 2016, the Group will grasp new
opportunities for reinforcing its status as a leading
player in the market.
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Specialized Sales Teams with Clearly-
defined Roles and Responsibilities

The Group’s success is based on the in-depth and
extensive channels established by its sales teams
across the country, which are vital to the Group’s
business. The Group gained access to markets
nationwide in the past few years with its non-alcoholic
beverage flagship product — “Tenwow Tea” which
has gained the Group a presence in non-alcoholic
beverage markets across the country. With the
successful experience of its non-alcoholic beverage
division, the Group expects to build a nationwide
distribution network for its foods and snacks as well
as alcoholic beverages, including wines and “V Planet”
cocktail, thereby creating new driving force for
business growth. The Group will set up a special core
team for foods and imported products in 2016 to
coordinate nationwide sales of foods and imported
products and launch different packaging, sale plans
and promotion programs for different channels. The
Group will also set up a special core team for
nationwide sales of alcohol beverage products. The
team will be responsible for coordinating with alcohol
sales teams in Guangdong, Fujian and Shanghai, and
for setting up alcohol sales teams in other major
markets across China and for exploring new sales
channels so as to capitalize on the country’s ongoing
urbanization. Different sales models are adopted for
different products. In the past, the Group’s sales
teams used to take charge of sales of all types of
products. To meet the needs of business expansion,
the Group has set up specialized sales teams with
clearly-defined roles and duties for different product
categories. This is aimed at speeding up business
development.
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Keep Optimizing Distribution Network

In order to tap the end customers” increasing demand
for the Group'’s products in the PRC, the Group will
expand its market coverage through further
expansion of its distribution network. The non-
alcoholic beverage division of the Group has
established comprehensive sales channels across the
PRC and is capable of distributing beverages
nationwide. The Group is making efforts to enhance
the market penetration of its products and strive to
strengthen its foothold in and expanding its share of
the existing markets while continuing to expand into
second- and third-tier cities. It has also spotted the
opportunity for business development amid the
government policies on speeding up urbanization as
well as the growing purchasing power of residents in
urban and rural areas. In addition, the Group will
strategically establish production bases in various
regions across China for producing and selling its
own-brand non-alcoholic beverages, foods and
snacks locally. Such business model will bring several
benefits to the Group. Firstly, the Group will be able to
deliver its goods to various retail outlets quickly over
shorter distances and thus reduce transportation
costs effectively and keep the products fresher.
Secondly, it will also be able to keep up with market
preferences promptly and satisfy customers’ varied
needs better, thus improving its inventory
management. Thirdly, the business model will enable
the Group to adjust its production capacity flexibly in
accordance to the changes in the market and meet
the demands promptly.
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6. Keep Optimizing Product Portfolio

The Group has been closely monitoring the trends in
the consumer market, and will continue to optimize
and adjust its product portfolio to enhance its gross
profit margin. With the unigue integrated business
model in which the Group produces and distributes
both its own-brand products and a variety of products
under the third-party brands, the Group enjoys
synergies and obvious cost advantages. The Group is
able to adjust its diversified product portfolio flexibly,
regardless of the economic environment, to cater for
market demands. The Group will continue to
consolidate the production and distribution of its own-
brand products and the third-party brand products,
and will opportunely add new product lines or
eliminate those with unsatisfactory performance. The
move will help the Group achieve outstanding
performance in the market, develop better and
improve its competitiveness.

7. Look for Opportunities for Business

Expansion

To expand its business further, the Group will
continue to seek opportunities for acquisitions and
cooperation according to such criteria as the potential
acquisition targets’ or business partners’ brand
recognition, business prospects, compatibility with
the Group’'s existing products, sales channel
coverage, management team and transaction price.
Suitable acquisitions or cooperation would further
improve the value chain of the Group, help to explore
more distribution channels and add new products,
new experience and expertise to the Group. They will
also provide a springboard for the Group’s
diversification into different product categories in the
future. This will help to enhance the Group’s market
position and enlarge its market share.

The year 2016 will be crucial to Tenwow's development and
growth. With its relentless efforts to adapt to the market
and innovate, Tenwow is bound to achieve its goals, namely
those of boosting its market share and elevating the market
position of its products. Tenwow intends to project itself as
a food and beverages brand that embodies trendiness,
leisure and happiness. It will also persevere in expanding its
business and in facilitating rapid growth of its own brands in
the future. With determination and unswerving efforts,
Tenwow will never fail to bring everyone pleasant surprises!
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The Board is pleased to present the report of the Directors
along with the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Currently,
the Company, through its subsidiaries, associated
companies and joint venture company primarily produces
and distributes its “Tenwow” own brand products. It also
distributes well-known third-party brand products. Primary
products include alcoholic beverages, food and snacks,
non-alcoholic beverages, and other fast moving consumer
goods.

Segment analysis of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2015 is set out in Note 5 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS

The overall performance of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 is set out on pages 96 to 97 in the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 is set out in this section and in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
12 t0 41 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of the movements of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, and investment property for the year ended
31 December 2015 are set out in Note 6 to the financial
statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on pages 4 and 5
of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the Year are set out in Note 15 to the
financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the Year are set out in Notes 16 to 17
to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s distributable reserves comprise the share
premium, other reserves and retained earnings. As at 31
December 2015, the Company had distributable reserves of
RMB1,760,942,000. Movements in the Company’s reserves
during the Year is set out in Notes 16 to 17 to the financial
Statements.

DIVIDEND

The Board proposes to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK3.41 cents per share (2014: HK4.06 cents per
share) and a special dividend of HK1.04 cents per share
(2014 nil) in cash to the Shareholders for the year ended 31
December 2015. Together with the interim dividend of
HK2.71 cents per share paid in September 2015 (2014
interim dividend: HK2.28 cents per share), the total dividend
for the year amounted to HK7.16 cents per share (2014:
HK6.34 cents per share). Dividend payout ratio increased
from 30% to 35%, with the additional 5% being the proposed
special dividend.

The proposed final dividend and proposed special dividend
are subject to approval by the Shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM to be held on Wednesday, 18 May 2016.
Upon Shareholders’ approval to be obtained at the AGM,
the proposed final dividend and proposed special dividend
will be payable on or around Thursday, 2 June 2016 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Tuesday, 24 May 2016.

Details of the dividend are set out in Note 29 to the financial
statements.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 16 May 2016 to Wednesday, 18 May 2016,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered, for the purpose
of ascertaining Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the AGM, all transfers of shares of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and
appropriate transfer forms must be lodged for registration
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 13 May 2016.

In addition, in order to determine the entitlement of the
Shareholders to receive the proposed final dividend and
proposed special dividend, if approved, the register of
members of the Company will be closed on Tuesday, 24
May 2016, when no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to be eligible to receive the proposed
final dividend and proposed special dividend, all transfers of
shares of the Company accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and appropriate transfer forms must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 23 May 2016.
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DIRECTORS
During the financial Year and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board was made up of the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Jianhua (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Juewei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lam Hang Boris (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Yeung Yue Ming

Ms. Au Lai Hang

Non-Executive Director
Ms. Chen Shirley Shiyou

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Longgen

Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong

Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a written annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Company is
satisfied that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent as defined under the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Article 108 of the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), Mr. Lam
Hang Boris, Ms. Au Lai Hang and Ms. Chen Shirley Shiyou
shall retire from their offices as executive Directors and
non-executive Director respectively at the AGM to be held
on Wednesday, 18 May 2016. Mr. Lam Hang Boris and Ms.
Au Lai Hang, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM. Due to other business commitments,
Ms. Chen Shirley Shiyou will not offer herself for re-election
at the AGM.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the section
headed "Directors and Senior Management” on pages 69 to
77 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the AGM
has entered into a service contract with the Group which is
not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTOR REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration shall be determined based on
recommendations from the Remuneration Committee,
while also making reference to the complexity of the
Director’s work, workload, responsibilities, as well as the
Company's remuneration policies. Details of the Directors'
remuneration and the five highest-paid individuals of the
Group are set out in Note 33 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS' PERMITTED INDEMNITY
PROVISION

Under the Company's Articles of Association, every Director
or officer of the Company acting in relation to any of the
affairs of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs and damages which he may
incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of
his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.
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(i) RAEDXFREDEES

EENA
Name of Director

EEME

MRS A
Mr. Lin Jianhua

MBS E EmEBA

Mr. Lam Hang Boris Beneficial owner
L—tFE
GEE

MEELEEAEHTCEAR AR 100% B - MR
BRAERIEEAR A QT 1,417,324,000 BB 1D o At - AL
WARBREBCEERARFAMNARRQR1,417,324,000 A A%
DR o

Nature of interest

R PEE ) R R ()
Interest of controlled corporation®ote

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the "SFO")), which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO)
or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as
follows:

(i) Interests in shares of the Company

BRAEE0.10EB THEER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
BAERA D
FrEERGEE
Number of
shares held

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

1,417,324,000 (L) 68.35%

2,030,000 (L) 0.10%

(L) — Long position

Note:

Mr. Lin Jianhua owns Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited as to 100%, which
in turn owns 1,417,324,000 shares of the Company. Mr. Lin is

therefore deemed to be interested in 1,417,324,000 shares of the
Company held by Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited.
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(i) RAEQXTHBERDHERS (ii) Interests in underlying shares of the
Company

BREHE0I0BINEER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
BREBERARBEEA
BRESTEREN
BIRAEE T Fis
HEROHAE

Number of
underlying shares
held pursuant to

share options BARRA D
granted under Approximate
EERS EEMEE the Pre-IPO percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest Share Option Scheme shareholding
EEE L+ Bk
EREx ) %EA 1,666,667 (L) 0.08%
Ms. Au Lai Hang Beneficial owner
[y e Bk
ek _ R A 4,166,664 (1) 0.20%
Mr. Lam Hang Boris Beneficial owner
Tk Enk
R HEIEA A 1,666,667 (1 0.08%
Mr. Wang Juewei Beneficial owner
B e
A _ EHEEA 1,666,667 (1) 0.08%
Mr. Yeung Yue Ming Beneficial owner
L—tFE (L) — Long position
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(i) REBZEER

EEHF
Name of Director

EEEE AR
Name of associated corporation

WEELE
Mr. Lin Jianhua

SHOEERAA
Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited

MWEELE
Mr. Lin Jianhua

PARERRBEERRAF
Shanghai Tenwow Food Production Co., Ltd.

THEREAE
Mr. Wang Juewei

FERRERmBRAR
Shanghai Mornflake Food Co., Ltd.

THERAE
Mr. Wang Juewei

LEg LaEMHEBRAT
Shanghai Dingshang Packing Material Co., Ltd

V— R
Wi
MEBEENEBREL LR LERERSAEERAT

FEAEED (RESTERARKES0,0007T) @ MAAREEWRER SR
RABTHEAES

@tﬁﬁ?@%ﬁl\ CTRIE-RFT A=t
CEERESSAR ?Eﬁﬂ()\ﬁﬁfr%ﬂ
A MEEFIAQAKETRABRAR

S HAMMBHEE (TR RF %&H;ﬁ,%\{wu
XVER) B EmAR D - BRGNS EEBERES
RIBEFES R EEPIEXVEE 7 RS IRIEA
MAABIEERELRIRIEESF RPEIENE
2HEMEFEMELM - B BIZESFRIAR
EAME RN T MR RERIOAR

(iii) Interests in associated corporations

BERZNHES
ERRELH
Number of
securities
interested

or investment
amount

BOFR
RESEANL
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding/
investment
amount

ERiHE
Nature of interest

Bl TRARD (L
g Tzﬁﬁ}\ Bz in (L) 100%
Beneficial owner 1 share (L)
FeiE s =) ARH#50,000 7T (L) o
Interest of spouse™o® RMB50,000 (L) ’
EnBEAA ARH130,0007T(L) 19
Beneficial owner RMB130,000 (L) ’
Enl %875,000 7T (L
ERBEA ARE i (h] 35%

Beneficial owner RMB875,000 (L)

(L) — Long position
Note:

Ms. Yan Yuzhen, the spouse of Mr. Lin Jianhua, has interested in
Shanghai Tenwow Food Production Co., Ltd. as to an investment
amount of RMB50,000, and Mr. Lin is therefore deemed to be
interested in the same.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, so
far as was known to any Director or chief executive of
the Company, neither the Directors nor the chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO or as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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EFERRRADARMD RAABERD N EDS
15879}

RZE—RAF+-A=+—H0 BEWNEZESRAEAL
AIEEITRABAE  BRE(EXEERENES
AR AmETTHABRIN BB REFESFRBAEK
BIXVERSE 2 ]2 35 EIESBM AR R B I IRIBEE S
N EAEEBIZE 336 (RN AR AT E M E LA A
NARHDSAAERD O ERSIOAB AT

RADQ T RAD By S

FTERRERE A
Name of substantial
shareholder

EEME
Nature of interest

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, so far as was known to any
Director or chief executive of the Company, Shareholders
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company
whose interests were disclosed above) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which shall be disclosed to the Company
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Interests in shares of the Company

BREE010ETHERER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

RESNB DL
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

FrERHEE
Number of
shares held

EHEPEARAA
Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited

China FNB Investment Holdings
Limited®ete)

Carlyle Asia Growth
Partners IV, L.p.No®

CAGP IV General Partner L.p.Mo®)

CAGP IV, Ltd Mot

TC Group Cayman Investment
Holdings Sub, L.p.Nee

50

BEHEERA 1,417,324,000 (L)
Beneficial owner
i:ﬁﬁ?ﬁ’.ﬁjﬁ A 116,178,000 (L)
Beneficial owner
=" 73 A AEE 25
KRB 5 _ 116,178,000 (L)
Interest of controlled corporation
PASH 4783 A e 25
REEBMNER _ 116,178,000 (L)
Interest of controlled corporation
E/Q\'—:" ﬁ:r‘[\\‘ e 2%

S EEER . 116,178,000 (L)
Interest of controlled corporation
REEBNER

. 116,178,000 (L)
Interest of controlled corporation

KIEEPRIZAAIRAT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

68.35%

5.60%

5.60%

5.60%

5.60%

5.60%
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FERRER HH
Name of substantial
shareholder

REEMnE

TC Group Cayman Investment
Holdings, L.p.Now)

NI EE R

Carlyle Holdings II L.p.Note

Nature of interest

SN E
Interest of controlled corporation

EREE0.10BTHERR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
RESNB DL

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

FrEERHAEE
Number of
shares held

Interest of controlled corporation

REIEEE S

Carlyle Holdings Il GP L.L.C.0e

Interest of controlled corporation

NSRRI RLEpEE Fa

The Carlyle Group L.P.~ow)

116,178,000 (L) 5.60%
116,178,000 (L) 5.60%
116,178,000 (L) 5.60%
116,178,000 (L) 5.60%

Interest of controlled corporation

O—HF=
MiaE

25 M%7 /1 China FNB Investment Holdings Limited#4& - 1215 &%
o HA & {5 - /R 7 Carlyle Asia Growth Partners IV, LP.# & China
FNB Investment Holdings Limited 80425 - U 4R AR Z S0 %
H # % - MCAGP IV General Partner L.P. 81 g1 7 % % Carlyle Asia
Growth Partners IV, LP. 8914 - MUER AR ZERM P A Ew
CAGP IV, Ltd. Bl R 7 # 5 CAGP IV General Partner L.P. 8925 + #Ui%
/AR ZE R M P E A S S TC Group Cayman Investment
Holdings Sub, L.P. 8| R /A CAGP IV, Ltd. B942% » MR AR %S
fi% {5 # % A 4 %5 © TC Group Cayman Investment Holdings L.P. Bl i
A TC Group Cayman Investment Holdings Sub, L.P. 835 - #
R BN &SR AR Carlyle Holdings Il LP. Bl A S
TC Group Cayman Investment Holdings L.P. #1225 - MU R AR #Z
LMD TR A S Carlyle Holdings Il GP L.L.C. Bl g3 7 & Carlyle
Holdings Il LP. By #E 25 - S8 AR Z SR D A # 25 The
Carlyle Group L.P. 8] i /A% Carlyle Holdings Il GP L.L.C. Bz + 8
WRRARZERG P HEER -

BEXWEEN R_T-—RAF+_A=+—8H"
ARBABEANGETAAL(EFRARFARSTH
ABRRIN A RBESF RS HEAIXVEFE 2 3D
BRI SR A R BE AR IR R8 75 I A 15 1) 55 336
BREFENARRFENELMOA QB KA
BRIV R TORE ©

(L) — Long Position
Note:

These Shares are held by China FNB Investment Holdings Limited. Under the
SFO, The Carlyle Group L.P. is deemed to be interested in these Shares by
virtue of its interest in Carlyle Holdings Il GP L.L.C., which in turn is deemed
to be interested in these Shares by virtue of its interest in Carlyle Holdings II
L.P., which in turn is deemed to be interested in these Shares by virtue of its
interest in TC Group Cayman Investment Holdings L.P., which in turn is
deemed to be interested in these Shares by virtue of its interest in TC Group
Cayman Investment Holdings Sub, L.P., which in turn is deemed to be
interested in these Shares by virtue of its interest in CAGP IV, Ltd., which in
turn is deemed to be interested in these Shares by virtue of its interest in
CAGP IV General Partner L.P., which in turn is deemed to be interested in
these Shares by virtue of its interest in Carlyle Asia Growth Partners IV, L.P.,
which in turn is deemed to be interested in these Shares by virtue of its
interest in China FNB Investment Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the
Company has not been notified by any person (other than
the Director or chief executive of the Company) who had
any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.
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EE ERBRRREREGNNER

BT THRAABREER 5 | — &0 R B A 75 R Y R 32
FREEIN R_T-AFARFERBEERNAR
FEFSESHEERERIRARBEENERN
BEARS  ZHHAN(ERRL EMRAMERTX) -
R BB R ENE AR SR E AR A
RAEANREMERRRERBOERGH

ESNBEEBNES

FXBIIR-E—RE+-A=+— RS LR
BIE 8100 oA B3 A SR R BRI M F A
BT MR RO ¢

EEHA

NCIECE

EBHE

DIRECTORS'/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” below and in Note 32 to the
financial statements, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance (as defined in Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules) in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of 2015, and there
was no contract of significance for the provision of services
to the Company or any subsidiary of the Company by the
controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the
year under review.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Set out below are interests of the Group's Directors in a
business which competes or is likely to compete with the
Group's business for the purpose of Rule 8.10(2) of the
Listing Rules as at 31 December 2015:

REEME

Name of Director Name of company

MEZESLE 2
Mr. Lin Jianhua Nanpu

R-ZE—AF+-A=+—B BEHHAEEZES
RE(RB)RRBARAAR LEREBEXARAF]
(MEHBARRNEEREZEWMB AR A1
RN EEHE SRR 49% © BB AMERA R R
BERBIAIKR - NEE  BEERSIHEHMNE  BH

REWB ARG IR SAEENMERR -
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Nature of business

FEBERM
Packaged food and beverage

Nature of interest
Directorship
distributor in the PRC

As at 31 December 2015, Nanpu is owned by the Group as
to 51% through Tenwow (Fujian) Food Co., Ltd. and
Shanghai Tiansheng Wines and Spirits Co., Ltd. (E/&XKEB
¥ AR A7), both of which are indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, and by Shanghai Tangjiu as to
49%. Nanpu is accounted for as a joint venture of the
Company. Nanpu and its subsidiaries are not being
considered as subsidiaries of the Group from an
operational, management and accounting perspective.
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FRERENBRAR BRI RAMEINERELE -
MEELENEZRERERBESFEERARAE
SEOED FEHRESEH/\REFENK HP R
Z2(EREFR)BLEREEBRET  =2HAXE
(BR)RMAERAAR LEBRBEXERAFME
RIE-HEBRREH  RR-—RAEFEEB=SZ
A EBHENFAEALE - Bl AEBEEES
R P 3R B T 5 R A L

MHETENBERRM RS HE - SIAARE
MHNDHEEBCEELEERT - FAEASE
MDHEE— HNERETBESETRNERBEK
RRRE - BRMAAGHD HREBWAEK

B EXFEBEN  R=B—BF+=A=+—8
B E B RS S B OB EARBAR AR
HEARNEY (AEBEBRIN EERMERS
AT EHT R EARE T RBATHEY
S -

RREASENERHEBEBEBEY  ARRZER
BREBMEEARARIMEERER T —=F
NAZ+—BRAAXRRFFTIIHFZE(FTRBER
Bl Bt ETBEFRBOEREARFRORRT -
SERHEXARABRMRELECRAR R HGE K
EHRE BT RAREELSENBEATS
BEERAME2ERNEE TR AR ETHEAER
S A AR EMEN SR AR BT AESE
e RARERESHEEARATDIMEELE
MERK ATERERNBE_T—HF+_-A
=+ RIEFERETIHEFRIROGK

Nanpu and its subsidiaries have been operating under
separate and independent management. The directorship
of Mr. Lin Jianhua is for the purpose of representing the
Group's interest on the board level of Nanpu. The board of
directors of Nanpu consists of eight directors, five of which
(including the chairman) were appointed by Shanghai
Tangjiu and three of which were appointed by Tenwow
(Fujian) Food Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Tiansheng Wines and
Spirits Co., Ltd., collectively. At the shareholders level,
decisions in general require approval from holders of more
than two-thirds of the equity interests in Nanpu. The Group
does not therefore control Nanpu both at the board and
shareholders level.

Nanpu is a packaged food and beverage distributor in China
and there is little competition between the distribution
business of the Company and Nanpu. Nanpu is one of the
Group's distributors and its distribution channels primarily
focus on the modern channels in eastern China, which is
complementary to the Group’s own distribution channels.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of
the Directors or any of their respective associates had any
interests in the businesses, apart from the Group’s
businesses, which compete or are likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company
and its subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules.

In order to protect the Group’s interests and its current
business activities, the controlling Shareholders of the
Company, namely, Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited and Mr. Lin
Jianhua, entered into a non-competition deed on 31 August
2013 (the “Non-competition Deed”) in favour of the
Company, under which Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited and Mr.
Lin Jianhua have undertaken and covenanted with the
Company that they shall not and shall procure their
respective associates not to directly or indirectly participate
in, or hold any right or interest in, or otherwise be involved
in any business that may be carried out by the Group from
time to time subject to the terms and conditions of the Non-
competition Deed. The Company has received a
confirmation from Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited and Mr. Lin
Jianhua in respect of their compliance with the terms of the
Non-competition Deed for the year ended 31 December
2015.
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BIMFMTEENCENLBER  SHEEARA
ARMEERERBE-_Z—AF+=-A=+—H
IFFEANDETRETIHRFRE

EEAH
RBE-Z-—AF+-A=+—ALFERN KE
AR EFEERARREHRAMEALD XL
ERRITBRNEAS N (RESAARREHERE
B O ET A LFTETSLMOBRTE & KOBRSD)

HEBEXRS

BRIEFTRAUETOAE - UTRSRFHEFERS
(EEREMRA) - ABT EMRAUFETHAZNH
BRE AKBECEITREEGER - AERET
ZERFBRERX ZNEBMERT A EBHENIE
5l - ETRERERER S B I # MR M 7E32
FRENHRAEE T2 5 -

TERENBEABERS

AEBE-—REGEETRAEBALHEXEER
meR—_F—=F/\A—H ARFANEZEMNEBLR
ARERM(EE)ARAR(REEE | KRAH
REWBAR  TeEmERENBAR(REER
B ) skmm (RREAEE) &8 25 AMAEAL
REERBEGIFILBEBHEXBEEMNERY
e RFERBEE T —=FNAATLARBER
YR-ZF-R"FFAA+TARLE RBP=F-F
BZERR RN E M8 AT -

REBEFA  ERBEEBROTRAER T —XRF
—A— B ILERGELAFIERBZEN - R
E-HAF+—A+=R RESENFEBEEER
AL REEREGREI LN EHEHEENE
EEmMIERGZ - ZFERBEE T —RF—
A—REE-F-/\F+-_A=1+—81L  /H#=
F o
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The independent non-executive Directors have also
reviewed and confirmed the compliance with, and the
enforcement of, the Non-competition Deed by Zhi Qun
Enterprises Limited and Mr. Lin Jianhua for the year ended
31 December 2015.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than a contract of service with a
Director or any person engaged in the full-time employment
of the Company, concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the following
transactions are continuing connected transactions as
defined in the Listing Rules which are subject to the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Group has implemented internal control
measures to ensure pricing policies and guidance are being
followed when determining the price and terms of these
continuing connected transactions. Certain of these
continuing connected transactions which also constitute
related party transactions are set out in Note 32 to the
financial statements.

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Group sells or purchases goods from connected persons
in the ordinary course of its business. On 1 August 2013, each
of Tenwow Foods (Group) Co., Ltd. (KIE& fh(5EE) AR A 7))
(“Tenwow Group”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) (on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries, excluding
Nanpu and its subsidiaries (the “Nanpu Group”)) or Nanpu (on
behalf of the Nanpu Group) entered into framework
agreements with each relevant connected person in respect
of the sales or purchase of goods on normal commercial
terms for a period of three years commencing from 17
September 2013 and ending on 16 September 2016. Payment
will be made by wire transfer upon delivery of the goods or
monthly.

During the year under review, the parties to each of the
framework agreements agreed to terminate the framework
agreements with effect from 1 January 2016 and replace
them with new framework agreements. On 13 November
2015, each of Tenwow Group and Nanpu Group entered
into new framework agreements with each relevant
connected person in respect of the sales or purchase of
goods on normal commercial terms for a period of three
years commencing from 1 January 2016 and ending on 31
December 2018.
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HE-_Z-—AF+_A=+—HLFE REER For the year ended 31 December 2015, the annual caps and

BE/HEEERZETHTERRBEBRERS the actual amounts paid for the non-exempted continuing

FELREERENSENT : connected transactions in respect of the purchase or sales
of goods under the framework agreements are as follows:

BE-E-RE+t-A=t-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2015
REEE(RRAFRHA
WEAR FEEEEEE)
BEXZNE Tenwow Group (on behalf of AR (RREREE)
BEAL Nature of connected itself and its subsidiaries, Nanpu (on behalf of the |t

Connected person transaction excluding the Nanpu Group) Nanpu Group) Total
EREMAeE BEREAEH EREAeE
Actual FELR Actual FELR Actual FELR
amount paid  Annual Cap amount paid  Annual Cap amount paid  Annual Cap

ARBTR ARMTR ARMTr ARETR AR®TR AR%TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

LEBBAREERARAR MBEALEERSD 34,523 77,107 153,450 153,600 187,973 230,707
HBBALEEEFLE  Purchase of goods from
BRAFO connected persons

Shanghai Shaowansheng
Commerce & Food Ltd. and its
associate, Shanghai
Huanglongtai Tea

Company Limited"
DEREERORABREA MEEATEERR 25,651 192,577 332,616 493591 358,267 686,168
Shanghai Tangjiu® and its Purchase of goods from
associates connected persons
PERMEAREERLAIRE RPBBEALHEEER 33,356 156,078 127,805 276,309 161,167 432,387
BEALSBELRRZAAFY  Sales of goods to
Shanghai Shaowansheng connected persons
Commerce & Food Ltd.

and its associate, Shanghai
Shaowansheng Food Company®

LEREEROREBEA MBEEATHEERR 101,690 365,067 506,786 1,213,505 608,476 1,578,572
Shanghai Tangjiu® and its Sales of goods to
associates connected persons

201543%% o AnnualReport2015 55



EEEHE

Report of the Directors

HE-E-AFT-A=+-HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

REEE(RRAFRHE
WEBAR  FEEDHER)
Tenwow Group (on behalf of
itself and its subsidiaries,

R (RREREE)
Nanpu (on behalf of the i
excluding the Nanpu Group) Nanpu Group) Total
ERCHeE ERCHEHE BEREHEH
Actual EELR Actual EELR Actual EELR
amount paid  Annual Cap amount paid  Annual Cap amount paid  Annual Cap

ARBTR  ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR  ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000

HERZRR
BEAL Nature of connected
Connected person transaction

BEREEAEE) AEEATHERR 1,613,890 2,835,942 - - 1,613,890 2,835,942
Nanpu (on behalf of the Sales of goods to

Nanpu Group) © connected persons
ElGe L E IR MEEATEERM 1,131,841 1,481,413 - - 1,131,841 1,481,413
Nanpu (on behalf of the Purchase of goods from

Nanpu Group) * connected persons

E PERBEREARAR R LEIEAHRARERAR R
BIARRAERDRNERRR - MMEHRERFNHE
RF A EEREEREBRARAARRNEEAL -
BN LEREFREERATR LGNELHBEERDAN
DEMBRA - RIFETRAE 14A81 16 - ElISEER
SOEHEE -

z SRR ER AR R E BRI e A S [
HE51% BREETRNAARFANMBEAR - A AERL
AIBIEAL ©

: LERNBLEHBEARAR R LEIANRAERATR L
BIMRRBARARNTIERE - MMEGRERRAME
RE B EERELEREBRARARRANEEAL -
HREEMELERRAFTR LSHMELENEERATNEE
MEAR - BRI EHRAIE 1A LHEHERSE
BptETE -

“ FBRAARERRE (RE)RAEBRATR LERBEE
BERABKFREES%  TH EEREEEERI%HNAE
AR RIFETALRIS 14A.07(6) {5 K2 14AN9 16 BB X
IR REEAL -
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Shanghai Shaowansheng Commerce & Food Ltd. is a substantial
shareholder of Shanghai Chuanxiang Flavouring and Food Co., Ltd.,
and Shanghai Chuanxiang Food Factory, both of which are
subsidiaries of the Company. Shanghai Shaowansheng Commerce &
Food Ltd. is therefore a connected person of the Company. Shanghai
Huanglongtai Tea Company Limited is wholly-owned by Shanghai
Shaowansheng Commerce & Food Ltd., a connected person of the
Company, and is therefore its associate and a connected person of
the Company. The above continuing connected transactions have
been aggregated pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules.

Shanghai Tangjiu is a substantial shareholder of Nanpu, which is
indirectly owned by the Group as to 51% and a subsidiary of the
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules, and is therefore a
connected person of the Company.

Shanghai Shaowansheng Commerce & Food Ltd. is a substantial
shareholder of Shanghai Chuanxiang Flavouring and Food Co., Ltd.,
and Shanghai Chuanxiang Food Factory, both of which are
subsidiaries of the Company. Shanghai Shaowansheng Commerce &
Food Ltd. is therefore a connected person of the Company. Shanghai
Shaowansheng Food Company is wholly-owned by Shanghai
Shaowansheng Commerce & Food Ltd., a connected person of the
Company, and is therefore its associate and a connected person of
the Company. The above continuing connected transactions have
been aggregated pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules.

Nanpu is a joint venture owned by the Company as to 51% through
Tenwow (Fujian) Food Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Tiansheng Wines and
Spirits Co., Ltd. collectively, and as to 49% by Shanghai Tangjiu.
Nanpu is deemed by the Stock Exchange as a connected person
pursuant to Rules 14A.07(6) and 14A.19 of the Listing Rules.
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EHLRRZHE—FER  FL2HAAEBRE
B Z2—=F+—A+N\H - Z2E—=F+=A
ZHER-T-EF+—A-ABNLE R-F
— =+ ATHHBEER=_ZE—AF+_ATHTE
RO ©

MO ERENBEBRERS

TREAAEENF D ER R EREIFHE

RIZ_ETAR RIS 14A.76(2) 1R IEH S 38 <78 S IR R 3t
ERRE - ERBLEMARAE +HARAE TR
FEERRASHRTE

For further information relating to the above transactions,
please refer to the Prospectus, the announcements dated
18 November 2013, 30 December 2013 and 16 November
2015 and the circulars despatched on 14 December 2013
and 10 December 2015 of the Company.

PARTIALLY-EXEMPT CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Set out below is a summary of the continuing connected
transactions for the Group, which are exempt, under Rule
14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules, from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements, but are subject to the
reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

BE-B-RFT-A=+-HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

REEE(RRAFRHE
WEAR  FEEEHEE)
BERZAR Tenwow Group (on behalf of AR (REREHEE)
BEAL Nature of connected itself and its subsidiaries, Nanpu (on behalf of the A%
Connected person transaction excluding the Nanpu Group) Nanpu Group) Total
ERCHeE ERCHEHE ERCHeH
Actual EELR Actual FELR Actual EELR
amount paid  Annual Cap amount paid  Annual Cap amount paid  Annual Cap
ARETR AR%ETr ARETx AR%Trn AR%Tn AR%Tx
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
MEELERABEALS MEEATRENE 720 1,444 41,657 48,444 4377 49,888
RBERERARO Leasing of properties from
Mr. Lin Jianhua and his associate,  connected persons
Shanghai Tiansheng
Warehouse Co., Ltd.®
MEEFEBEACIHRENE MEEALEERR 74,069 80,821 1,470 3,167 75,539 83,988
P’X‘é%‘ﬁ[ﬁﬂ"ﬂ BE™  Purchase of goods from
HERLERAA connected persons
@iﬁﬁmﬁ@ Gkl
EEEAEEARAR)?

Associates of Mr. Lin Jianhua
(Jiangsu Province Linning
International Company Limited,
Putian Xinghua Food Limited,
Shanghai Tianpu Food Company
Limited and Putian Nanpu
Shiye Company Limited)?
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HE-E-AFT-A=+-HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015
RERE (RRAFRHE
WEAR  FEEEHEER)
BERZNA Tenwow Group (on behalf of R (RREREE)
BEAL Nature of connected itself and its subsidiaries, Nanpu (on behalf of the &

Connected person transaction excluding the Nanpu Group) Nanpu Group) Total
EREHEH BEREHLH BEREHEH
Actual EELR Actual EELR Actual EELR
amount paid  Annual Cap amount paid  Annual Cap amount paid  Annual Cap
AR®TR AR%®Tr ARETRT AR%Trn AR%Tn AR%ETx
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

MEEFEBBA MBEALHEDR 120 1,048 136 10,116 256 11,164
(EEXHRRERAT . Salesofgoods to
EHAREEBERAR connected persons

MEBERHEXBERARA)O

Associates of Mr. Lin Jianhua
(Shanghai Tianpu Food
Company Limited, Putian
Nanpu Shiye Company Limited
and Shanghai Buy Well
Company Limited)®

B MEELEBARRERBRERES - AMAAQRMEE . Mr. Lin Jianhua is a controlling Shareholder and a Director of the
AT EEREEFBERARAER(BE)REBRARN Company and hence a connected person of the Company. Shanghai
2EMBAR - MiEAE(BA)REGRARRIAMEELE Tiansheng Warehouse Co., Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nan
HEBI0% - At » EBRERERERARAMEETLEN Pu (Hong Kong) Investments Limited, which is in turn owned by Mr.
BEA WARRBNMEEAL AR DEBEREREFEARD Lin Jianhua as to more than 30%. Therefore, Shanghai Tiansheng
RIBMSEEBRRE - i E R ERER S ERE ETIRAIE Warehouse Co., Ltd. is an associate of Mr. Lin Jianhua and a
VABVIEEHETE - BEAFAEANME—FER  B2HA connected person of the Company. As Shanghai Tiansheng
ARBRER —T—NFELtAZANRER=ZFT—HF Warehouse Co., Ltd. is connected with Mr. Lin, the continuing
+—A—"B®HASE - connected transactions under the above tenancy agreements have

been aggregated pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules. For
further information relating to the tenancy agreements, please refer
to the Prospectus and the announcements dated 2 July 2014 and 16
November 2015 of the Company.
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Mr. Lin Jianhua is a controlling shareholder and a Director of the
Company and hence a connected person of the Company. Jiangsu
Province Linning International Company Limited is owned by Mr. Lin
Jianming (a brother of Mr. Lin Jianhua) as to more than 50%, Putian
Xinghua Food Limited is collectively owned by Mr. Lin Quangin and
Mr. Lin Jianhong (both brothers of Mr. Lin Jianhua) as to more than
50%, Shanghai Tianpu Food Company Limited is owned by Ms. Yan
Yuzhen (the spouse of Mr. Lin Jianhua) as to 30% and Mr. Chen Lei (a
senior management of the Company) as to 70%, and Putian Nanpu
Shiye Company Limited is owned by Ms. Zhou Yulan (a sister-in-law
of Mr. Lin Jianhua) as to more than 50%, and each of the above is
therefore an associate of Mr. Lin Jianhua and a connected person of
the Company.

As Jiangsu Province Linning International Company Limited, Putian
Xinghua Food Limited, Shanghai Tianpu Food Company Limited and
Putian Nanpu Shiye Company Limited are all Mr. Lin's associates, the
above continuing connected transactions have been aggregated
pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules for purpose of
determining its compliance obligations under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. For further information relating to the purchase of
goods from Mr. Lin Jianhua's associates, please refer to the
Prospectus.

Mr. Lin Jianhua is a controlling shareholder and a Director of the
Company and hence a connected person of the Company. Shanghai
Buy Well Company Limited is collectively owned by Mr. Lin Jianhong (a
brother of Mr. Lin Jianhua) and his spouse as to more than 50%, and
is therefore an associate of Mr. Lin Jianhua and a connected person
of the Company.

As Shanghai Tianpu Food Company Limited, Putian Nanpu Shiye
Company Limited and Shanghai Buy Well Company Limited are all Mr.
Lin's associates, the above continuing connected transactions have
been aggregated pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules for
purpose of determining its compliance obligations under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. For further information relating to the sales of
goods to Mr. Lin Jianhua's associates, please refer to the Prospectus.
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Confirmation from the Auditor and
Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company in relation to the Continuing
Connected Transactions

The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, was
engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2015 in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of
continuing connected transactions set out above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions
have been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

2. onnormal commercial terms or better; and
3. according to the agreement governing them on terms

that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in the normal course of business are set out
in Note 32 to the financial statements. Those related party
transactions which constituted continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, are set out in the
section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”
above, and the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
during the year, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group believes that employees are important and
valuable assets and thus we provide competitive and
attractive remuneration packages to retain the employees.
The management reviews annually the remuneration to its
employees of the Group.

The Group values long standing relationships with its
suppliers and customers. The Group aims at delivering high
quality services to its customers and developing mutual
trust and enhancing communication and commitment
between the Group and its suppliers.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the percentages
of purchases from the Group’s largest supplier and the five
largest suppliers were 20.7% and 47.6%, respectively. The
percentages of sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers were 29.4% and
41.4%, respectively. During the year ended 31 December
2015, none of the Directors or any of their close associates,
or any Shareholders of the Company (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital) had any interest in any of
the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 1 August 2013, the Company adopted the Pre-IPO share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”).
The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to give
the participants an opportunity to acquire a personal stake
in the Company and to help motivate such participants to
optimize their performance and efficiency. It also helps to
retain the participants whose contributions are important to
the long-term growth and profitability of the Group.

As at 31 December 2015, the maximum number of shares
of the Company available for issue in respect of which
options were granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme was 17,916,667 shares for Pool A and 19,166,667
shares for Pool B, representing approximately 0.86% and
0.92%, respectively of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the annual report.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 was paid by the
grantees upon acceptance of the grant of option by the
Company under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. The
exercise price per share under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is HK$1.80, representing a 42.86% discount to the
offer price of the shares during the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 17
September 2013 (the “Listing"). Each option was subject to
a vesting scale and exercise period as detailed in the note
to the movement of outstanding share options of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme during the year set out in the
table below.
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HE-Z-—hF+-_A=+T-HILEE HEEBX During the year ended 31 December 2015, no share option
NAEERBRETSI TOBREETE - R TX under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was exercised.
B RERBEIREIN AR WEREE XA Save for the options which have been granted as described
ERBAETEIE — TR B - below, no further options will be offered or granted by the
Company pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

TERBPEEEFRARAEZTRERBEEARAHESE The following table discloses details of the Company’s
AR T EIFTE A R B M AR I TE BB AR S 15 A I outstanding share options held by the Directors and certain

EREE_Z— R +-_A=1+—HULEFEMNES: employees of the Company under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and its movement during the year ended 31
December 2015:
BREYE
Number of Share Options
8z 8z 8z 8z
—E-1F —E-1F —E-1F —E-1F gz
TEAET=E FEFET=F FEEHET=E T=H=r=0E —E-5f
® LLFE LLFE LLFE ¥ +=A=t+-H
—E-HE B&RiH 2t 2 BAX Jl:3:4
-A-H Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Wi SRRH
ioE during the during the during the during the Balance fTEEET
ARARERER Balanceas  yearended  yearended  yearended  yearended asat  Exercise fTEH
Name or category  # A at 1January 31December 31December 31December 31December 31December price per  Exercise
of grantees Date of Grant 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 share period
2(248)
Directors (Pool B)
THERE —Z-=5\A—H 1,666,667 0 0 0 0 1,666,667  1.807%7T Bzt 1
Mr. Wang Juewei 1 August 2013 HK$1.80 Note 1
WEEE —Z-=5\A—H 4,166,664 0 0 0 0 4,166,664 1.807% 7T Bzt
Mr. Lam Hang Boris 1 August 2013 HK$1.80 Note 1
@ EE “E-ZFN\A-H 1,666,667 0 0 0 0 1,666,667 1.80TT LiEa
Mr. Yeung Yue Ming 1 August 2013 HK$1.80 Note 1
EEELLT “T-ZENA-H 1,666,667 0 0 0 0 1,666,667 1.807%7T LiEa
Ms. Au Lai Hang 1 August 2013 HK$1.80 Note 1
SREEERAM —T-=%NA-A 17,916,667 0 0 0 0 17916667 1807 First2
{EE (F4R)(85) 1 August 2013 HK$1.80 Note 2
Senior Management
and other
employees (Pool A)
(in aggregate)
BRERERAM —Z-=5)\A—H 10,000,002 0 0 0 0 10,000,002  1.80%7T Bzt 1
EE(Z4)(#:) 1August2013 HK$1.80 Note 1
Senior Management
and other employees
(Pool B)
(in aggregate)
it —Z-=F/\A—H 37,083,334 0 0 0 0 37083334 180T
Total 1 August 2013 HK$1.80
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Notes:

Each grantee who falls under Pool B with share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of the Company will be
entitled to exercise his/her options in the following manner:

0]

up to 10% of the share options granted are exercisable from
17 September 2013 to 17 September 2014;

up to 30% of the share options granted less the number of
share options exercised are exercisable from 18 September
2014 t0 17 September 2015;

up to 50% of the share options granted less the number of
share options exercised are exercisable from 18 September
2015 to 17 September 2016;

up to 70% of the share options granted less the number of
share options exercised are exercisable from 18 September
2016 to 17 September 2017,

such number of share options granted less the number of
share options exercised are exercisable from 18 September
2017 and ending on the expiration of 9 years from the date of
grant of the option (subject to the provisions for early
termination under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme).

Each grantee who falls under Pool A with share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of the Company will be
entitled to exercise his/her options in the following manner:

)]

up to 10% of the share options granted are exercisable from
17 September 2013 to 17 September 2014;

up to 35% of the share options granted less the number of
share options exercised are exercisable from 18 September
2014 to 17 September 2015;

up to 65% of the share options granted less the number of
share options exercised are exercisable from 18 September
2015 to 17 September 2016;

such number of share options granted less the number of
share options exercised are exercisable from 18 September
2016 and ending on the expiration of 8 years from the date of
grant of the option (subject to the provisions for early
termination under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme).
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Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 19 August
2013 (the “Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”), which
became effective on the listing date on 17 September 2013.
The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
enable the Group to grant options to selected participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.
The Directors consider that the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme, with its broadened basis of participation, will
enable the Group to reward its employees, Directors and
other selected participants for their contributions to the
Group and to encourage them to give their best
performance and efficiency to the Group in future. It is also
designed to attract and retain or utilize other means to
maintain good relations with qualified individuals who are
or will be beneficial to the Company’s development or
success. The Directors may, at their absolute discretion,
invite any directors and employees of any member of the
Group (including the Nanpu Group), any advisers,
consultants, distributors, contractors, customers, suppliers,
agents, business partners, joint venture business partners,
and service providers of any member of the Group to take
up options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
options may be granted to any company wholly owned by
one or more persons belonging to any of the above classes
of participants. The eligibility of any of these classes of
participants shall be determined by the Directors on the
basis of the Directors’ opinion as to the participant’s
contribution to the development and growth of the Group.

The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue on the day on which trading of the
shares of the Company commenced on the SEHK and any
shares issued upon the exercise of the over-allotment
option during Listing, which were 207,361,200 shares
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.
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The total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

As at 31 December 2015, no share options had been
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

The share options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme are exercisable within a period of 10 years
after the date of grant. The Directors are entitled to
determine the performance targets to be achieved as well
as the minimum period that an option must be held before
an option can be exercised at the time of offer of the
Options to the participants. The subscription price per share
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will be a price
determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the SEHK's daily quotations sheet on the date
of the offer of grant, which must be a business day; (i) the
average closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the SEHK's daily quotations for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the
date of grant. The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will
remain in force for a period of 10 years commencing on 17
September 2013. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is
payable upon acceptance of the grant of an option.

For further information relating to the scheme, please refer
to the Prospectus of the Company.

DIRECTORS' RIGHT TO PURCHASE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2015 was the Company or any of its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements that would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Schemes of the Company as
disclosed on pages 62 to 66, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Group, or existed during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the relevant laws of the Cayman
Islands where the Company is incorporated which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to its existing Shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Saved as those disclosed under the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Group did not
have any significant investment during the year under
review.

PURCHASE, SALE, OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2015, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company.

TAXATION
Details of the taxation of the Group are set out in Note 27 to
the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the level of public float as required under the
Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of
the environment and communities in which it operates.
Acting in an environmentally responsible manner, the
Group endeavours to comply with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection and to adopt effective
measures to achieve efficient use of resources, energy
saving and waste reduction.
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DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations in the amount of approximately RMB27,000.

REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The results and the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 have been
reviewed and approved by the audit committee of the
Company (the “Audit Committee”). The Audit Committee
is of the opinion that such financial statements comply with
the applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and
all other applicable legal requirements. The Audit
Committee therefore recommended for the Board’s
approval of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 with the
Company’s auditor, and discussion has been conducted
regarding auditing, internal control, and financial reporting
(including review of the general accounting principles
adopted by the Group).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There was no subsequent events between the balance
sheet date (i.e. 31 December 2015) and the date of this
annual report that would cause material impact on the
Group.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will
retire at the conclusion of the AGM. PricewaterhouseCoopers,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers
as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Lin Jianhua
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 March 2016
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIN Jianhua (#k#2%), aged 57, is the founder and chairman
of the Group and was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company in August 2011. He is also the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Lin is responsible for the overall
strategic planning and business direction of the Group. Mr. Lin
has more than 22 years of experience in the food and beverage
distribution industry. Mr. Lin worked at Putian Huanan Food Co.,
Ltd. (FEMEMEIRAARAF) as a manager from
September 1985 to September 1992. In October 1992, Mr. Lin
founded Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd. (B E S(EE) AR A 7))
(previously known as Shanghai Nanpu Food Co., Ltd. (/&
R A BR 2 7)), and is currently the general manager. In
December 1999, Mr. Lin founded Tenwow Food (Group) Co., Ltd.
(RERM (EE)BMRAE) (previously known as Shanghai
Tenwow Food Co., Ltd. (E/8RER @A R 2 7)), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and has since served as the
chairman. Mr. Lin is also a director of Praise Sheen Limited
(HABMR2A7A) and Nan Pu International Limited
(FREBR AR A R]), wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Lin was appointed as the chairman and authorized
representative of Tenwow (Chengdu) Food Co., Ltd.
(RIR (B AR) B ABR 2 &) and Tenwow (Tianjin) Food Co., Ltd.
(R (KE) R mAR2AR]), wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company in June 2013 and December 2013, respectively. Mr. Lin
was appointed as the chairman, general manager and authorized
representative of Tenwow Food Group (Shanghai) Sales Co., Ltd.
(RERMEE(LE)ZHAR AT in March 2014, a director
of Tenwow Beverages International Company Limited
(RKEZ E#REFRARZAR) in July 2014, and the chairman
and authorized representative of Tenwow (Chongging) Food Co.,
Ltd. (EETAERMABRAR]) in December 2014. Mr. Lin has
been a director of Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited (R‘5B¥ AR A
A1), the controlling Shareholder of the Company.
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Mr. WANG Juewei (£ & ), aged 46, is the chief executive
officer of the Group and was appointed as an executive Director
of the Company in May 2012. He is also a member of the
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Wang oversees the day-to-day
business and the general management of the Group. Mr. Wang
graduated from East China Normal University (Z£5 A& K£2) in
1991 with a bachelor's degree in English literature. From October
1991 to March 1997, Mr. Wang worked as a teacher at Shanghai
Medical Workers' College (=788 T 28 22f5) and later from March
1997 to May 2003 at the School of Foreign Languages at East
China Normal University (2 5 A &1 K 22 5158 2 f7). Mr. Wang
joined Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd. (B R M (&) AR AF])
in June 2003 and served as a brand manager until June 2006,
where he was in charge of managing the distribution of products
from several brands, including “Changyu” (“3& #4 "), “Great Wall”
(" E K #") and "Cook’s Choice” (“ & 32 "). From July 2006 to
June 2007, Mr. Wang was in charge of the human resource
department of Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd.. Mr. Wang joined the
Group as the general manager of Tenwow Food (Group) Co., Ltd.
(REE m(EE) AR A 7)), awholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, in October 2007.

Mr. LAM Hang Boris (#f #), aged 45, is the chief financial
officer and company secretary of the Group and was
appointed as an executive Director of the Company in May
2012. Mr. Lam is responsible for the overall financial operation
of the Group, investor relations related matters and overall
secretarial matters of the Company. He is also in charge of
communications with The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and other regulatory authorities. Mr. Lam graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor’s
degree in accountancy in 1996. Mr. Lam has more than 19
years of audit and finance-related experience. He joined KPMG
(22 5 B2 =160 = 7 F7) in September 1996 and resigned in
March 2011. Mr. Lam has been an associate of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 1999,
and a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since November 2000.
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Mr. YEUNG Yue Ming (#5%i##), aged 50, is a vice president
of the Group and was appointed as an executive Director
of the Company in May 2012. Mr. Yeung is responsible for
the Group's overall sales. Mr. Yeung received his bachelor’s
degree in social sciences (journalism and communications)
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1988. After
graduation until March 1994, Mr. Yeung worked at Nestlé
(China) Ltd. (£ £ (A BJ) B BR A &]). Mr. Yeung then worked as
the senior regional manager in charge of the Beijing Region for
Maxxium Shanghai Limited (B 2% ¥ 8Z 5 (L /8)BR A 7))
from March 1994 to June 2006. From June 2006 to April 2012,
Mr. Yeung worked at Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd. (& & &
o (% E)A R 2 &) as a vice general manager, overseeing
Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd.'s marketing and sales activities.
Mr. Yeung joined the Group as a vice general manager of
Tenwow Food (Group) Co., Ltd. (K12 & R (EEE) B R R 7),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in May
2012.

Ms. AU Lai Hang (EB1E), aged 47, is a vice president of
the Group and was appointed as an executive Director of
the Company in May 2012. Ms. Au is responsible for the
overall sales and marketing and promotions of the Group.
Ms. Au graduated from the University of Hong Kong in 1989
with a bachelor’s degree in social work. Ms. Au worked at
Nestlé (China) Ltd. (2 & (1 1) B BR 2 &) after graduation
to May 1995, starting as a marketing executive trainee and
was promoted to the position of senior product manager.
Ms. Au then worked at A.S. Watson Group (£ B K &)
from May 1995 to August 2011 where she was the
marketing director for water & beverages for Mainland
China when she departed. During her employment, Ms. Au
continued her education and received a master degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong in 1997. Ms. Au joined the Group in May 2012 as
a vice president of Nan Pu International Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. She was appointed as a
director and managing director of Nanpu Fine Wine & Spirits
International Company Limited (F & B BIBR AR A &)),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in August 2014
and July 2015 respectively.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. CHEN Shirley Shiyou (Bf+#), aged 50, is the
non-executive Director. Ms. Chen was nominated by CICC TW
Investment Limited pursuant to its right under the Investors Rights
Agreement dated 31 May 2012 and was appointed as a Director
in May 2012. Ms. Chen has over 20 years of experience in
investment banking. She has been working with China
International Capital Corporation Limited (7 Berikhna
R A 7)) since February 2003 and is now a managing director
mainly responsible for strategy, business development and
investment decisions of its private equity business. Ms. Chen is
also the chairperson of CICC Jia Cheng Investment Management
Co, ld. (P& EKIZEE AR A A) awholy-owned
subsidiary of China International Capital Corporation Limited. Prior
to joining China International Capital Corporation Limited, she was
a director in the investment banking department of Credit Suisse
First Boston in New York and Hong Kong from August 1995 to
March 2002. Ms. Chen obtained a master’s degree in Business
Administration in 1995 from Yale University. From August 2009 to
September 2012, Ms. Chen has been a director of Zhejiang
Beingmate Scientific Industrial Trade Share Co., Ltd. (41T B F3E
B TE RN AR AR, a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 002570). From August 2011 to December
2013, Ms. Chen was a non-executive director of Freetech Road
Recycling Technology (Holdings) Limited (3 A& B AERHY (5
)BBR2 7)), a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (stock code: 06888). From December 2010 to
November 2013, Ms. Chen was a director of GI Technologies
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (F X FBHE (dE ) A& A A1), a company listed
on the growth enterprise market of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 300309).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. LIU Chang-Tzong (£1#5R), aged 60, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company since
17 September 2013. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Mr. Liu graduated from Chien-Hsing Industrial
College (now known as Chien-Hsing University of Science and
Technology) in 1975. Mr. Liu served as a distribution manager
at Taiwan Coca-Cola Ltd. (& /& r] A A £4 i AR 2 al) from
May 1988 to July 1990, and then as a national sales manager
at Taiwan Nestlé Ltd. (& /&& £k n B R A al) from August
1990 to October 1995. Mr. Liu subsequently worked at Nestlé
China Ltd. (2 & (+f B1) B PR A 7)) as the director of national
sales from November 1995 to June 2002, and then at Nestlé
Purina (Shanghai) Ltd (£ )8 # £ E I Mkt B R A 7l) as
executive general manager and director from July 2002 to May
2006. Mr. Liu was last employed by Tingyi (Cayman Islands)
Holding Corporation from July 2006 to February 2012, and
served as executive vice president of the convenient food
division and was chairman of North China before departure.

Mr. CHEUNG Yui Kai Warren (5R&1£), aged 48, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 17 September 2013. He is also the Chairman of the
Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheung graduated
from the University of Southern Queensland of Australia
with a bachelor’s degree in business and has more than 22
years of corporate finance experience. Mr. Cheung held
management positions of corporate finance in several
financial corporations such as Standard Chartered Asia
Limited, Standard Chartered Australia Limited, ABN AMRO
Asia Corporate Finance Limited, SMBC Nikko Securities
(Hong Kong) Limited and Ping An of China Capital (Hong
Kong) Company Limited. Currently, he is the Managing
Director and Head of IBD of Great Wall International
Corporate Finance Limited. Mr. Cheung is also a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
From June 2006 to July 2011, Mr. Cheung served as an
independent non-executive director of Hisense Kelon
Electrical Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 00921.HK
and 000921.S7), a company listed on both The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, respectively.

20154%% o AnnualReport2015 7.3



ESENGHREEE

Directors and Senior Management

ITEMBEE B BT —=FNAT+HHEE
RERARABUIFATES - WA RFWNEES
MiEBZRBEE@XEB  TEER

&=
=

=

TRRNEZEEE
— NN AFELEMEERS(RBEDR) aREE
BT ERERTELZE RN AR AL ERD -
FRAER—NNANFEERFEARBHREZER
RBRAETREE - TAETR —ANNFRE
LB RARBEERELEMN  —NENFRAE
— N NFARA TRERERREBARIRER
EREZEEAR - — W/ \WESNAZ—AN—F
ZR TREETEHEEIATRERRBIRRK -
BEtk  R—NAN—F=ZAEZE—NAAAE+A %
EARAEREIFTHREERIBR REEER
MNEZREEL R—NAAARNF+AE—AANESR
A ThEAErREEEFZES T REKA
BEZREL - —NWANFEARNAZZT—FWA -
FoEERE LG REBEFR A F (Shanghai New
world (Group) Co., Ltd.) BIES K - RENEZIE
TR -E——FEN/AE— —F—REFE
ERRERER -

=

74

KEBFIEA AR AR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

Mr. WANG Longgen ( E#ER ), aged 63, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 17 September 2013. He is also the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Wang was
qualified as a senior economist by the Shanghai Economics
(Circulation) Senior Professional and Technical Title
Qualification Evaluation Committee in 1995. Mr. Wang
graduated from Air Force Political College of the People’s
Liberation Army of China in economics and management in
1999. Mr. Wang also received a master’s degree in
economics from Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics in 1999. From May 1979 to June 1989, Mr. Wang
worked at Huangpu District Tobacco & Wine Co., Ltd. (ZJ#
[%/&)f 2 F)) and Huangpu District Commerce Commission
(BmEEmEZE ) From June 1989 to March 1991, Mr.
Wang served as the deputy director-general of Huangpu
District Industrial and Commercial Administration Bureau (&
HE IETHEIRRB). Subsequently, from March 1991 to
October 1996, Mr. Wang served as the deputy director-
general, director-general and then deputy secretary of the
Chinese Communist Party Committee of Huangpu District
Industrial and Commercial Administration Bureau
(EHE TETHE /). From October 1996 to June 1999,
Mr. Wang was the director-general and then deputy
secretary of the Chinese Communist Party Committee of
Huangpu District Economic and Trade Commission (= /A&
KOEE S ZB€). From June 1999 to April 2011, Mr. Wang
served as vice chairman, president and deputy secretary of
the party committee in Shanghai New World (Group) Co.,
Ltd., and chairman and secretary of the party committee
from April 2011 to January 2013.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHEN Lei (BRZ&), aged 42, is a vice president of the Group
and is in charge of the Group’s administration and human
resources. Mr. Chen received a certificate in foreign affairs
secretary in 1995 and graduated from Shanghai
International Studies University (_E /& 4NBI 58 K £8) in 2001
with a bachelor’s degree in English language and literature.
Mr. Chen received a master’s degree in Business
Administration in 2004 from the MBA program jointly
organized by the Shanghai Maritime University ( /&85 X
2 and the Maastricht School of Management of the
Netherlands ( 5 B4 1@ 5745 & F2 2Bt ). Mr. Chen worked for
Shanghai Huili Group Company Limited (_E/EERE(EB) A7)
from July 1995 and joined Nanpu as an assistant to the
general manager in May 2000. Mr. Chen was promoted to
the position of deputy general manager of Nanpu in March
2009 in charge of human resources and office
administration matters. Mr. Chen was appointed to his
current position in the Group in January 2013.

Ms. LU Ying (BE2), aged 46, is a vice president of the Group
and is primarily responsible for the Group’s financial
operations. Ms. Lu received a bachelor’'s degree in
accounting in 1994 from Changchun Taxation College (£&
TR E2RR ). Ms. Lu received her accountant qualifications in
1996 and became a non-practising member of the Shanghai
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 2009. From July
1989 to December 2000, Ms. Lu vvorked at Jilin Chemical
Industrial Co. Ltd. (F#Mt TRk ER A &) in the accounts
department, and was promoted to the posmon of chief
accountant before her departure. Ms. Lu then served as the
financial manager at Petro China East China Refining &
Marketing Taicang Company (7 B A ji 2= 58 (b T B §5 5 K
&~ a)]) from December 2000 to March 2002. Ms. Lu served
as a deputy general manager in charge of finance and
administration at Shanghai Miaoshi Dairy Co., Ltd. (£ )&%
T I EAR A R]) from January 2003 to October 2008. Ms.
Lu joined the Group in November 2008 as the financial
controller for Tenwow Group, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. She was appointed to her
current position in August 2010.
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Mr. DONG Chen (£ &), aged 42, is a vice president of the
Group and is responsible for the marketing and sales of the
Group's non-alcoholic beverages. Mr. Dong graduated from
Shanghai Jiao Tong University (/83338 AE) in 1994 with
a bachelor’s degree in nuclear reactor engineering. Mr.
Dong served as the general manager of Shanghai Tropicana
Beverages Co., Ltd. (/@ 45 o #B 44 8k £t B R 2 &) from
January 2000 to March 2009. Mr. Dong joined the Group in
January 2010 as the chairman of Shanghai Tenwow Tea Co.,
Ltd. (EBREFRESEBERAR), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Dong also served as deputy
general manager concurrently in Nanpu since April 2011.
He was appointed to his present position in January 2013.

Mr. ZHOU Yanwen (X ), aged 40, is a vice president
of the Group and is primarily responsible for the marketing
and sales of the Group’s food and snacks. Mr. Zhou
graduated from the Wuhan University of Technology (& &
T2 KE) (now known as Wuhan University of Technology
(EUZEHE T KE8)) with a bachelor’s degree in management
engineering in 1999. Mr. Zhou received an executive MBA
degree from Wuhan University (B2 A £2) in 2008. Mr. Zhou
joined the Group in March 2000 as the general manager of
Wuhan Nanpu. Mr. Zhou also serves as the general
manager of several other jointly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, including the general manager of Tenwow
(Wuhan) Food Co., Ltd. (X8 (%) R @ B R A 7)) since
June 2009, the general manager of Wuhan Tenwow Drinks
Co., Ltd. (EUEXRIEZEECEHE R A F]) since August 2010, the
general manager of Tenwow (Chongging) Food Co., Ltd. (B
X E R & A R 2 7)) from December 2010 to December
2014 and the general manager of Xiangyang Nanpu Food LLC
(EBMEHR BB RS T A A) since November 2011,
overseeing the operations and management of each company.
Mr. Zhou was appointed to his present position in January 2013.
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Ms. YANG Xuyi (# fB14), aged 35, is a vice president of
the Group and is primarily responsible for the Group's legal
and compliance and investment matters. Ms. Yang received
her bachelor’s degree in law from the East China Institute of
Politics and Law (¥ & B% 2 Bt) (now known as the East
China University of Political Science and Law (2 3 B A
£)) in 2003, obtained the PRC legal practicing certificate in
2006 and received her master’'s degree in civil and
commercial law from Koguan Law School of Shanghai Jiao
Tong University in June 2013. Ms. Yang worked from July 2003
to February 2004 as a legal assistant at Shanghai Tong He Law
Offices (& i1 i@ 71 12 & & 7 F7) (now known as Shanghai
Jiuzhou Tong He Law Offices (= /& 1 /1 38 A0 22 & == 75 F7)).
Ms. Yang then worked as a special assistant to the chief
operating officer of Project Solutions International Group
(Shanghai) Ltd. (1&5E 1A B BIEE 8 (L)F) BR2AF]) from
February 2004 to July 2005. Ms. Yang joined Nanpu in April
2006 as a legal manager, overseeing legal and compliance
and investment matters. Ms. Yang was appointed to her
current position in the Group in January 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Board of the Company is committed to achieving high
corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance
standards are essential in providing a framework for the
Company to safeguard the interests of Shareholders, to
enhance corporate value and accountability, and to
formulate its business strategies and policies for the
development of the Company.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles and code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year under
review, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code, save and except for
code provision E.1.2 which states that the Chairman of the
Board should attend the AGM of the Company. The related
details are set out in the paragraph headed “Communication
with Shareholders and Investor Relations” below.

The Company will continue to review and enhance its
corporate governance practices to ensure that these will
continue to meet the requirements of the CG Code and the
rising expectations of the Shareholders and investors.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code for securities
transactions by employees (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance
of the Employees Written Guidelines by the employees was
noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises nine members, including
five executive Directors, one non-executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lin Jianhua, Chairman of the Board and Chairman
of the Nomination Committee

Mr. Wang Juewei, Chief Executive Officer and member of
the Remuneration Committee

Mr. Lam Hang Boris, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary

Mr. Yeung Yue Ming

Ms. Au Lai Hang

Non-executive Director:
Ms. Chen Shirley Shiyou
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Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong, member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren, Chairman of the
Audit Committee
Mr. Wang Longgen, Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and member of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 69 to 77 of this annual report.

None of the members of the Board is related to one
another.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are held by Mr. Lin Jianhua and Mr. Wang
Juewei, respectively. The Chairman provides leadership and
is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of
the Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on the
Company’s business development and daily management
and operations generally. Their respective responsibilities
are clearly defined and set out in writing.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors representing one-third of the board with
one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors in
respect of his independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent.
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Non-executive Directors and Directors’ Re-
election

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-
executive directors shall be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election, whereas code provision A.4.2 states
that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be
subject to election by Shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment and that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

Each of the non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors is engaged by a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date.

All Directors of the Company are subject to retirement by
rotation once every three years and any new director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election by
Shareholders at the first general meeting or next AGM after
appointment, as the case may be, pursuant to the Articles
of Association.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and
Contributions of the Board and Management
The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the
information of the Company. The Directors may, upon
request, seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for
discharging their duties to the Company.
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The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews the
contribution required from each Director to perform his/her
responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities
relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

Continuous Professional Development of
Directors

Directors are regularly kept up-to-date with the legal and
regulatory developments, and business and market
changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements. Such induction shall be
supplemented by visits to the Company’s key plant sites
and meetings with senior management of the Company
where appropriate.

Directors are encouraged to participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
They are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at
the Company’s expenses. Internally-facilitated briefings for
Directors will be arranged and reading material on relevant
topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, Mr. Lin Jianhua,
Mr. Wang Juewei, Mr. Lam Hang Boris, Ms. Au Lai Hang, Ms.
Chen Shirley Shiyou, Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong and Mr. Wang
Longgen, had attended a seminar on Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide and Consultation
Conclusions organized by professional advisor.

Mr. Yeung Yue Ming and Ms. Au Lai Hang, executive
Directors, had attended an issuer seminar on Listing
Compliance Update, Listing Enforcement Strategy, Current
Theme and Case Study, and Integrity Management and
Corruption Prevention organized by the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren had attended a seminar on
Prevention of Corruption organized by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption, and seminars on “One
Belt, One Road” initiative and the establishment of the Asian
Infrastructure Investment Bank and Sell-Side Financial Due
Diligence organized by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“"HKICPA”").

Mr. Lam Hang Boris, executive Director, had attended
seminars on Corporate Governance and Regulatory Updates
organized by Tricor Services Limited, seminars on Director’s
duties under the new Companies Ordinance, New Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance: Business Review,
Professionals’ Responsibilities on Anti-money Laundering,
Mainland Tax Conference 2015, Regulatory Updates Relating
to Listed Companies in Hong Kong, Changes in Financial
Reporting under the New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
Recent trends and developments in China Transfer Pricing
and Environmental, Social & Governance Series — Are You
Ready for Sustainability Reporting? organized by HKICPA.
Mr. Lam also attended seminars on ESG Reporting Practical
and Case Sharing, ESG & Risk Management, Challenges in
Cyber and Mobile Technology and Managing Big Data
organized by professional advisors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to the Shareholders
upon request.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members who are all
independent non-executive Directors with one of whom
possessing the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The
members are Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren (chairman), Mr.
Liu Chang-Tzong and Mr. Wang Longgen.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the
Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting
process, internal control procedures and risk management
system, audit plan and relationship with external auditor,
and arrangements to enable employees of the Company to
raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters of
the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit
Committee held three meetings to review annual financial
results and reports in respect of the year ended 31
December 2014, interim financial results and reports in
respect of the six months ended 30 June 2015, and
significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance
procedures, internal control and risk management systems,
scope of work and appointment of external auditor,
connected transactions and arrangements for employees to
raise concerns about possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor three
times during the year.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
with a majority of independent non-executive Directors. The
members are Mr. Wang Longgen (chairman) and Mr. Liu
Chang-Tzong, independent non-executive Directors, and
Mr. Wang Juewei, executive Director.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee
include reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, the remuneration policy
and structure for all Directors and senior management; and
establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year
ended 31 December 2015 to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy
and structure of the Company, and the remuneration
packages of the executive Directors and senior
management and other related matters.

The remuneration of Directors is determined with reference
to their experience, qualifications, responsibilities involved
in the Company and the prevailing market conditions.
Details of emoluments of Directors for the year under
review are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements. The emoluments paid to senior management
by band for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out
below:

EREEEAR

Number of

T AR 500,0007T
A% 500,000 7T &2 A ¥ 1,000,000 7T
AR #1,000,000 7T A £

Senior Management

Nil to RMB500,000 9
RMB500,000 to RMB1,000,000 5
Over RMB1,000,000 -
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, with
the majority being independent non-executive Directors.
The members are Mr. Lin Jianhua (chairman), executive
Director, and Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong and Mr. Wang Longgen,
independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and
appointment of directors, making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and succession planning of
directors, and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various aspects set out
in the Board diversity policy, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience. The Nomination Committee would
discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend
them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee would consider
the candidate’s character, qualifications, experience,
independence and other relevant criteria necessary to
complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year
ended 31 December 2015 to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring directors standing for re-
election at the AGM. The Nomination Committee
considered that sufficient diversity has been maintained in
the Board.
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set
out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company'’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the
Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model
Code and Employees Written Guidelines, and the
Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and
Board Committee meetings and the general meeting of the
Company held during the year ended 31 December 2015 is
set out in the table below:

HE /BB

Attendance/Number of Meetings
BRRAFAE BARRAE

REZEE FHMEEE ERZEEE" Annual Extraordinary

Nomination Remuneration Audit General General

Name of Director Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting

iR Lin Jianhua 4/4 11 N/A N/A 0/1 0/1

THE Wang Juewei 4/4 N/A 11 N/A 0/1 0/1

R Lam Hang Boris 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 11 i7Al

5 Yeung Yue Ming 3/4 N/A N/A N/A 0/1 0/1

[& BB Au Lai Hang 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 171 0/1

i Chen Shirley Shiyou 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 0/1 0/1

EEAS Liu Chang-Tzong 4/4 1/ 1/ 3/3 0N 0/1

REE Cheung Yui Kai 4/4 N/A N/A 3/3 171 0/1
Warren

TER Wang Longgen 4/4 1/1 1/ 3/3 0/1 0/1

RER - TEDEFNTES(BREBIIFNTES)
BR-RBERITESNEZ -

The Chairman has also held one meeting with the non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) without the presence of executive Directors
during the year.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2015.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company'’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 92 to 93.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration to be paid to the external auditor of the
Company in respect of audit services for the year ended 31
December 2015 amounted to RMB3,580,000. There was no
non-audit services provided by the external auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2015.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, risk management
functions, the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function. No
material deficiencies or significant areas of concern have
been identified so far.

The Group has an Internal Audit Department. The Internal
Audit Department plans its internal audit schedules
annually. The internal audit includes comprehensive audits
of procedures, practices and internal controls of both
operational and financial units of the Group. The internal
audit plan is then submitted to the Directors for review and
comment.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Board appointed Mr. Lam Hang Boris as its Company
Secretary in accordance with the Articles of Association
and in compliance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2015, Mr. Lam
complied with the professional training requirement of
taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training as set out in Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders” interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed for each substantially separate
issue at general meetings, including the election of
individual directors. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing
Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general
meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting
by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association,
extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date
of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the Secretary for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association, any
member who wishes to propose a person other than a
retiring director at a general meeting for election as director
of the Company may lodge a notice in writing of the
intention to propose that person for election as director and
a notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be
elected at the Head Office at Suite 1101, 11th Floor, 28
Hennessy Road, Hong Kong or at the Registration Office of
the Company at Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
period for lodgment of the notices will commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and the
minimum length of the period during which such notices to
the Company may be given will be at least 7 days.

Shareholders who wish to put forward other proposals at
general meetings may follow the procedures set out above
to request the Company to convene an extraordinary
general meeting for the transaction of business specified in
the requisition.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board of the
Company by sending written enquiries to the Company at
the following address. The Company will not normally deal
with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as
mentioned above to the following:

Address:  The Company Secretary

Suite 1101, 11th Floor, 28 Hennessy Road, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2808 1721
Email: enquiry@tenwowfood.com
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For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit
and send the original duly signed written requisition, notice
or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address apart from other specified address, if any, and
provide their full name, contact details and identification in
order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may
be disclosed as required by law.

Shareholders may call the Company at (852) 2808 1972 for
assistance if required.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investor understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in
particular, through AGMs and other general meetings. At
the AGM, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are
available to meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

According to CG Code Provision E.1.2, the chairman of the
board should attend the AGM. Mr. Lin Jianhua, Chairman of
the Board was unable to attend the 2015 AGM held on 18
May 2015 due to a business engagement. Mr. Lin Jianhua
has appointed Mr. Lam Hang Boris, executive Director, to
attend and answer guestions on his behalf at the AGM. Mr.
Lin Jianhua will use his best endeavours to attend all future
Shareholders’ meetings of the Company.

During the year under review, the Company has not made
any changes to its Articles of Association. An up to date
version of the Articles of Association is available on the
Company's website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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To the shareholders of Tenwow International Holdings
Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Tenwow International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “"Group”) set out on
pages 94 to 204, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

| EBRBAFAEL—E

T h: +852 2289 8888 {HE: +852 2810 9888
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’'s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2016
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

R=ZZ—AF+=-A=+—8
As at 31 December 2015

mEEERER

R+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-hfF —E—-mF
2015 2014
AR¥ET AREETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
ME - WENMRE Property, plant and equipment 6 1,008,556 745,911
—+ {55 PR A Land use rights 7 141,418 93,290
EEE Intangible assets 8 60,757 61,110
REEZE R RIHRE Investments in associate 9 1,036 27,704
R—EEEREIMNEE Investment in a joint venture 10 434,084 400,757
BEEFSEHMERE Deferred income tax assets 21 13,368 15,079
1,659,219 1,343,851
REBEE Current assets
=8 Inventories 12 847,702 707,881
B 5 N E M EW R IE Trade and other receivables 13 2,963,182 2,351,712
Z R4 & Restricted cash 14 364,411 468,417
He RBEZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 14 448,653 693,013
4,623,948 4,221,023
EEHAE Total assets 6,283,167 5,564,874
= EQUITY
i Share capital 15 164,634 164,634
f& A% B Share premium i[5 1,149,151 1,263,332
E Other reserves 17 234,246 201,293
REBAF| Retained earnings 16 1,275,982 955,507
2,824,013 2,584,766
IR R Non-controlling interests 75,555 49,160
S Total equity 2,899,568 2,633,926
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
R-ZE—AF+-_HA=+—H
As at 31 December 2015

R+=A=+—~H
As at 31 December
—F-EF —T0F

2015 2014
AR¥ TR AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
8f& LIABILITIES
FREBEME Non-current liabilities
B Borrowings 20 358,885 46,171
EEFTEHMAE Deferred income tax liabilities 21 26,690 25,953
IEGSEEEUF TGN Deferred income on government grants 18 21,137 23,242
406,712 95,366
REBAE Current liabilities
B 5 N E FRIE Trade and other payables 19 1,397,599 1,234,833
BNEAFT SR B fE Current income tax liabilities 84,761 73,863
B Borrowings 20 1,491,612 1,523,971
BT BRI W AR BN Z Current portion of deferred income
on government grants 18 2,915 2,915
2,976,887 2,835,582
BEHAH Total liabilities 3,383,599 2,930,948
ERRAERAE Total equity and liabilities 6,283,167 5,564,874
F102E 204 EMMIEBERE VB RER MBS - The notes on pages 102 to 204 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
FURENENMBERREBEZTEN _E—F The financial statements on pages 94 to 101 were approved

At -B#tx IRREBEFSEE - by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2016 and were
signed on its behalf.

EFE E2
Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HE-_T—RAF+-_A=1t—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE+=-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-hfF —E—-mF
2015 2014
B =E AR¥ TR AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
A Revenue 5 4,908,022 5,084,012
SHE KA Cost of sales 23 (3,992,520) (4,230,150)
EF Gross profit 915,502 853,862
2 A A Distribution costs 23 (251,990) (211,439)
TR Administrative expenses 23 (172,148) (143,046)
E A Other income 22 52,141 19,469
Haplas /(BE) — 558 Other gains/(losses) — net 842 (2,314)
KRR Operating profit 544,347 516,532
EUR TN Finance income 15,090 20,931
B R RR R Finance expenses (99,039) (96,635)
B RA — BE Finance expenses — net 25 (83,949) (75,704)
FEAGBS: & &) m A Share of profit of associates 9 3 514
FE(E—EE & AR m Share of profit of a joint venture 26 32,083 29,736
FRETEBH AR R Profit before income tax 492,484 471,078
FR8%: B2 Income tax expense 27 (126,176) (113,797)
FERERN Profit for the year 366,308 357,281
Hit2EWA Other comprehensive income
HEnpeE D HEEEwmEH  Items that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or [0Ss
— GNEEIT B =R — Currency translation differences 1,198 (1,783)
FEFREWABE Total comprehensive income
for the year 367,506 355,498
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BE-_ZT—hAF+=-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE+t=-—A=t+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-hfF —T—OF

2015 2014
B sE AR¥ TR AREFIT
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
FERANEERN : Total profit attributable to:
RARE=RE A Equity holders of the Company 350,809 345,335
EE T Non-controlling interests 15,499 11,946
366,308 357,281
BEBAEBR : Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
RAEE=FEA Equity holders of the Company 352,007 343,552
e R Non-controlling interests 15,499 11,946
367,506 355,498
ARAAEREFE ARG Earnings per share for profit
R A 198 AR 2 F attributable to equity holders
of the Company
— R EARRF — Basic earnings per share
(R ARES3IER) (expressed in RMB cents per share) 28 16.92 16.65
— SR — Diluted earnings per share
(AEFBRARBSTIER) (expressed in RMB cents per share) 28 16.85 16.54
F102E 204 EMMIFERERE VMRS - The notes on pages 102 to 204 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-T-AF+-A=t+—ALEE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

BERARAEREREEA
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FRER
BA  BAsE HitRHE  RERA Non-  BEm#H
Share Share Other  Retained @zt controlling Total

capital  premium  reserves  earnings Total  interests Equity
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTR AR%TR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
(Max15)  (MaEs)  (BsEt7)  (FfEt6)

(Note15)  (Note15)  (Note 17)  (Note 16)

—Z-mM&E—-FA—HF  Balanceat1January 2014

g 164,634 1,385,486 168,621 642,039 2,360,780 46,262 2,407,042
HEBA Comprehensive income
FE R Profit for the year = = = 345,335 345,335 11,946 357,281
FEABZERA Other comprehensive
income for the year - - (1,783) - (1,783) - (1,783)
GERARA Total comprehensive
income = = (1,783) 345,335 343,552 11,946 355,498
HAEEENRS Transactions with owners
e Dividends - (122150) z - (122154) (0,048 (131,202
BRDFERRMEE  Pre-PO share award scheme
sHEl—ERiEE — value of current
REE employee services - - 2,588 - 2,588 - 2,588

HREERSZMME . Total transaction with
REZTEERD owners, recognised

directly in equity - (122,154) 2,588 - (119,566) (9,048)  (128,614)
BTG Appropriation to statutory
reserve - - 31,867 (31,867) - - -
—Z-Q[E Balance at 31 December
+ZB=t-HB#&#® 2014 164,634 1,263,332 201,293 955,507 2,584,766 49160 2,633,926
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—hFt-A=t+—HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BERADREREEA
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FERES
RE  BRAEE HitRE REEA Non- RHRAR
Share Share Other  Retained @5 controlling Total
capital premium  reserves  earnings Total interests Equity
ARETT AR¥ETRT AR®TR ARETT AR%®Tn ARETRT AR%TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(WaE15)  (faE15)  (M&E17)  (RfEEie)
(Note 15)  (Note 15)  (Note 17)  (Note 16)
“ZE-A%-H—H Balanceat1January 2015
S 164,634 1,263,332 201,293 955,507 2,584,766 49,160 2,633,926
FEBA Comprehensive income
EEEA Profit for the year - - - 350,809 350,809 15,499 366,308
FEEMBEZARA Other comprehensive
income for the year - - 1,198 - 1,198 - 1,198
GEARA Total comprehensive
income - - 1,198 350,809 352,007 15,499 367,506
HREEENRS Transactions with owners
%8 Dividends - (114,181) - - (114,181) (9,104)  (123,285)
BRDAERIRN Pre-IPO share award scheme
BT 8 — BAl — value of current
EERBERE employee services - - 1,421 - 1,421 - 1,421
HE A B HER Capital contribution from
BRERRA non-controlling interests
of subsidiaries - - - - - 20,000 20,000
EREENRS Total transaction with owners,
recognised directly in equity - (114,181) 1,421 - (112,760) 10,896  (101,864)
ERRETERE Appropriation to
statutory reserve - - 30,334 (30,334) - - -
“E-1E Balance at 31 December
+ZA=+—-H#&t 2015 164,634 1,149,151 234,246 1,275,982 2,824,013 75,555 2,899,568

£ 102 E 204 HHMIE R B M MR ERED

The notes on pages 102 to 204 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-_ZT-—FRF+-_A=+—BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

BEt+=-A=1+—BHLEFfF
Year ended 31 December
—E-RF

—E—OF

2015 2014
iz AR¥ET T ARET T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

RETEHNRERE Cash flows from operating activities

e (FTR),/FiBRE Cash (used)/generated in operations 30 (23,741) 401,747
BUFE Interest received 18,712 11,738
B TS Income tax paid (112,830) (110,991)
esEEIEe Ond),/mA Net cash (outflow)/inflow from

R operating activities (117,859) 302,494
RETHNRESRE Cash flows from investing activities
W EE I B A R IR B & Deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary (31,518) =
WS AR - HFRUEE Acquisition of subsidiaries,

{838 4 net of cash acquired - (102,146)
BB T (b Purchase of land use rights (50,368) (487)
BEYE - BE k& Purchase of property,

plant and equipment (241,942) (259,556)
HEME - HERH&E Proceeds from disposal of property,

FT1S 3% plant and equipment 30 896 920
BEELEE Purchase of intangible assets (1,148) (112)
S B & N B TS Proceeds from disposal of an associate 9 14,500 =
WEEHIR S R ERE Net cash outflow from investing activities (309,580) (361,381)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BE-_Z-—-AF+-A=+—HLLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

BEt+t-—A=+—HLESHF
Year ended 31 December

“E—8F

2015

AR®BT T
RMB’000

—F—mE
2014
ARETT
RMB'000

METDNRESRE Cash flows from financing activities
BB A R SRR R B Capital contribution from non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries 20,000 -
RITIERFTE R Proceeds from bank borrowings 2,205,024 1,553,993
ERRITHER Repayment of bank borrowings (1,924,669) (1,302,692)
BERFE Interest paid (98,822) (95,721)
18/ (1) 2R 4 Proceeds from/(payments of)
restricted cash 104,007 (350,130)
TE AR AR Dividends paid to equity holders
A ARNKRER of the Company (114,181) (122,154)
X e IR AR AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests (9,104) (9,048)
BEFBHRLTA(RL) Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
financing activities 182,255 (325,752)
REeRESEEYNFRD Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents (245,184) (384,639)
R e KR FEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 693,013 1,077,535
b R FEHIR S K Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
REZBYHNTE on cash and cash equivalents 824 117
HMRESRESEZEY cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 448,653 693,013

F102 2 204 BRI A4 E G HRAR AR IS - The notes on pages 102 to 204 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_T—RAF+-_A=1t—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

1 FEEN—RER

AR EAMEESE (ERBRR)NR T ——
FNAZTHERBEREHEARIE(ZE—
TEEIRN)CREHSEMKIREREE
[RAR e RARIEBRERZ=ZZ—=F1H
TEREBABERIMERAA ([EBBHR
BT )) £ R o 5 it ¥ = & i 4k & Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands °

RABN(—HEREEZERAR) REMBRAREE
EREARKXMBE(THEDEEHRH - Rén
TRANEMBERNEE  DERES -

BRIEFSHHA  REMHEHREAARE (AR
D2 ZEVBKBRREAESTSER_Z
—NF=ZA -+ —BH#bETIEE-

2 EESBREERE

ARG EVHRREANEZGFTHRRIAR
TX - BREEHASN - L FBRIER T RE T
BEENERER -

21 wEEE
RNABMEETBRRDBEE ST
WMEER((BEEMBEREER )RR -
IRAE M BHRERECIRELKAERE

102 <EEEERARAT ¢ Tenwow International Holdings Limited

GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP
Tenwow International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated by Mr. Lin Jianhua (the
“Controlling Shareholder”) in the Cayman Islands
on 25 August 2011 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (2010
Revision) of the Cayman Islands. The Company's
ordinary shares were listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK")
on 17 September 2013. The address of its registered
office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.

The Company, an investment holding company, and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the manufacturing, distribution and trading of
beverages, food and snacks and others in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB"), unless otherwise stated. These
financial statements were approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 22 March 2016.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRS"). The
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.
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2 EESHEERE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 RELEE(H) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

RATABT BB RE LW B |REK
FEERETHREI G - ENREE
BEGCRAAKENG S BEBEPT
EEAE - MEARE S L= E e
FERES - IO MRE M RREAR
RGBS -

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial
Statements are disclosed in Note 4.

22 BN BENBEENED 2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures
(@) AEBECHRMPFITMNEERPE (@) New and amended standards

Ll
TIFRI REET AR —F—5
F—A—BRBZMBFEERER
R -

BB SR 2010-201238 8
M FEBCE BB SR E £
RIS (&N E | KBS
SEHAERIE 2457 REHE 5 W EE

adopted by the Group

The following new and amended
standards are mandatory for the first time
for the financial year beginning 1 January
2015:

Amendments from annual
improvements to HKFRSs — 2010-
2012 Cycle, on HKFRS 8, ‘Operating
segments’, HKAS 24, ‘Related party

{ELEERT ° disclosures'.
—  BHEgE %R 2011-2013 48 & — Amendments from annual

B A BB R
RIS 13% [ AR BEE]
T o

improvements to HKFRSs — 2011-
2013 Cycle, on HKFRS 13, ‘Fair value
measurement’.
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2 EESTBERE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
22 S BENEENES (E) 2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)
(@) AKEECHEMHEET BRI E (@ New and amended standards

Al (&) adopted by the Group (Continued)
Ltz RRABH REFR KRS ¥ Amendments and interpretations as
& BB RRSR G N EmEETERY mentioned above have no material effect
Z o on the Group’s operating results, financial

position or comprehensive income.

AN - FHEBCATUEFIN B 622%) In addition, the requirements of Part 9
F9F [ARB MBS | AEERA “Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong
T ERERNER - Btk © 526 1 Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
WEMETERNE2RMNFESF come into operation during the financial
BE) o year, as a result, there are changes to

presentation and disclosures of certain
information in the consolidated financial

statements.
(b) =B —FAFELENEBEANEEEREN (b) Standards, amendments and
ZRHRBEENBITRZAE interpretations to existing standards
effective in 2015 but not relevant to
the Group

B T3 AMEH 2%
M FERBEXR

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after

ERSFIERIFE 195%55] SEMRA —E—mtH—H
Amendment to HKAS 19 Defined benefits 1 July 2014
BRI MEERE 35K EBast —E—m+A—H
HKFRS 3 Business combinations 1 July 2014
EEGTERE 165 M - WE k& —T—HtA—H
HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment 1 July 2014
BB T4 38 5% mAE —E—mtH—H
HKAS 38 Intangible assets 1 July 2014
BB ETHERE 405 HEMEHE —ZE—mM+HA—H
HKAS 40 Investment property 1 July 2014

104 =EEEERARAT ¢ Tenwow International Holdings Limited



B IS SRR MY EE

Notes to the Financial Statements
BE-F-HEF+-A=t+-BLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2 EESHHEERE@®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

(c) MHARHGNFEAFZE (c) New standards and interpretations

not yet adopted

Up to the date of issue of this report, the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (“HKICPA") has issued the

following new standards, amendments

2.2 SBRAMBMENEE (E)

BEEARERY BEGFHMAE
(BREMAE ) CEMTIIE
AEBEEERBER T —AF—
A—BRANFESH IR R RE

M AARKERREF RO E

A - (ERT R fE

and interpretations which are relevant to
the Group's operations but are not yet
effective for the annual accounting period
beginning after 1 January 2015 and also
have not been early adopted by the

Group:
BTSSR RH 2%
RN FEESREEXR
Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
BB BIRELERE 1055E] AT BmE ZE—RF-H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2016
BB BRELERE 11 5RER] BETH ZE—RF-H—H
Amendment to HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements 1 January 2016
ERRBRELEFE 12K ER] REMERER KR —Z—"¥—-A—H
Amendment to HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2016
BB BRELRE 1457 EERLIRR ZE—RF-H—H
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016
ERGHEFE 1R REE —Z—"¥—-A—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative 1 January 2016
BEA G EAE165E3] I ER ZE—RF-H—H
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment 1 January 2016
BRGHERE 27 R B RARBUBRE —Z—"¥-A—H
Amendment to HKAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial statements 1 January 2016
BA G ERIE 2855 3] A/NIE 2 —E—RE—F—H
Amendments to HKAS 28 Investment in associates 1 January 2016
BB ERE B HRIERT B EAE —Z—¥-A—-H
Amendments to HKAS 38 Intangible assets 1 January 2016
BB ERELERE 155 EREP & RMBARR —T-N\F-A—H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
ERRBREENE IR tRTA —Z-\¥—A—H
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
BB BRELRE 1657 HE —E-NE—-R—H%
EREBUGRE
AEBIZE 15 555
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019 or when
apply HKFRS 15
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policy and

2 EEEFEERBE® 2

22 EFBERNKBENEEH(E)

106

(c)

1e AR ER 4R O H E R M2k ()

BrLatFEIN  HEGHMAGER
mEESEEHB  UBRE_T
——EE_T-FREAHPH
HTEERE WEHATIERE
b REEHAREA TR EER
EFBIP R RERT BB R
EAH

disclosures (Continued)

(c)

New standards and interpretations
not yet adopted (Continued)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has
issued the annual improvements project
which addresses several issues in the
2012-2014 reporting cycle, and includes
changes to the following standards. The
Group has not applied the following
revised HKFRSs published in the annual
improvements project.

BT5AMER 2%
B FEREER

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after

BBHBRELRE ST FERKILEER RS EE ZE—RFtA—H
HKFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued 1July 2016
operations
BBBRELRET R SRITE: WE ZE—RFtA—H
HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures 1July 2016
BB ERE 195 EERH —Z-"¥tA—H
HKAS 19 Employee benefits 1July 2016
BB GRS 345 F BB RE —Z-"¥tA—-H
HKAS 34 Interim financial reporting 1July 2016

AEBIEREZEFED - B7] kit
BUAKEMBERROZE - BRI

The Group is in the process of assessing
the impact of these standards,

EEEHN - B ATTE AR Al R amendments and interpretations on the
B GEHAREEN B HRREKEXN financial statements of the Group. The
& adoption of the above is currently not

KIEEEIZRRAIRAR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

expected to have a material impact on the
financial statements of the Group other
than the disclosure changes.
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2 EEEHBEREE®W) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 A0tERB 2.3 cConsolidation
NGB =N = == =k b= s A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured

EER(PREABEER)  EXAEER
B2 B 7 B B T A R B R A R B ok
ZHAE DR ER  WHERENEBES
ZEBMENZE LR - ANEER

entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the

EHZERE - B A EEGIEERER ability to affect those returns through its power

EE 7 BES AR o (i8R e g over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated

Itz BREEFEIEE AR - from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

(a) EKE6t (@) Business combinations

AEBIZWB AR EH A AR -
WIEHB R AEENLE - B
HREE WBHRNAEAAE
EMEE - RAKEETRAES
MAEE - IBENHERRN
RHEBLHMEENERNEESA
BEORAEE - EXBE G K
Br B EEARAZN AR
REARBE  NFRESNKER
HIW At BERE -

ARER B R R W B B R Y
KEEAIE RS - WRHRY
FFERERARE R EES X
BTESAARBREEFERG

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present

el Z HEzs - B IEIE R RN AR ownership interests and entitle their
AR AR EBENIED R E Y holders to a proportionate share of the

RABHEEFETREREAREL
LEBIEtE » FRIERERNAAHM
AR DRI E R B 2 e BER
B BRIFBFBHM B MEERRE A

Hipst 8ELEHE -

entity’s net assets in the event of
liguidation are measured at either fair
value or the present ownership interests'’
proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 consolidation (Continued)

2 EESHERBE® 2

2.3 &ftRE (8

108

(@

EBA0(H)
WREHRRIR A FEE ARSI -

WMEBEHFOREEBAET  WETE
ERBBH R ERN KE R B
MEREE  ENTEERE BN
NREE: BN EELANEIAA
EiER AR

AEBESEENEMXRREE - B
WEAHNAREERE - RRR
BEXRENIREENAREE
MERES  REFESTERF
39RAV R ERER IR S F R E M
REWEHED - D ERERAN
AREETENTE  HEROEER
AR -

PREEEE  WEHRNEMIFE
R BE  MEBHREMBE
RO WBEPNRAREE Fi
BABANAEANFEERE
B HEBRUEEIR- - MERE
BANBRT - EEYHE  #R
M SFE R AR s MR R AR E
AN BERBANBATFE
ENAREER EZHAIERAER
m& PR (EE2.10) °
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(@

Business combinations (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to
fair value at the acquisition date; any gains
or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of
the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39
either in profit or loss or as a change to
other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the
total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the income
statement (Note 2.10).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 cConsolidation (Continued)

2 EESTTHERE®) 2

2.3 &6tRE (8

(a)

(b)

ERA6(E)

SEANFRS - BHEXHHKRE
BTG T AL -  RERBRTT
LASTEE - B AR MENBBES R
FEEHAR  UEREAAKER
FBBR — 3

\HEERENNEARERZSD

SRR e AE 1T AR BT AR
MRXPARSERR S BIEEE
BB RRIHAEANEERTFEA
FMETNRS o FIXHEMEE
B A St (B (8 2240 A FE 1 P U R B B8
RAFEERBEMNZRYSE
e MFERERLEFRENEE
TRACERERE R T ©

(@

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)
Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded

in equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 cConsolidation (Continued)

2 EESTHEREW®) 2

2.3 &06t8RE (&)
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HEEEENGFEEAAEE K
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Y25 o FERR R A BUB S AR VE AR &R
BEERHEREEERAE - &
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RV BHRRTPRE L 2FE
E(BREHE)MREE AIRHME
RAIMIEBAERERR
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()

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income (“OCI") in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.

2.3.1Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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2 EESHEERE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 AT 2.4 Associates

=]

BENREASEREATENERE
HIENER - —RME  ARERBER
a8 B HE B 20% £ 50% 1R A - Bt A
AR E AR A ARR © IRIBREZE © 1))
BIRERRAN - MAEKERHEK - &
BERBERETAIEZBRENEE R
REEREENZE - NAEBENEERRNER
EERKERDHRNEE - AEEEK
B E AR AR - BN EFT(E A]
BREERBBEZFANENZRAR
BREE-

R E R RS RH R EDRE E
ATEN  BEEREMEEWA S ERL
RSP EH B RBE(WER) -

ANE B FEERE L A B IR BE & B R U ek
RATER - MEEERBENHEMEEK
AZBRIRE 2 EIRA NFER - WARE
AL ENEREE - ASEEGBEED
ANEEENNBREEZEE QRN
T 2 (/B ¥ 1 {A] L fth 4 35K 360 i LR IE)
REETSERE—FEBE  RIELEH
BAESETEAKEABE R RIR -

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the
investor’s share of the profit or loss of the
investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investments in associates include
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an
associate, any difference between the cost of
the associate and the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwiill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or
loss is recognised in the income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in OCI
is recognised in OCI with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group's share of losses in
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.
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2 EESHEEBE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 BEERNT(E) 2.4 Associates (Continued)

112

AEBESEARESANETRSAEM
FEEEBRRYE LR RNKREDHE - W0
EE - AREFERENBBERKE AT
A EI SRR R E AR (E A 25 - WHERRR
Was R [FEABEE R REA ] 55

7K 5 8 B 2 B R R ) 2 IR AN R 2
S FTE SR B R BRI A5 ok P R
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HHEDRMEE - RSB TRMEREE
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The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this is
the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to “share of profit of associates” in the
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group
and its associate are recognised in the Group’s
financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associates are recognised in the income
Statement.
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2 EESHEERE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
25 E¥RH 2.5 Joint arrangements

AEECHEMBERERHGIERRATANH
HEEAF1H - REFFBYHREE
AENG BFEREENSRERM
B AERHNREDBAARRKER
BERE - AEEEHEEMBEAERHE
MHEYETEREERT - BERFIRE
RN °

RIEEE - AL QR TBEREAAA
B HRIEAKERGBBRIBRARE
ERRANEBNERAE - EAKEZ
BEX-—RERRNEBERBAIMEERNHE
ZRERANER (BREEMNEE LB
AEBEEZRERARFRENRIE
) RIRSEE T RERE—TER - RIE
SEAZBRCREERANK -

AEEERESENRAMFNARERZHH
BRASEEZFEEARNEHGER
TAEH - RIER DB RIEREED R
B BAREREBBETTALHE -8R
ANERRCRFTREEUNEAE
BRI ©

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements. Under HKFRS 11, investments in
joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each investor.
The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint
ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting,
interests in joint ventures are initially recognised
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or
losses and movements in OCI. When the
Group's share of losses in a joint venture equals
or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures
(which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint ventures), the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest in the joint
ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of the joint ventures have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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2.6

2.7
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SNEEIE

(@) ThEEMIIRE R
AEBEEERBNMERERMAIIER
PUZERREMENEREER
BOEBAE(HEEE]) - MK
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive Directors that
makes strategic decisions.

2.7

Foreign currency translation

(@

(b)

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group's entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Group’s
presentation currency. Other than the
Company and subsidiaries located outside
Mainland China, whose functional
currency is Hong Kong Dollar, all other
subsidiaries’ functional currency is RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying
net investment hedges.
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(iii)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

()

Transactions and balances (Continued)
Foreign exchange gains and losses that
relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive
income within “finance income or cost”. Al
other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income within
"other gains/(losses) — net”.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

() assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rates on the
dates the transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation

differences are recognised in OCI.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in
OCl.

Property, plant and equipment
Construction-in-progress (the “CIP") represents
buildings, plant and machinery under
construction or pending installation and is
stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition and capitalised
borrowing costs. No depreciation is made on
CIP until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are available for use, the
costs are transferred to property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with
the policy as stated below.

Property, plant and equipment include buildings,
machinery and equipment, vehicles and other
equipments. All property, plant and equipment
are stated at historical cost less depreciation
and impairment (if any). Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

29

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

— Buildings 16-30 years
— Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
— Vehicles 3-10 years
— Other equipments 2-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within “other gains/
(losses) — net” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Land use rights

All land in Mainland China is state-owned or
collectively-owned and no individual land
ownership right exists. The Group acquired the
rights to use certain land. The premiums paid
for such right are treated as prepayment for
operating lease and recorded as land use rights,
which are amortised over the lease periods of
20 to 50 years using the straight-line method.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Intangible assets

(@

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of
subsidiaries, represents the excess of the
consideration transferred over the Group'’s
interest in net fair value of the net
identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and
the fair value of the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUS"), or groups
of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit
or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are
undertaken annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of goodwill is compared to
the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value
less costs to sell. Any impairment is
recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.

Computer software

Costs associated with maintaining
computer software programmes are
recognised as an expense as incurred.
Acquired computer software licences are
capitalised on the basis of costs incurred
to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. The cost are amortised over
their estimated useful lives of 10 years.
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2 EESHEERE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

210 B EE (5B) 2.10 Intangible assets (Continued)
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(c) Trademark

Separately acquired trademark is shown
at historical cost. Trademark has finite
useful lives and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost of trademark over
their estimated useful lives of 5-10 years.

(d) Mining licenses

Mining licenses acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. Mining licenses
have a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of
mining rights over their estimated useful
lives.

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for
example goodwill, are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of an impairment
at each reporting date.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets

(a)

(b)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following categories: at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to maturity investments
and available for sale. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.
Financial assets held by the Group are
loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date.
These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’'s loans and receivables
comprise “trade and other receivables”,
“cash and cash equivalents” and
“restricted cash” in the balance sheet.

Recognition and measurement
Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Loans
and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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2 EZSTBEBEE®E) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
212 ¢RMEE(H) 2.12 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) TERMTE(E) (b) Recognition and measurement
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The Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence

TREELTRME - that a financial asset or a group of
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indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and
where observable data indicate that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the l0ss is
recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using
an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an

EFRARNE)  ABAERERR event occurring after the impairment was
BEEER B BERGRE E2ERER recognised (such as an improvement in
A e the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of

the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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2 EESHEEBE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
213 7E 2.13 Inventories

122

FERKAETERFEMENRESE
ABR o BZE A DIFEF IR E © R I
FRMOKABRERM M BERSET - H
MEERARABELEERE (RETEE
BENRFTH)  ETBREERKA - AIZHE
FE/SBAFXRHBIET MG ESERE
R EHER -

214 E 5 R H A EWRIE
FEWHIERE AR KL EE T A mE
ERRGIREMEREFLNRIE - WEH
N E At FE U R IB Y UK B TR HATE — FF DA
BEWoEARDEE  BASEAIERD

B 5 Rk H Al M IRVIIA A QT EE#E
R BRFAERN RERE HR AR
BEBETE -

215 RERBFLEEY
Re MRS ESEBYREFHEES « R1TA
HEZR - —EAKAAZ N EME RS
MENERE o

2.16 TRFFEE
ZBRHIRE BTFEHRRIBITETAIERE
BEAMRE  (EAZELERE - RK -
RITAH ZR RIRTTIE KA ELR -

KRB AR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs
and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling
EXPENSES.

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
provided in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is
expected within one year, they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other
short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

2.16 Restricted cash

Restricted cash represents restricted term
deposit and amounts held by banks, which are
not available for the Group’s use, as securities
for issuance of letters of credit, letter of
guarantee, bank acceptance notes and bank
borrowings.



B IS SRR MY EE

Notes to the Financial Statements
BE-T-AF+-A=t+—ALEE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2 EESHEERE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.17 g4 2.17 Share capital
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Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.18 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less. If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Borrowing costs
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General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is recognised in equity, respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is
calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where
the group companies operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.21 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)
(b) Deferred income tax

0]

(i)

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised,
using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the
temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except
where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

()

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.

2.22 Employee benefits

(@

Pension obligations

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong
employees to join the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution
scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the
Group and its Hong Kong employees make
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation, subject to a cap of HK$1,500
(changed from HK$1,250 since July 2014)
per person per month and any excess
contributions are voluntary.



B IS SRR MY EE

Notes to the Financial Statements
BE-T-AF+-A=t+—ALEE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2 EEETBERE® 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
222 BEER(&B) 2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)
(@) BARESEHK(E) (a) Pension obligations (Continued)
ZNES B 7E AR B K PE Y The Group entities in Mainland China

(b)

B2 8 MmA
BABR AT 2B P9 2 b B KPR B AR A
RERFEARBHEE - LRIEE
BHmesTAOLKARZSFTE
R &= iEE R A A BB
FIMRE » IRIBEZFTE - BUTERPT
RIERPAARE & BIRENKES A
FERNRABNEL -

BREERIN - NEEBABAERMD
RINEBAE

EEER

AEBETFEAENEENERSR
RSZEBFEPNEFRES - A
SEREBEEEFEETEOLERA
AZEESHRF RS EREH
BRABTRFIRE - NEEA X
FESNBEETERNSHEMAOMH
Ko MZEESEHORFINESE
RS2 3H ©

(b)

participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by
relevant government authorities for its
employees in Mainland China and
contribute to these plans based on certain
percentage of the salaries of the
employees on a monthly basis, up to a
maximum fixed monetary amount, as
stipulated by the relevant government
authorities. The government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to all existing
and future retired employees under these
plans.

The Group has no further obligation for
post-retirement benefits beyond the
contributions made.

Housing benefits

Employees of the Group entities in
Mainland China are entitled to participate
in government-sponsored housing funds.
The Group contributes to these funds
based on certain percentages of the
salaries of the employees on a monthly
basis, up to a maximum fixed monetary
amount, as stipulated by the relevant
government authorities. The Group’s
liability in respect of these funds is limited
to the contribution payable in each period.
Contributions to the funds are expensed
as incurred.
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(@

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-
settled, share-based compensation plans,
under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for
equity instruments (options) of the Group.
The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted:

o including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s
share price);

o excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period);
and

o including the impact of any non-
vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save).

Non-market performance and service
conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which
is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.23 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

In addition, in some circumstances
employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore
the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognising the expense
during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based
on the non-marketing performance and
service conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the income statement,
with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

When the options are exercised, the
company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (and share premium).

Share-based payment transactions
among group entities

The grant by the Company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees of
subsidiary undertakings in the Group is
treated as a capital contribution. The fair
value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity in the
parent entity accounts.
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Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivables for the
sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates
and discounts and after eliminating sales within
the Group.
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2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)
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is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group's activities
as described below. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

Revenue from the sales of goods is
recognised when the risks and rewards of
the goods have been transferred to the
customer, which is usually at the date
when a group entity has delivered
products to the customer and the
customer has accepted the products, the
collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assumed and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products.

Rental income from properties is
recognised on a straight-line basis over
the periods of the respective leases.

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective
interest method. When a receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted
at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the
discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans is recognised
using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.
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Grants from the government are recognised at
their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are
deferred and recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the
period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant
and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred government grants and are
credited to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.27 Operating Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

2.28 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors where appropriate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
currency risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the
PRC with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB.
However, the Group has certain trade
receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
trade payables and borrowings
denominated in HK$ and US$, which
is exposed to foreign currency
translation risk. Details of the Group's
trade and other receivables, cash
and cash equivalents, trade and
other payables are disclosed in Notes
13, 14 and 19 respectively.

During the year ended 31 December
2015 and 2014, the Group has not
hedged its foreign exchange risk
because the exposure, after netting
off the assets and liabilities subject
to foreign exchange risk, is not
significant.
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(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(ii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk

Except for cash and cash equivalents
and restricted cash, the Group has
no other significant interest-bearing
assets. The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are
substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.
Management does not anticipate
significant impact on interest-
bearing assets resulted from the
changes in interest rates because
the interest rates of cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash are
not expected to change significantly.

The Group's interest-rate risk mainly
arises from borrowings. Borrowings
obtained at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate
risk. Borrowings obtained at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. The Group does
not hedge its cash flow and fair
value interest rate risk. The interest
rates and terms of repayments of
borrowings are disclosed in Note 20.

RZE—RAF+_A=+— At 31 December 2015, if interest
B MRTERFELA T rates on bank borrowings had been
F%10% - AT A E it Z HUREE 10% higher/lower with all other
T AZEENERFED variables held constant, the net

BAlR 2B AR
7,419,000 T (ZE—WMF+=
A=+—8 : AR%?7,015,000
To) v BT R E BAE BRLE
FZ g, R A FT B
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profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB7,419,000 lower/
higher respectively (31 December
2014: RMB7,015,000), as a result of
higher/lower interest expenses on
floating rate borrowings.
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Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, trade and
other receivables, as well as credit
exposures to customers, including
outstanding receivables and committed
transactions. Certain Group's sales are
settled in cash or by its customers on
delivery of goods. Credit sales are made
only to selected customers with good
credit history. The Group has policies in
place to ensure that trade receivables are
followed up on a timely basis.

As at 31 December 2015, trade
receivables of RMB777,714,000 were due
from Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd.
(“Nanpu”), a joint venture of the Group (31
December 2014: RMB610,588,000). Nanpu
has a history of making profits and the
directors of the Group assessed there is
no credit risk in relation to the trade
receivables from Nanpu.

Other than the receivables from Nanpu,
the Group has no significant concentration
risk. The carrying amounts of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade
and other receivables included in the
consolidated financial statements
represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets.

At 31 December 2015, all cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash were
placed in highly reputable and sizable
banks and financial institutions without
significant credit risk.
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3

FINANCI
(Continued)

AL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Cash flow is managed at group level by
head office finance department (“Group
Finance”). Group Finance monitors the
Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure
that it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs at all times and does
not breach borrowing limits or covenants
on any of its borrowing facilities. Group
Finance usually takes into consideration
the Group's debt financing plans,
covenant compliance and compliance
with internal balance sheet ratio targets.

Group Finance mainly invests surplus cash
in time deposits, with appropriate
maturities.

The table below analyses the Group's non-
derivative financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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(Continued)
3.1 BIRREKBREZR(E) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) wEMERER(E) (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

—£R —EmF —ZhE @t
Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Total

ARBTRE ARMTR ARMTR AR®TR
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000

R-ZE-MEF As at 31 December 2014
+ZA=1-H
E= Borrowings 1,523,971 - 46,171 1,570,142
THETHE Interest payments on borrowings 49341 2,892 2,445 54,678
ECPELT R Trade and other payables 1,234,833 - - 1,234,833
2,808,145 2,892 48,616 2,859,653
R-ZE-1F As at 31 December 2015
+ZA=t+-H
&3 Borrowings 1,491,612 177,612 181,273 1,850,497
THEFFE Interest payments on borrowings 50,104 12,893 8,585 71,582
B S R EMENTIE Trade and other payables 1,397,599 - - 1,397,599

2,939,315 190,505 189,858 3,319,678
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.2 cCapital risk management
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The Group's objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns
for equity holders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to equity holder, return capital to equity holders
or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total bank borrowings (including “current and
non-current borrowings” as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash. Total capital is
calculated as "equity” as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet plus net debt.

BR+=A=+—H

As at 31 December
—B-Hf —T0F
2015 2014
ARET T AREETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
SR1T1E R4 HE (K17E20) Total borrowings (Note 20) 1,850,497 1,570,142

B IR NI EEY (M 14(a)) Less: Cash and cash equivalents

(Note 14(a)) (448,653) (693,013)
ZRHIRE (32 140) Restricted cash (Note 14(b)) (364,411) (468,417)
BEFHE Net debt 1,037,433 408,712
AR Total equity 2,899,568 2,633,926
BAR4A%E Total capital 3,937,001 3,042,638
BARGELE Gearing ratio 26% 13%
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)
The increase in net gearing ratio as at 31
December 2015 is attributable to the increase of
borrowings made by the Group for the Group's
expansion.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial
assets, including trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash,
financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and current borrowings, are assumed
to approximate their fair values due to their
short-term maturities. The carrying values less
any estimated credit adjustments for financial
assets with a maturity of less than one year are
a reasonable approximation of their fair values.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experiences and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

201543% o Annual Report2015 139



Br IS SRR M AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_T—RAF+-_A=1t—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

4 BAREETHET R A (5

0]

(i)

(iii)

BB R E MG
AEEFFRMT210MAN T HE
ARBEETERIMEMRE ReELE
TR E S BEMERBENE - ZF
HEFERAEEMG (HES) -

W% - BERRENTERAFR

AEEEREBETEME - BB MERED
AEFAIMERFRMARBITERX - &bs
ENBRAEREE RDERNYE - BE R
RENERAERFROBEERER
HA] [ e S B R 1T R B A RO BT B T I
BRHFTHMARES WAl EHBFER
@AM FER - AIEEERENITE
P HEKEMHIMBCERARES
B AT B A A SR FE RS M B E -

W - BERRENRE

BEEMHENBERE B BRI EE
WEIRHER - @3W%  BE &RENR
Kt E MEETTRER o ATUE S5
TRBERBEFEXMSEENEE -
&Lt ERER A R AET -

140 xEEEZERARAR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

)

(i)

(iii)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2.10. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use
of estimates (Note 8).

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives and related depreciation
charges for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a
result of technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment and land use
rights are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use
calculations or market valuations. These
calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates.
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(iv)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment (Continued)

Management judgement is required in the area
of asset impairment particularly in assessing: (i)
whether an event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset value may not be
recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs
to sell or net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in
assessing impairment, including the discount
rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value in the impairment test and as a
result affect the Group’s financial condition and
results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance
and resulting future cash flow projections, it may
be necessary to take an impairment charge to
the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income.

Estimated write-downs of inventories
The Group writes down inventories to net
realisable value based on an assessment of the
realisability of inventories. Write-downs on
inventories are recorded where events or
changes in circumstances that the balances
may not be realised. The identification of write-
downs requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such difference will
impact carrying values of inventories and write-
downs of inventories in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Impairment of trade and other
receivables

The Group’s management estimates the
provision of impairment of trade and other
receivables by assessing their recoverability.
Provisions are applied to trade and other
receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible and require the use of
estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such difference will
impact carrying value of trade and other
receivables and impairment charge in the period
in which such estimate has been changed.

Current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC
and in Hong Kong. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are some transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
determined using tax rates that are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax
assets are realised or the deferred income tax
liabilities are settled. The expected applicable
tax rate is determined based on the enacted tax
laws and regulations and the actual situation of
the Group. The management of the Group will
revise the expectation where the intending tax
rate is different from the original expectation.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been
identified as the executive Directors. The executive
Directors review the Group's internal reports in order
to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments
based on the internal reports provided for review by
the executive Directors. The executive Directors
consider the performance of the Group from a
product perspective. The executive Directors assess
the performance of the operating segments based on
a measure of gross profit for the year which is
consistent with that in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group's operations are mainly organised under
the following business segments: own brand products
and third party brand products, and each has the
segments of non-alcoholic beverages, alcoholic
beverages, food and snacks, and others.

The amounts provided to executive Directors with
respect to total assets, total liabilities and capital
expenditure are measured in a manner consistent
with that of consolidated financial statements. The
executive Directors review the total assets, total
liabilities and capital expenditure at Group level.
Therefore no segment information of total assets,
total liabilities and capital expenditure information
was presented.

In accordance with the Group'’s internal financial
reporting, the Group has determined that business
segments be presented as the primary and only
reporting format.
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5 7pEER®E 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) &xX#E (@) Turnover
AEEMNWA (BNESZERE)INT : The Group's revenue which represents turnover
is as follows:

BE+t-A=1t—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-RF —E-E
2015 2014
AR%ET R ARBTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
— BEREER — Own Brand Products

FEBABRR Non-alcoholic beverages 728,205 671,774
BB R Alcoholic beverages 370,432 249,866
BmEER Food and snacks 933,160 724,861
A Others 41,126 56,509
2,072,923 1,703,010

— BT mEER — Third Party Brand Products
FEBABRR Non-alcoholic beverages 47,909 58,044
B FEERE Alcoholic beverages 1,962,807 2,464,681
RmBAZER Food and snhacks 678,357 716,660
HAh Others 146,026 141,617
2,835,099 3,381,002
Fe Total 4,908,022 5,084,012
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5 2HER@® 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) DEBEHR (b) Segment information
HE—_Z—hFEt+-_HA=1t—HBItEFE The segment information for the year ended 31
BHHBERAT December 2015 is as follows:

BEmEER B REER
Own Brand Products Third Party Brand Products

FERSH RREER FERAE ERHH RARER

Non- JEfEHE Food Non- EREER Food
alcoholic  Alcoholic and Htr /Nt alcoholic  Alcoholic and Hity it @zt
beverages beverages  snacks  Others Sub-total beverages beverages  snacks  Others Sub-total Total
ARETL ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR AR¥TR AR%TR ARETRT ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

DEHE Segment sales 728,205 370,432 933,160 4,126 2,072,923 47,909 1,962,807 678,357 146,026 2,835,099 4,908,022
DEEERAR Segment cost of sales (506,401) (266,597) (661,370)  (29,081) (1,463,449)  (42,501) (1,721,959) (627,308) (137,303) (2,529,071) (3,992,520)
HEE Segment gross profi 21804 103835 271790 12045 609474 5408 240848 51049 8723 306028 915502
HE_ZE—NEF+-_A=+—HILFE The segment information for the year ended 31
BDHBERAT December 2014 is as follows:

BRmRER BN mEER
Own Brand Products Third Party Brand Products
FERBRR EUES

FEBRAH REBRE]
Non-  JBREE Food Non-  EHEEREL Food

alconolic  Alcoholic and £t /it alcoholic  Alcoholic and Hth INet
beverages beverages  snacks Others  Sub-total beverages —beverages snacks Others  Sub-total Total
ARBTT ARETT ARSTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETT AREBTI
RMB000  RMB'000 RVMB'O00 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

PEHE Segment sales 671,774 249866 724,861 56,509 1,703,010 58044 2464681 716660 141617 3381002 5084012
AEHERK Segment cost of sales (488,744)  (163486)  (518651)  (43327) (1,214208)  (85237) (2157475)  (669,810) (133420) (3015942 (4,230,150)
PEEF Segment gross profit 183,030 86,380 206,210 13182 488,802 2807 307,206 46,850 8197 365060 853862
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5 o2WERE 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) HEBER(E) (b) Segment information (Continued)
4R R 4 ARG BT s M AV S BR IR TS - Operating segments results are reconciled to

profit before income tax as follows:

BEt+t-A=+-RHLEE
Year ended 31 December

—B-HFE —_TWF

2015 2014

AR®T AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

2EER Segment gross profit 915,502 853,862

2 EHR A Distribution costs (251,990) (211,439)

TBRA Administrative expenses (172,148) (143,046)

HA YA Other income 52,141 19,469

Hiss/(B18) — F58 Other gain/(losses) — net 842 2,314)

FG—Pig | Operating profit 544,347 516,532

B A Finance income 15,090 20,931

BrTS RS2 Finance expenses (99,039) (96,635)

RS — FEE Finance expenses — net (83,949) (75,704)

FEAGBS: & A &) m A Share of profit of associates 3 514

Efh—MEE & almT Share of profit of a joint venture 32,083 29,736

BANEF Profit before income tax 492,484 471,078
REBETADBDAFLFEH S E Most of the Group companies are domiciled in
BAIS IR EEL I ATRE o the PRC and majority of the non-current assets

are located in the PRC.

REZE-—ZE—RE+-_A=+—HIIE During the year ended 31 December 2015,

e ANEE A LA R R A revenue derived from Nanpu, a joint venture of

EARREBAN294%(BE—F—MF the Group, accounted for 29.4% (for the year

+=A=+—HIFEE : 27.1%) o ended 31 December 2014: 27.1%) of the Group’s
revenue.
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6 WX BERRE 6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BERRE
Machinery Rt  ERIE
: and BH Other Construction @t

Buildings  equipment Vehicles equipments in progress Total
ARETT  ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

BZ-B-ME+-A=1-H Yearended 31 December 2014

LEE
—Z-mE-A-R 1 January 2014 351,204 123,680 13426 23083 8677 520,070
KERBAF Acquisition of subsiclaries 9991 24,535 64 756 3202 38548
i Additions 1198 9313 5614 11,304 212497 239,99
e Transfer 1467 29,018 - 3,050 (74,535) -
(& (Fi30) Disposals (Note 30) ] (982) (171 (52 - (1,208)
HE (M) Depreciation (Note 30) (18,476) (15,851) (4,243) (12.925) - (51,495)
“E-MEF-A=+-H  31December 2014 386,381 169,743 14,690 25,2% 149,841 745911

W=Z-MmE+=A=1+-H  At31December 2014

A Cost 494,356 240,987 40,022 62,081 149,841 987,287
2T Accumulated depreciation (107,975) (71,244) (25,332) (36,825) - (241,376)
EEFE Net book amount 386,381 169,743 14,690 25,256 149,841 745911

BZ-Z-TE+-A=t-H Yearended 31 December 2015

LEE
“Z-1%5-A-H 1 January 2015 386,381 169,743 14,690 25,256 149,841 745,911
#m Additions 20,454 22,09 5,115 18,345 259,949 325,959
el Transfer 23,456 246,923 - 9,114 (279,493) -
e (HE30) Disposals (Note 30) - (409) (410) ) - (828)
e (HE30) Depreciation (Note 30) (22,208)  (22,015) 4313 (13,950) - (62,486)
ZE-REFZA=T-R 31 Decerber 2015 408,083 416,338 15,082 38,756 130,297 1,008,556

W=B-7%+=A=t-8 At 31December 2015

A Cost 538,266 509,395 43,472 89,293 130,297 1,310,723
ZithE Accumulated depreciation (130,183) (93,057) (28,390) (50,537) - (302,167)
BEEE Net book amount 408,083 416,338 15,082 38,756 130,297 1,008,556
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

6 YE- BERSE® 6
(@ WMERIXERGAEZEREZRALE @& (@)
HFIR -

Depreciation expense has been charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as follows:

BE+t-A=1t—BLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-hfF —ZT U
2015 2014
AR%T R ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
$HE AR Cost of sales 40,814 32,343
TR Administrative expenses 21,424 18,715
5 SHB AR Distribution costs 248 437
62,486 51,495
() BHERL£ZACEKEESALEBEZ(H () The net book amount of Buildings and
£200) HE AR R S G M SR T 2 BE T Machinery and equipments pledged as collateral
EmT of the Group’s borrowings (Note 20) as of

respective balance sheet dates were as follows:

R+=A=+—AH

As at 31 December
—E-hfF —E—OF
2015 2014
AR%T T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BT Buildings 393,674 268,498
He2s a8 Machinery and equipments 102,223 =
495,897 268,498
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7 tTiHERAE 7 LAND USE RIGHTS
T AR TE N R AT E BN EREEE - Land use rights represent the net book amount of
REBWAAE LFEREIMRFE - FEN prepaid operating lease payments. All the land use
TF20ZE50F /L - rights of the Group are located in the PRC and are

held on leases from 20 to 50 years.

T E AR E T Movements in land use rights are as follows:

BE+t=-A=1+t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-HEF —EF—OF

2015 2014

AR¥ T AREETFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

HA W BR T HE Opening net book amount 93,290 85,734
N Additions 50,368 487
g NE]| Acquisition of subsidiaries - 8,845
#HF ST (FIEE30) Amortisation charge (Note 30) (2,240) (1,776)
HiRBR B Closing net book amount 141,418 93,290
BERYERNGE 2EWERNA [$HEKA] 1B Amortisation expense has been charged to
T8 - “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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7 TERAEE 7 LAND USE RIGHTS (Continued)
HEXEEBEREAREBBR (FIzE20) & The net book amount of land use rights pledged as
@A AEREHEN T ¢ collateral of the Group’s borrowings (Note 20) as of

respective balance sheet dates was as follows:

R+=A=+—AH
As at 31 December

—E—5F —ZE—F

2015 2014

AR%T ARBTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

s A Land use rights 23,847 24,432
R=FE—WE=—FE—HF+=-_A=+—H ' & As at 31 December 2014 and 2015, the Group is still in
SEME#EITE T LHEAEERES - HE the process of renewing certificates for certain land
T AR AREFE 2 5 AR 1,229,000 use rights with net book value amounting to
TR AR 1,110,000 7T © ZAN58 [ A RE BE ER A X RMB1,229,000 and RMB1,110,000 respectively. The
ST REEAEE TRE  MBERZEE Group might incur certain obligations in connection
NEBEELTH A SMETE  MEKETEES with such application of land use right certificates,
SR BERMIFE34 55 - while since the amount of the obligation cannot be

measured with sufficient reliability, this obligation has
been disclosed as contingent liabilities in Note 34.
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8 HEEEE 8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
R

HE [ Mining B h
Goodwill Trademark Licenses Software Total
ARETTL AREFTL AREFTL AREFT AREFTL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Hz-2-mE Year ended 31 December 2014

+ZB=t-ALEE

—Z2-E—f—H 1 January 2014 7,913 610 - 664 9,187
by | Additions - - - 112 112
WEHBAR Acquisition of subsidiaries 17,121 1,880 33,320 = 52,31
B4R (7E30) Amortisation charge (Note 30) - (184) (184) (142) (510
“Z-WE+-A=+—H  31December 2014 25,034 2,306 33136 634 61,110

R-Z-ImE+-A=+—-H At31December2014

A Cost 25,034 3,241 33,320 873 62,468
BT Accumulated amortisation - (939) (184) (239) (1,358)
ERFE Net book amount 25,034 2,306 33,136 634 61,110
HE-E-1% Year ended 31 December 2015
+ZB=1t-ALEE

“F-h1—-H-H 1 January 2015 25,034 2,306 33,136 634 61,110
210 Additions - - - 1,148 1,148
BRI (PI7E30) Amortisation charge (Note 30) - (333) (1,103) (65) (1,501)
“Z-RFF+-A=1+—H  31December2015 25,034 1,973 32,033 1,717 60,757

R=ZB-REE+-A=+-F At31December 2015

AR Cost 25,034 3,241 33,320 2,021 63,616
EsEY Accumulated amortisation - (1,268) (1,287) (304) (2,859)
FRFE Net book amount 25,034 1,973 32,033 1,717 60,757
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T-RFT_A=+—HILEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

8
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Amortisation expense has been charged to “cost of
sales” and “administrative expenses” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The goodwill is monitored by the management at cash
generating units (“CGU") level. The following is a
summary of goodwill allocation for each operating
segment:

BEt-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—_E—_FHF

—E—JuF
2014
ARET T
RMB'000

2015

ARET T
RMB’000

Changxinxian Jinshaguan Co., Ltd.

([&DFR]) ("Jinshaquan”) 17,121 17,121
E8)IRARRRBRA R Shanghai Chuanxiang Flavouring and Food
([ 1) Co., Ltd. (“Chuanxiang”) 4,500 4,500
LBERBEBRAR] Shanghai Royal Winery Co., Ltd.
(EXREE]) (“Royal Winery") 3,413 3,413
25,034 25,034

RETRENR BEEIEZECHEARESD
EHETHNR/MER - ReEHETMIKRE
SRIRERBEFEEETE - BETEE
REFMBKRENRRERD - AK2ER
BminER BERAR - ERHERD &
BRI RS RIBATEIERRGEE - BRX
THEBZATERETMEEXTNHRETY
BRE o

KIEEEIZRRAIRAR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

For the purposes of impairment test, goodwill has
been allocated to the smallest individual of CGU
identified. The recoverable amount of a CGU is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. The
calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budget made by the Directors, with reference
to the prevailing market conditions, covering certain
future period (the “Period”). Cash flows beyond the
Period are extrapolated using the estimated growth
rates stated below. The growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the business in
which the CGU operates.
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8 HEFEE®) 8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
—E-TFARAEERABENEZZRENT ¢ The key assumptions used for value-in-use

calculations in 2015 are as follows:

EWR JIIA EXRE

Jinshaquan Chuanxiang  Royal Winery

HER K Sales growth rate 10% 5% 5%
EES Gross profit margin 25% 25% 25%
T ATALER 2 Pre-tax discount rate 13% 12% 12%
HEHIMEETR 2 RAIE R K Growth rate to extrapolate cash

flows beyond the budget period 0% 3% 3%
EREREMNFE R=-F-AF+=-A Based on management's assessment, there was no
=t+— BWEmEERE o impairment of goodwill as at 31 December 2015.

9 REZEATNRE 9 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

BE+-A=t+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—F-1F —T@mF

2015 2014

AREET T AREETIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

®n—A—H At 1 January 27,704 27,190
HE—KEZ QR Disposal of an associate (26,671) -
J& {3 F] Share of profits 3 514
Rt+=—A=+—H At 31 December 1,036 27,704
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9 REEQFINRE®) 9 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
R-_ZBE—RHF+-_A=+—H" FiEKZLE QA The particulars of the associates of the Group as at 31
MR E AIE LTI BIREREAR  NEE December 2015, all of which are unlisted and equity
HIBSE A RIEARERAT method is used to account for, are set out as follows:

ERsR EXNY/ ARALER PR %
Name of entity Place of business/country of incorporation % of ownership interest
“E-%f —Z-mE
2015 2014
ERTHREAE B ARAR ([HEHER]) HEEH
Putian Rural Microfinance Co., Ltd.(‘Putian Rural’) Putian, PRC - 24.5%
LERENRRARAR ([ LEREN]) FE LS
Shanghai Daoxiangeun Co., Ltd.("Shanghai Daoxiangcun”)  Shanghai, PRC 39% 39%
RZZE—RAF T+ A AEBUARK In October 2015, the Group disposed all its shares in
26,700,000 7T B A 56 = 757 1 & A 5 M B A Putian Rural to a third party at the consideration of
HIFTE I - HEMS AR 79,000 T z=E RMB26,700,000. Gain of RMB79,000 from the disposal
R EME (BB LRk - R=ZF—AF has been recorded in other gains/(losses). As at 31
+ZA=+—H ' AR¥ 14,500,000 7T &) ¥ B December 2015, consideration of RMB14,500,000 has
EELE - FHm AR 12,200,000 THED been settled and the remaining balance of
BIEE B 5 & H A FEWERIE |(FHFE13) © consideration amounting to RMB12,200,000 has been
included in trade and other receivables (Note 13).
AEBEHBE AR ZENERI AL ARAE - There are no contingent liabilities relating to the

Group's interest in the associates.
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9 REEATNRE(®) 9 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
BEATNBENBER Summarised financial information for
associates
EERENIREREARNBEGFERDT Set out below are the summarised financial

information for Shanghai Daoxiangcun which are
accounted for using the equity method.

EEEEXRRBE Summarised balance sheet

EEEEN
Shanghai Daoxiangcun
=B-HF —TWF

2015 2014
AR® T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ED Current

Re MRS EEY Cash and cash equivalents 135 125
HimehEE (RIS IN) Other current assets (excluding cash) 3,812 3,172
REEEAE Total current assets 3,947 3,297

HitmE A& Other current liabilities (including trade
(BREESEMNERR) payables) (1,633) (1,012)
BB EAE Total current liabilities (1,633) (1,012)
EMBEE Non-current Assets 342 363
FEE Net assets 2,656 2,648
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9 REBEQXTNRE@
RENBREE

9

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Summarised statement of comprehensive
income

LEEEN

Shanghai Daoxiangcun
—ZE—0fF —Z—mF
2015 2014
AR¥T AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
WA Revenue 1,857 2,256
e R Depreciation and amortisation (1) )
B E A Profit from continuing operations 8 =
FriS & X Income tax expense (1) =
ire W aE Total comprehensive income 7 =

A EER R E R BRI BERRAZ5E
R (W ARE AR - Wt A5 H =
BRRZHETBRNEEFELRE -

10

10

The information above reflects the amounts presented
in the financial statements of the associates (and not
the Group's share of those amounts) adjusted for
differences in accounting policies between the Group
and the associates.

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

BEt+t-A=t—HLFE
Year ended 31 December

—ZE—0F —Z—mF

2015 2014

AR®T T AREETIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

»w—A—H At 1 January 400,757 369,186

FE(E = F (HI5E26) Share of profit (Note 26) 33,453 28,354
A S E AR REITHERN Movement of elimination of unrealised

RER @A &5 profits for sales to Nanpu from the Group (126) 3,217

Rt+=—A=+—H At 31 December 434,084 400,757
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10 R—XEEQRTANERE H) 10
R=ZZE—RF+-_A=+—H AEEH}FL

.

o)
F

LRANREREREARAT

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE
(Continued)

The joint venture of the Group as at 31 December
2015, which is unlisted and equity method is used to
account for, are set out as follows:

XMWY AMRIER PR %
Name of entity Place of business/country of incorporation % of ownership interest
—g-%F —p%
2015 2014
2 h
Nanpu® China 51% 51%
REFBNARERZAR  AENEFERE Under articles of association of Nanpu, the Board of

BRENROREME  mSREEMK  NEE
—E-RFE+-A=+—0 HH3KESH
ARREE(ZE—NF 3L EERMILH
ARNTEE) o Fi 75 B R 0 B S B 7 R 48
BREBMAM=H 2 A LMESIE - B
AR B B A 4% 7 SE R IR o

REBEHE
=

BN A2 A MR SR KA

* BTHAMB1% B AEBETDRRE LE
AREEZRRERAT - DHHEBSHERADBRK
WrBRMER R R EEHNTE 2 BRI 20% » 10% &
30% A fp -

Nanpu is the highest authority and decision-making
body, which was composed of 8 directors, of which 3
directors were appointed by the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 3 of 8 directors
were appointed by the Company). All strategic
financial and operation decision relating to the
activities of Nanpu require the approvals of two thirds
or more of the directors and the Group shared control
of Nanpu with other joint venture party.

There are no commitments and contingent liabilities
related to the Group's interest in the joint venture.

* In addition to 51% of ownership interest of Nanpu, the Group
also has 20%, 10% and 30% of shares of Shanghai Tiancheng
Enterprise Development Limited, Shanghai Puxing Trading
Limited and Chengdu Nanpu Food Limited, the subsidiaries of
Nanpu respectively.
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10 R—REELTNRE @) 10 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

RERATNEENBER Summarised financial information for joint
venture

AR EREARNEEZENBERAT Set out below are the summarised financial
information for Nanpu which are accounted for using
the equity method.

EEEBERRBE Summarised balance sheet

R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hF —FE—-F

2015 2014
AR¥T R AREETIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000

B Current
He RIS EEY) Cash and cash equivalents 35,359 111,552
HinghEE (BRIELH) Other current assets (excluding cash) 5,528,913 5,179,902
RENEEAE Total current assets 5,564,272 5,291,454

S aE (BRE S ENSERZRIN) Financial liabilities (excluding trade

payables) (2,149,880) (2,128,000)
HinBa & (BEE S EMBRZK) Other current liabilities (including trade

payables) (2,716,560) (2,527,944)
BB EHE Total current liabilities (4,866,440) (4,655,944)
EREEE Non-current Assets 82,284 80,639
BEE Net assets 780,116 716,149
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10 R—REEQANKREH)

REWBERBE

10 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive

income

BEt+t=-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-HEF —EF—OF

2015 2014

AR%T T ARBTFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

A Revenue 5,591,267 5,931,288
e K 5 Depreciation and amortisation (29,534) (17,936)
HEMA Interest income 8,418 4,420
B Interest expense (130,671) (129,203)

SERERT Profit from continuing operations 90,223 82,046
PS8 5 Sz Income tax expense (26,256) (22,771)

mEWEBE Total comprehensive income 63,967 59,275
LA &R B A RIS HRER AN E A The information above reflects the amounts presented

U (W IR AREFTE BRE) - W Bl A5 [ L
ERRIZHEEHTBROZEELAE -

in the financial statements of the joint venture,
adjusted for differences in accounting policies

between the Group and the joint venture, and not the
Group's share of those amounts.
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11 REEZSS>HNEEIA 11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY
R+=B=+—H
As at 31 December
“E-R% —T-mE
2015 2014
ARETR AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REGEEEABRNEE Assets as per consolidated balance sheet
B 5 e E ke = (TR 13) Trade and bill receivables (Note 13) 2,235,268 1,977,038
H b i (M EE13) Other receivables (Note 13) 176,493 53,307
B& MRS EEY (K5 140) Cash and cash equivalents (Note 14(a)) 448,653 693,013
XRTIHE S (M 140)) Restricted cash (Note 14(0)) 364,411 468,417
3,224,825 3,192,275
REGAEEABRNEE Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet
L5 R EAEIE (EE19) Trade and other payables (Note 19) 1,189,070 1,032,337
fa R (F5E20) Borrowings (Note 20) 1,850,497 1,570,142
3,039,567 2,602,479
RZE—RAFER T —NF+_A=+—8 - As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, financial assets
REBFeMEERSERRERGIE - RNE held by the Group represent loans and receivables,
EfiFSrt 8 &R HENAANRNSRARE - and financial liabilities held by the Group represent

the financial liabilities at amortised costs.
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12 FE& 12 INVENTORIES
R+t=—HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-HEF —EF—OF
2015 2014
AR¥T T ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
[EM L K B gt Raw materials and packaging materials 125,935 123,072
H 5K i Work in progress 26,029 26,380
IR on Finished goods 696,058 558,689
848,022 708,141
o FERE Less: inventory provision (320) (260)
847,702 707,881
HEZZT—AFT-A=+—HILEFE KX The cost of inventory recognised as “cost of sales”
#4975 N R#3,798,137,0000 ( —ZF — P04 : A amounting to approximately RMB3,798,137,000 for
R#¥4,055,511,0007T) I F SR A SEER A the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
(MF3E23) ° RMBA4,055,511,000) (Note 23).
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

13 BEZREMERRE

Rt=A=t-H
As at 31 December
EZ-1F —T-mF
2015 2014
ARETR ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
BIRUFEREKZE @) Trade and bill receivables (a) 2,241,423 1,982,436
—RBWRE=H — due from third parties 1,463,709 1,312,834
— FEd s A (FTEE32(0)(0)) — due from related parties (Note 32(c)(i)) 777,714 669,602
B S RN IR R AR Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables (6,155) (5,398)
BHREWZIERERER — 558 Trade and bills receivables — net 2,235,268 1,977,038
FEGERIZE Prepayment for procurement of inventories 538,134 307,855
EERT Deferred expenses 13,287 13,012
Ho fEUHRIR - Other receivables: 176,856 54,021
— JEU AR 7 b B (B =E 32(c)(i) — Other amounts due from related parties
(Note 32(c)(ii)) 7,21 1,161
—#e — Deposit 45,326 9,440
— BT B R (it 22) — Receivables of government grant (Note 22) 23,681 =
—ME=FHERER AR ERIE — Receivables from a third party for disposal of an
(Fi5E9) associate (Note 9) 12,200 -
— Hft — Others 88,438 43,420
B E e EUGERERE Less: provision for impairment of other receivables (363) 214)
727,914 374,674
2,963,182 2,351,712

K& B RN ESEERR S L& 8RR
THMAREE °

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of each class of receivable
mentioned above.

HE-_T—AF+-_A=+T—HILFE  BRE Provision for impairment of trade receivables of

EEBHGEREKBARERGBRETARE
757,0007T(ZZE—M4F - AR#4,211,0007T) -
W EBREFRE KRR [FTHRAX] -
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RMB757,000 was accrued for the year ended 31
December 2015 (2014: provision of RMB4,211,000), in
accordance with management’s assessment, which
has been included in “administrative expenses” in the
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)
(@) Trade and bill receivables

13 EFKHMEWRFE@®

(@ EBZERWREREWRREE

AEBARBAHE ALK ET - EH
BN F—EAZ=[EA - HEZE Y
B 5 YR R EIRE B R T
T~

The majority of the Group’s sales are on open
account with credit terms ranging from 1 month
to 3 months. The ageing analysis of the trade
and bills receivables based on invoice date was
as follows:

W+=HA=+—8H

As at 31 December
RE—EHF —T—OF
2015 2014
AR¥T T ARBT T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
3MEAA within 3 months 2,100,983 1,851,850
3E6{EA 3 to 6 months 108,310 99,628
6& 1218 A 6 to 12 months 28,116 26,572
1218 A PA £ Over 12 months 4,014 4,386
2,241,423 1,982,436

R-E—HF+-_A=+—H &€F¥AA
R #140,440,000 T K & 5 fE BGRIE E 18
HR-_ZE-—NmNE+-_A=1t—H8: AR
130,586,000 70) MAHMERE R EAAR
#6,155,0007c (ZZE—NF+=A=+—
B : AR¥53980007T) ° BEE%LES
FEERSREAR KR ENGS  ARE
FPlERREBREFEEU  AEBEmGTET
MERIZRRNEL EORBEAIEEE
STl o FTAh TEHA SR FE U IE FE AT IR ] o
BEREYGRIEE B EERRE - Z5E 5
FEWGRIER BRI AT T -

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of
RMB140,440,000 were past due (31 December
2014: RMB130,586,000) and the amount of
respective provision for impairment was
RMB6,155,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB5,398,000). The impairment is firstly
assessed individually for individual significant or
long aged balances, and then the remaining
balances are grouped for collective assessment
according to their ageing and historical default
rates as these customers are of similar credit
risk characteristics. It was assessed that a
majority portion of the receivables was
expected to be recovered. No trade receivables
were past due but not impaired. The ageing
analysis of these trade receivables was as
follows:
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13 EFRHMEWRFE@® 13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)
(a) EZEWFERERZIE (&) (a) Trade and bill receivables (Continued)

R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—B-HF —FDNF

2015 2014
AR¥ TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
#EI3ME A AR Past due within 3 months 108,310 99,628
BmHA3E A = 6@ A Past due in 3 months to 6 months 28,116 26,572
BLEA 6 fE A LA £ Past due over 6 months 4,014 4,386
140,440 130,586
B 5 REMERFIENREER NE The carrying amounts of the trade and other
HEtHE - receivables were denominated in the following
currencies:
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-HEF —ZE—pF
2015 2014
AR® T AREETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR RMB 2,959,914 2,343,558
ABIT HK$ 3,268 8,061
ETT us$ - 93
2,963,182 2,351,712
R-ZE—RHF+-_A=1+—H: #HEZS As at 31 December 2015, no trade and bill
& WU IE K P U SR 4R AR VR 18 s 4 (B =E receivables (31 December 2014: RMB95,727,000)
20@) (R=ZF—MNE+=ZA=+—8: were pledged for borrowings (Note 20(a)).

95,727,0007T) ©
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14 RERBSEBEYUARZRERE

(a)

(b)

RERBESEEY

AEBREMRSFEYNREEAT

PIEHEHE

14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED CASH
(a) cCash and cash equivalents
The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and
cash equivalents are denominated in the
following currencies:

R+=A=+—A~
As at 31 December
—E-RF —T0F
2015 2014
AR®T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR RMB 438,648 516,076
BT HK$ 9,549 63,481
e us$ 155 111,926
BT EUR 301 1,530
448,653 693,013
ZRFEIRE (b) Restricted cash
R+=A=+—A~
As at 31 December
—E-HF —E—-OF
2015 2014
AR®T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
IR I E HitF 5K Restricted term deposit 132,710 52,800
EABEMRERES Deposit for issue of letter of
credit and letter of guarantee 126,250 243,500
RITHEHZRRES Deposit for bank acceptance
notes 105,451 122,117
EEAETRE R (HI5E200)) Deposit for secured borrowing
(Note 20(a)) - 50,000
364,411 468,417
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15 B 15 SHARE CAPITAL
EEREE
%
LEREE  Equivalent
EERRH Nominal nominal
Number value of value of RAEE
of ordinary ordinary ordinary Share
shares shares shares Premium
AL ARETR ARETFT
HK$ RMB'000 RMB'000
BE Authorised:
RZE-ME-FE-RE—-F—HF Asat1lanuary 2014 and 2015 and
RZT-MRk-Z-1F 31 December 2014 and 2015
+-A=t-H 10,000,000,000  1,000,000,000
2RfT: Issued:
RZZE-mE-A—-H Asat 1 January 2014 2,073,612,000 207,361,200 164,634 1,385,486
8 Dividends () - - - (122,154)
“Z-E+-A=ft—HE#% Balance at 31 December 2014 2,073,612,000 207,361,200 164,634 1,263,332
RZE-h¥—A—-B&EH Balance at 1 January 2015 2,073,612,000 207,361,200 164,634 1,263,332
fiass Dividends (i - - - (114,181)
“T-RFTZA=t—A&H  Balance at 31 December 2015 2,073,612,000 207,361,200 164,634 1,149,151
(0} RIEF S8 E R R)A (2003 85T /R) B34 IERARA (i) Pursuant to Section 34 of the Cayman Companies Law (2003
AIMABBERAEA - AR R EEEERNBEARAR Revision) and the Articles of Association of the Company,
AEHERMANAATARE - BIRTAR R B H) AR (7 )5 B A share premium of the Company is available for distribution to
BRELHASK BE-_T—NWF+-_A=1+—A1 shareholders subject to a solvency test on the Company and
FEENER - £8AARE 66,391,000 THRE the provision of the Articles of Association of the Company.
MBE=FT—RFAA=1THIENEAEMERS - € Dividends amounting to RMB66,391,000 in relation to the
FRARKA47,790,000 THREERBE_ZT—AF profits for the year ended 31 December 2014 and interim
TZA=F+—BHUEFEXNFARARE - dividends amounting to RMB47,790,000 in relation to the

profits for the six months ended 30 June 2015 were paid to
the Company’s shareholders during the year ended 31
December 2015.
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16 RERRF 16 RETAINED EARNINGS

BE1+t=-A=1+—BHLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-HF —E—F
2015 2014
AR®T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R—A—BMRE&F Retained earnings at 1 January 955,507 642,039
FERF Profit for the year 350,809 345,335
EER S TG Appropriation to statutory reserve (30,334) (31,867)
R+=—A=+—HMRZEEF Retained earnings at 31 December 1,275,982 955,507
17 HtufEE 17 OTHER RESERVES
BERARBER
e RE PETERE
U8 Pre-IPO SRR () Currency
Capital  share award Statutory translation @t
reserve scheme reserve(i) reserve Total
AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZE-RmE-A—H At 1 January 2014 78,804 1,893 97,181 (9,863) 168,621
NEREES Currency translation differences - - - (1783) (1,783)
HET TR Appropriation to statutory reserve - - 31,867 - 31,867

BERAHBERRD 282 Pre-IPO share award scheme
—BHEESHRFERG  —value of current employee

Servioes (i) - 2,588 - - 2,588
R-Z-MEF-A=+—H At31December 2014 78,804 4481 129,654 (11,646) 201293
RZE-1%-A-H At 1 January 2015 78,804 4,481 129,654 (11,646) 201,293
NEREES Currency translation differences - - - 1,198 1,198
HRS TR Appropriation to statutory reserve - - 30,334 - 30,334
BRARRERRDEEEE]  Pre-IPO share award scheme

—REEEMREEEN  — value of current employee

Services (i - 1,421 - - 1,421

WZE-RE+-A=1—H At31December 2015 78,804 5,902 159,988 (10,448) 234,246
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17 HtbF#E @)

168

(i)

(i)

REFBZRRAKEZARINQAME
BERAR  EDIRSFEOFEANA -
7SR B R B R A 2 R BRI B SH AR
BHRBTEET ERBEENERN L —F
BRI - REF PR F i M H 10% 5B
NEERRFEES - ZRBOEREDE
NAAR) 50% 8 - AR B R BB SR
A

NEAREFRDEBETE
RER-_Z—=F)\A—BOBRRRZ
ARBITERAFREEAEIRES -
HERAFESHBEREFEINAENZ
ZEE(BERER)ERSERRRAER
EABHE - AWREN R 8 AB L B RIR MK
X FEEGEDREEESR - twfINER
HBASENRBERRATNENEBE
Eo

BEERAFAZRENBERESERE AR
AETEAMEZETHORDEAEA
37,083,334 % « (G ANA ARG H B E BT
RE1.79% o L AFBERMBRER =T
—=FNA—AKT-

HRETREENBD - ANEARRRE
BHARZMER QB TR LM GERE
Ko B B % 57 8 A 4 R B AT R IR 7S 10 AR
~E EBEFASHINR_ZE—=FNLATL
B —T-—MmFEAA+ER  —FT—A%F
NA+ER ZE—RFAATLRARC
E—+FNANAT LR ERITEEER
o

KRB AR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

17 OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the
articles of association of the companies of the
Group, before distributing the net profit of each
year, companies of the Group registered in the
PRC are required to set aside 10% of its
statutory net profit for the year after offsetting
any prior year's losses as determined under
relevant PRC accounting standards to the
statutory surplus reserve fund. When the
balance of such reserve reaches 50% of each
company's share capital, any further
appropriation is optional.

Pre-IPO share award scheme

Pursuant to a resolution dated on 1 August
2013, the Company adopted a Pre-IPO share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”). The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is to give the employees
(including directors) an opportunity to acquire a
personal stake in our Company and help
motivating such employees to optimize their
performance and efficiency, and also to help
retaining the employees whose contributions
are important to the long-term growth and
profitability of our Group.

Total number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all options granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 37,083,334
shares representing approximately 1.79% of the
enlarged issued share capital of the Company.
The Pre-IPO share options were granted on 1
August 2013.

For shares granted to the employees, subject to
the meeting of the criteria of the Company
being listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the
employee being still on service at the end of
each vesting period, the granted shares can be
vested in five tranches on 17 September 2013,
2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017, respectively.



B IS SRR MY EE

Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_T-—RF+-A=+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

17 HtbFE @)

(i) DRABEARMDEBEE(E)

17 OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

(ii)

BE-_ZE—hE+-_A=+—RHIEA

(ERB AR ETT(E -

R-FE—RE+-_A=+—H &

5

HERBRESINGE R RTEER

Pre-IPO share award scheme (Continued)
No options had been exercised up to 31
December 2015.

The Pre-IPO share options outstanding as at 31
December 2015 have the following vesting dates

s and exercise prices:

TEER(BR)
BT o R IR 17
Exercise prices Outstanding
Vesting Date (per share) HK$ shares
“T—=FfA++tH 17 September 2013 1.8 3,708,334
“T-MEAR++H 17 September 2014 1.8 8,312,500
“E-RFNATLH 17 September 2015 18 9,208,333
- FNATtR 17 September 2016 18 10,104,166
—T—+EAPB++H 17 September 2017 1.8 5,750,001
37,083,334

RARBEERBREERER D 2
REBEERAR6799,895TT + B4 H
VAEERMGEMREA B GERE
TE o

oF B D> mk 3

BE-_T—AF+-_A=+—HIEFE
N &= [E FE AN R #51,421,000 7T (B 5 24)
BANAREE RN RS

The fair value of the shares granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at 1 August
2013, the grant date, was RMB6,799,895, and
has been valued by an independent qualified
valuer using Binomial valuation model.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group recognised an expense of RMB1,421,000
(Note 24) in relation to the shares awarded by
the Company to the employees.
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18 BFBIAVIEIEUR A 18 DEFERRED INCOME ON GOVERNMENT
GRANTS

BE+t-A=t—BLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-hfF —ZT U

2015 2014
AR¥T ARET T
RMB’'000 RMB’'000

BU i BY YR E U A Deferred income on government grants
— mEBED — Current portion 2,915 2,915
— EREH S — Non-current portion 21,137 23,242

24,052 26,157

BE+—-—BA=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-hfF —EF-F

2015 2014

AR%T R ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

Rn—HA—H As at 1 January 26,157 28,335
i Amortisation (2,105) (2,178)
Rt+t—-_A=+—H As at 31 December 24,052 26,157
ZEMB T B AR RETHEFS TRETHE These mainly represent government grants received
B (EAHASEERYE  BERZENS from certain municipal governments of the PRC as an
B - encouragement for the Group's construction of

property, plant and equipment.
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19 EFRHMENIE 19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
BR+t=HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-EF —T—F
2015 2014
AR¥T R AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B o RENFIERENEE Trade and bills payables

—ENE=R — due to third parties 951,988 802,159
— FEIS AR 75 (BT 5 32(c)(ii)) — due to related parties (Note 32(c)(iii)) 104,435 174,629
1,056,423 976,788
M R MR EEE Payables for property, plant and equipment 90,271 6,254
& Rt eEF Salary and social welfare payables 9,367 9,831
JETIZE R & E b Fi T8 Value-added tax and other taxes payables 101,447 101,409
X P EIA Advance from customers 97,715 91,259
TEIRE A Accrued expenses 19,891 16,682

JE 1T A S 77 ) EL At k1B Other amounts due to related parties
(Bt EE32(C)(iv)) (Note 32(c)(iv)) 2,956 1,139
B fE T 3RIE Other payables 19,529 31,471
341,176 258,045
1,397,599 1,234,833
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19 BEZREAMENREG
% E BN E SRR ER RENR

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables

BT - based on invoice date was as follows:
R+=A=+-—H

As at 31 December
—E-RF% —ZTNF
2015 2014
AR¥ T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
X NA Up to 2 months 662,808 910,009
28 AZ=31EA 2 months to 3 months 161,287 30,318
3EA=ZE61EA 3 months to 6 months 195,333 28,868
6REAZE1FE 6 months to 1 year 30,066 6,620
1FAE Over 1 year 6,929 973
1,056,423 976,788

AEENE S MEMENFKENREEL TS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other

EHEHE : payables were denominated in the following
currencies:
R+t=A=+-—8H
As at 31 December
—E-hF —E-AOF
2015 2014
AR¥ET T AREETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR #& RMB 1,371,211 1,206,431
BT EUR 6,439 22,836
Hih & Other currencies 19,949 5,566
1,397,599 1,234,833
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20 B 20 BORROWINGS
R+=A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-HEF —EF—OF
2015 2014
AR¥ T AREETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEFRE Non-current
REAER Long-term borrowings 358,885 46,171
B Current
REHRfE R Short-term borrowings 1,475,675 1,473,971
REERARE D Current portion of long-term borrowings 15,937 50,000
1,491,612 1,523,971
B4 EE Total borrowings 1,850,497 1,570,142
Hep: Representing:
— EIKH — Unsecured 854,253 768,171
— B Q) — Secured (a) 702,940 485,080
— BER D) — Guaranteed (b) 293,304 316,891
1,850,497 1,570,142
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20 ER@E) 20 BORROWINGS (Continued)
(@) BEFEZOITET - (@) Analyses of secured borrowings are as follows:

R+t=—B=+—H
As at 31 December
—ZE-hF —E—mF

2015 2014
AR¥BTRT ARETE
RMB'000 RMB'000
Eifm Secured by:
— BFR TR — Buildings and land use rights
(EXY¥)) (Notes 6 and 7) 609,812 317,000
— He3R AR (PfIRE6) — Machinery and equipments (Notes 6) 93,128 =
— B RERERERRE — Trade and bill receivables (Note 13)
(Fft5E13) - 118,080
—RES (ME14) — Deposit (Note 14) - 50,000
702,940 485,080
(b) BEREZHITOT (b) Analyses of the guaranteed borrowings were as
follows:
R+=A=+—AH
As at 31 December
—E-HEF —EF-OF
2015 2014
AR%T T ARBTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AT R Guaranteed by:
— A& — Letter of credits 115,304 123,142
—£=5 — Third parties 178,000 86,500
— {REK — Letter of guarantee - 107,249

293,304 316,891
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20 fBERE) 20 BORROWINGS (Continued)
(b) BEREZTOIFTOT : (&) (b) Analyses of the guaranteed borrowings were as
follows: (Continued)

AEEEHREEEHRNT - The Group's borrowings were repayable as
follows:

R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—EB-H% —FT-AF

2015 2014
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
157/ Within 1 year 1,491,612 1,523,971
EVE:S Between 1 and 2 years 177,612 -
2FE54F Between 2 and 5 years 181,273 46,171
1,850,497 1,570,142
FEEARMEFHERFEFERNAT The weighted average effective interest rates
per annum at the balance sheet date were as
follows:

BR+t=HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-HEF —ET—-OF

2015 2014

AR®TRT ARBTE
RMB'000 RMB’000

RITER Bank borrowings 5.68% 5.80%

201543% o Annual Report2015 175



Br IS SRR M AL

Notes to the Financial Statements
BE-—ZT FE+-A=t-BHIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

20 fBERE) 20 BORROWINGS (Continued)
(b) BEREZOITET : (8) (b) Analyses of the guaranteed borrowings were as
follows: (Continued)

HREBRNEETTEX  REEZFNA The fair values of current borrowings
NEEEARMERS IERDETRS approximate their carrying amounts as the
FHEAMEEBELRAALBEET impact of discounting is not significant. The

carrying amounts and fair values of non-current
borrowings as at each balance sheet date are
as follows:

EREE
Carrying amount

R+t=A=+—H
As at 31 December

—B-1%¥ —E-mF
2015 2014
ARMT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000

RITEK Bank borrowings 358,885 46,171

DREE
Fair value
R+=A=+-—H
As at 31 December

—E-RE —T—mF
2015 2014
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000

RITER Bank borrowings 351,652 46,118

ERBETHNAOABEEREFRES R The fair values of non-current borrowings are

£ BASEREE BRUSRTMSHE estimated based on discounted cash flow using

R Esh A SRR S/ T At o the prevailing market rate of interest allocated
to the Group for financial instrument with
substantially the same terms and characteristics
at the respective balance sheet dates.

AREBNEZBEEDERAAREE - The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings
are all denominated in RMB.
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21 EZEFEHIE 21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
Rt+=A=+-—8
As at 31 December
—E-HEF —EF—OF
2015 2014
AR¥ T AREETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REHIBEE Deferred tax assets;
— BN 12EARNEERN — Deferred tax asset to be recovered
ELERIBEE within 12 months 13,368 15,079
FERERIBERE Deferred tax liability:
— R 12{E A BBER — Deferred tax liability to be settled
ELEHIBEE after 12 months 26,690 25,953
EEFTSFIR B MRS MT - The gross movement on the deferred income tax
account is as follow:
EEFISBEE - Deferred income tax assets:

£EBEER
Tax loss HERE FERRA ERER
carried  Provision for Unrealised Accrued @zt

forward  impairment profit expenses Total
ARETE  ARETT  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R-Z-m%-A-H At 1 January 2014 3 497 1212 5,670 13475
YEHBAR Acquisition of subsidiaries 2587 - - - 2587
RMEE2ENERA Credited/(charged) to the consolidated

A/ (k) statements of comprehensive income 113 166 (1,30) Iy 983)
R-E-WmE+=A=+-H  At31December 2014 273 663 5968 5712 15,079
RMEE2ENERA Credited/(charged) to the consolidated

A/ (k) statements of comprehensive income (2,115) 20 42 342 (1,711)
R=B-TE+=A=+-H  At31December 2015 621 683 6,010 6,054 13,368
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21 REFTEFHIE(®) 21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
EEFIEHAE : Deferred income tax liabilities:
HEIRE AR
BREE AVEE REBEF
AAER AAER HRENH
Withholding tax
Fair value of Fair value  on unremitted
intangible of tangible earnings of PRC
assets assets  subsidiaries Total
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
W-%-mE-A-H At 1 January 2014 - - 11871 1871
- )0 Acquisition of subsiciaries 9,466 3066 - 12532
Wira 2 ERER AR Charged to the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income - - 5,235 5235
BRREAE ABRME Payment of withholding tax upon declaration of
dividends - = (3,685) (3,685)
R-E-ME+-A=1+-AH At 31 December 2014 9,466 3,066 13421 25953
A 2 ERER MR Charged to the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income (358) (355) 5,517 4,804
ERRE AR Payment of withholding tax upon declaration of
dividends - - (4,067) (4,067)
R-2-EF+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2015 9,108 271 14,871 26,690

FE AR BT TR R 2 A BE 358 1B AR R B AR T st A B 3R
MEBERT  EERABRRAETEENE
E o

R-ZE—NFE+_A=+—HBHE-_ZT—FHF
+=ZA=+—H ' AEETERSEIFAA
R #8,208,000 7T & A K % 12,852,000 7T A ¢ I8
EEEREES B A ARE 2,052,000tk AR
¥ 3,213,000 TAEEFTS TR B E - BRIEF B
AR REMERBEE TR -

BEESEgrzE 22— —HF+_-A
=+ —HIEFEF 5 IR 35% #5578 H B K fE 35
WNEA ABEHEEZE-"T—HAF+=A
=+—HIFEMSHARES5517,0007T °
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Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
loss carried forward to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable
profits is probable.

The Group did not recognise deferred income tax
assets of RMB2,052,000 and RMB3,213,000 in respect
of the tax losses amounting to RMB8,208,000 and
RMB12,852,000 as at 31 December 2014 and 31
December 2015. The tax losses will not expire
according to Hong Kong tax law.

In accordance with the board resolution, 35% of the
net profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 will
be paid outside of Mainland China and accordingly
withholding tax of RMB5,517,000 was provided for the
year ended 31 December 2015.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

22 HAlA

22 OTHER INCOME

BZE+t-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-RfE —ZT—NF
2015 2014
ARMET T ARBFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
U B (5F) Government grants (Note) 46,070 16,340
AN Rental income 1,302 1,497
Hith Others 4,769 1,632
52,141 19,469

HF: TEA:)APBEEFTERNATHRGHEE - (E5Y% Note: These mainly represented: 1) Government grants received

REE A T B RETER B S EN A R BT B
R A  2) BN ShIRATAR IE AR BB A FH
—BRARAZHEMGE THEE - BEBZDLER
AT -ARAEE  WEBRANSBHIL#
WAEFBBUT - Bt - H5 AR 23,680,675 TH)
1l Bh K BT 46 B RE AR IE . 5 Bl sR 8% A [ = AUk A
N E i FE U TR IE (ME7E13) e RARE R H B -
BUFE Rk o

from certain municipal governments of the PRC as
encouragement for the Group's contributions to the
development of the local economy and amortisation of
deferred income on government grants. 2) Compensation
from governments for one Group’s subsidiary early
termination of a long-term office lease. The compensation
agreement has been signed on 5 December 2015, and the
subsidiary has moved out and returned the office to the
government. Accordingly, a subsidy of RMB 23,680,675 has
been recorded as “other income” and a receivable of
government grants was recorded in other receivables (Note
13). On the date of issuance of this report, the subsidy has
been paid by the government.
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23 EMEBEE WX 23 EXPENSES BY NATURE

BE+t-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

FIT R R A4 e S AX o L7 B O

FEED

Raw materials used and changes in
inventories of finished goods and work

“E-HF

2015

AR®T R
RMB’000

b ks
2014
ARETT
RMB'000

in progress 3,798,137 4,055,511
EERHFAZ (F3E24) Employee benefit expenses (Note 24) 215,395 195,102
B REERAR Advertising and promotion costs 110,637 80,065
FTERSHEER Depreciation and amortisation charges
(BisE6 - 7128) (Notes 6, 7 & 8) 66,227 53,781
BRI Transportation expenses 46,844 38,826
NEE 1753 Utility costs 38,630 26,894
e 1R T Machinery maintenance expenses 24,071 18,717
48 S BT 0 Taxes and surcharges 22,708 19,361
KEMEE Operating leases 18,700 13,258
EIRE Travel expenses 11,050 11,155
EIN2E-3 outsourcing fee 10,666 34,658
BEE Entertainment fee 8,745 10,456
E NG Office expenses 7,712 7,259
2 2 R EAMERFIE R Provision for impairment of trade and other
FERERE receivables and inventory 966 3,881
Hipfx Other expenses 36,170 15,711
4,416,658 4,584,635
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24 EEBAMAX 24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

BZE+t-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-hF —E-mF
{k ) 2014
ARBTR ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
TERE® Wages and salaries 178,066 163,261
e RERY Social security costs 35,908 29,253
RARE SRR REET 2 — Pre-IPO share award scheme — value of
BT ARG EEEE17) employee services (Note 17) 1,421 2,588
215,395 195,102
() EEEEFMAL (@) Five highest paid individuals
BHE_Z—HF+-_A=1T—HIFE " For the year ended 31 December 2015, the five
rEENeReNABRATAREES individuals whose emoluments were the highest
HE 25 sE33FTE AT A o in the Group are 5 directors, whose emoluments

are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 33.

HE_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HAK=F For the years ended 31 December 2014 and
—RF+ZA=1T—RHLFE AEEH 2015, no emoluments were paid by the Group
ERAEARETMA T ERNME - 1F to the five highest individuals as inducement
REEMERAEES N INBERNEEZ K to join or upon joining the Group or as
R IERBEBREE - compensation for loss of office.
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25 BBk — FBE 25 FINANCE EXPENSES — NET

BE+t-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-hF —T—MF
2015 2014
AR®T R ARBFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
B Y Finance expenses
— RITERNF S X — Interest expense on bank borrowings
(PFi47£30) (Note 30) 99,039 96,635
p 3 ON Finance income:
— RITEFEF WA — Interest income on bank deposits
(B¥3¥30) (Note 30) (13,883) (18,385)
— EH BB A — Other finance income (1,207) (2,546)
(15,090) (20,931)
BA TSR AN SR Net finance expenses 83,949 75,704
26 EH—REEQTER 26 SHARE OF PROFIT OF A JOINT VENTURE

BET-A=t-HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—F-HF —T-mF

2015 2014

ARET T ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

FEAE A (BT =E10) Share of profit (Note 10) 33,453 28,354
HEERRAREETHER Movement of elimination of unrealised

REHEIEED profits for sales from Nanpu to the Group (1,370) 1,382

32,083 29,736
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27 FB

BB

27

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

BZE+t-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-RfE —ZT—NF

2015 2014

ARET T ARETFT

RMB'000 RMB'000

BIERRTISHL Current income tax 118,159 110,284

NEIEEEEBSHER Adjustments in respect of prior year’ s

annual tax filing 1,502 (2,705)

EEFTE R (MisE21) Deferred income tax (Note 21) 6,515 6,218

IS Tiib Income tax expense 126,176 113,797
(i) BASEEFNEH (i) Ccayman Islands profits tax

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

RAGEABNENFEFSFEHH
18 o

REA#ERBESTEHN
REXBEBREE(BERERERRDE)
ERBER R SEMAZOMERR
EREBMEBER B BMEN

BFERNEHR
BANEHIIE G R 232 16.5%
B R EHR A -

Bl b 3 T 15 Bt
REBHBEBRBAR AR - &P B
KB ARENEEERN - WHET
BARRIRRAFHAKZIAR ETT
HER FEEEAEHILEERSE
Bl o REBKFEARKMBEEEMEN
) ([EERBBLD  MAERLUNER
M RAERBMER RS —H25% -

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

The Company is not subject to any taxation of
the Cayman Islands income tax.

British Virgin Islands profits tax

The subsidiary incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands under the International Business
Companies Acts of the British Virgin Islands is
exempted from payment of the British Virgin
Islands income tax.

Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at
the rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits.

PRC Corporate income tax

The Corporate income tax (“CIT") is calculated
based on the statutory profit of subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC in accordance with the
PRC tax laws and regulations, after adjustments
on certain income and expense items, which
are not assessable or deductible for income tax
purposes. Pursuant to the PRC Corporate
Income Tax Law (“the CIT Law"), the CIT is
unified at 25% for all type of entities.
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27 FiSWiBAR (&) 27 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
(v) HEFEHFEHR (v) PRC withholding income tax
BIREZERETERFEBEARELEET D Pursuant to the CIT Law and tax treaty between
TRISIEAY - 72 B R B X 37 /O BB A B ) Mainland China and Hong Kong, a 5%
FATIRAIL S FEEUL 5% K TEFIFL withholding tax will be levied on the dividends

declared from the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the Mainland China to Hong Kong.

7R = B & 74 A1 S ) 2B 4 40 O B 1B A RBI R The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs
HKEEE SR E AR MNEF R X from the theoretical amount that would arise
STEMNERSENAT using the weighted average tax rate applicable

to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

BE+t-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

T —T-mF
2015 2014
AR®T R ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
BR RSB AT & A Profit before income tax 492,484 471,078
RABE R HE BB A= Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to
FERHE profits in the respective countries 123,121 116,470
e Adjusted by:
TAHRHREBERNRX Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 845 1,020
FRBAREEHERFE Tax holiday and preferential tax treatment - (610)
ARRELREHEENHEESE Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was
recognised 3,213 2,052
REAREEIMNGE EEEEFITEIR  Withholding tax on the profits attributable to the
investors outside of China Mainland 5,517 5,235
EiEBEDR R—REEARN Share of profits of associates and a joint venture,
SHHB L RT] which are not subject to tax (8,022) (7,665)
NHEEEEFAZE Adjustments in respect of prior year's annual tax filing 1,502 (2,705)
FEHiAX Income tax expenses 126,176 113,797

184 =EEEERARAT « Tenwow International Holdings Limited



B IS SRR MY EE

Notes to the Financial Statements
BE-F-HEF+-A=t+-BLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

28 ERER 28 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(@) EX (a) Basic

BEt-A=t-ALEE
Year ended 31 December

—Z-1fF —T-mE
2015 2014
AARERFEE AEIGLH Net profit attributable to the equity holders of the
(AREFL) Company (RMB'000) 350,809 345,335
EETEERERERRTIN Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
IEFE 8 (FR) issue for basic earnings per share (thousands) 2,073,612 2,073,612
FRERBH(ARED) Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) 16.92 16.65
BRERBRIIZARFERTEE AR Basic earnings per share is calculated by
MERGRAEE—E—RAFER -T2 dividing the net profit attributable to the
FH+_A=THIEFEEEHTLBER Company’s equity holders by the weighted
RO INEFIOEGTE - average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year ended 31 December 2015 and
2014.
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28 BRER (&) 28 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
(b) #8 (b) Diluted

BE+t-A=t-HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—2-IF b Suks
2015 2014

RRARIERFFE ARG AR Net profits attributable to the equity
(AR®ETIT) holders of the Company (RMB’000) 350,809 345,335

BERTTARSHREREND Weighted average number of ordinary

METHE(FR) shares in issue for basic earnings
per share (thousands) 2,073,612 2,073,612
SRR RS (TR Adjusted for share options (thousands) 8,374 13,662

BT RRERESRTN Weighted average number of ordinary

InETEHE (FR) shares for diluted earnings per

share (thousands) 2,081,986 2,087,274
FREERN(ARESD) Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) 16.85 16.54
SRS ERNBEA R BENEEY Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
ERW H % 0 BRI @R R pnE adjusting the weighted average number of
EHREEETE o AR TR E#SE B LE ordinary shares outstanding to assume
P& e BRMEZRRK o $TREAME - IRIRARITEEH conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
BN REENEEEE  BTIRAA shares. The Company’s dilutive potential
BH(BETALRATBROHNELEETE) ordinary shares comprised share options. For
ATEARRMDEE - A EFAFERR the share options, a calculation is done to
DEE - EERRBRETEMEDZITHR determine the number of shares that could have
MDEEELR ELE © been acquired at fair value (determined as the

average annual market share price of the
company’s shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of
shares calculated as above is compared with
the number of shares that would have been
issued assuming the exercise of the share
options.
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29

BE

R-Z—RAFITMHRE A AR 114,181,000
T(ZZE—MNF : ARME122,154,0007T) - BIF
HE_ZT-NE+ - A=t+—HI-FERHK
BARY66,391,000T * KB IE—F—FAEN
A=Z+BLERBEAT+HREMNARE
47,790,0007T » RENERITHIREAFAE L -
T s~ maeEL - A=+ —H b
FEERE RIS A 1.0478 0 B R B 8 &A% 3.41
AL A $£92,2200008 T(HE R ARK
74,993,000 7T) © ZN B 75 ¥R 2% 3 oK = B 5% R HR AR
B -HE-_T—HF+_A=+—HILFEE
HERBAEREIRT716BI(ZZE—UF : 6,347
fill) »

FEARE BB AR A% 2.71 1L

29 DIVIDENDS

The dividends paid in 2015 were RMB114,181,000
(2014: RMB122,154,000), including a final dividend of
RMB66,391,000 in relation to the profits for the year
ended 31 December 2014 and interim dividends
amounting to RMB47,790,000 in relation to the profits
for the six months ended 30 June 2015. A special
dividend of HK$1.04 per share in addition to a final
dividend of HK$3.41 per share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2015, amounting to a total
dividend of HK$92,220,000 (equivalent to
RMB74,993,000), is to be proposed at the Company'’s
forthcoming annual general meeting on 18 May 2016.
These financial statements do not reflect this final
dividend payable. Total proposed dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2015 is HK$7.16 cents per
share (2014: HK$6.34 cents).

BE+t-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—_E-—FF

- S f2
2015 2014
ARMT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000

Interim dividend paid of HK$2.71 cents

(ZF—m%F : 2.287%(l) (2014: HK$2.28 cents) per ordinary share 47,790 36,973
EHEAHREERLERI41EN  Proposed final dividend of HK$3.41 cents
(ZZ—UF : 4.067l) (2014: HK$4.06 cents) per ordinary share 57,453 66,628
BAERIRE SR EEIL1.0451  Proposed special dividend of HK$1.04 cents
(ZZ U5 : |®) (2014: Nil) per ordinary share 17,540 -
122,783 103,601
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30 RETHELENRE 30 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

BE+t-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-EHF —ZT—F
2015 2014
AR®T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BR PRAS T A& A Profit before income tax 492,484 471,078
IR Adjustments for:
—HE(Mizxe) — Depreciation (Note 6) 62,486 51,495
— 85 (P57 ]2 8) — Amortisation (Notes 7 and 8) 3,741 2,286
— HEWE  BERH — (Gains)/losses on disposal of property,
(Mezs) /BB plant and equipment (68) 288
— HEHE DA e — Gain on disposal of associate 79 -
— B (P 25) — Interest income (Note 25) (13,883) (18,385)
— FE R (FFzE25) — Interest expense (Note 25) 99,039 96,635
—EEBERR R —KAEEDRT — Share of profit of associates and
gl ajoint venture (33,456) (28,868)
— BWFBERFERERE — Provision for impairment of receivables
(PFfaE23) and inventory (Note 23) 966 3,881
BEESEE) Change in working capital:
—HFEOGEm), R — (Increase)/decrease in inventories (139,881) 65,610
— B 5 RE MWLM — Increase in trade and other receivables (571,675) (396,209)
— B 5 RAAMERFRIAEE M — Increase in trade and other payables 76,427 153,936
mEEHRE (RE),/MAFE Cash (outflow)/inflow from
operating activities (23,741) 401,747
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30 BRETBELENES (&) 30 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES (Continued)
NEEHEESRERA HEWE  WENEE In the consolidated cash flow statements, proceeds
FriS sk IE e 4 - from disposal of property, plant and equipment
comprise:

BEt-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

— —T—mE
2015 2014
ARBTR AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BREFEE (HE6) Net book amount (Note 6) 828 1,208
HEME - BB REER Gains/(losses) on disposal of property,
Wz (E518) plant and equipment 68 (288)
HEME « BE REEMEK Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 896 920
31 &H 31 COMMITMENTS
(@) BEAREFE (@) Capital commitments
REEEBETHNEMAEENE R Capital expenditure contracted for at each
XEAE ¢ balance sheet date but not yet incurred is as
follows:

R+t=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—®2-IfF —FOF

2015 2014
AR®T R ANRETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

TR - YA - BB RER Land use rights, property,
plant and equipment 189,350 374,685
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HE-_ZT-—FRF+-_A=+—BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

31 A& (E)

(b) KeEHEERE — ASENERES
AFEA
AEBBEB T REASREEEET -
BEZETARMESHE  AEBKE
SEREFELENT :

31 COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments — the
Group’s entities as lessee
The Group lease buildings under non-
cancellable lease agreements. The Group’s
future aggregate minimum lease payments
under these non-cancellable operating leases
were as follows:

BEt-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-EF —ZT—F

2015 2014

AR®T T ARET T

RMB’'000 RMB’000

B 1 F No later than 1 year 23,700 7,117
1EA EET@BBSF Later than 1 year and no later

than 5 years 18,471 8,898

42,171 16,015

32 BBARS
M—TAENEREMEEGZ T KREE
HlR—AREFL B REERRE S — TR
EMERTE  AIETHRARRE RN - e
T RARES] - TR SA PR T -

BRARESEREIN UTABEE-_T—HF
k—E—RF+_A=t+—BLFEAREEHR
HUABMAR —REKBEFMETEARIN
BME  AERR=ZZ—NEE=_FT—hF+=A
=+ BB RSHELRNLER -

190 =<EEEERARAT e« Tenwow International Holdings Limited

32 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has
the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other
party, has joint control over the party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operation decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to
common control.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the
following is a summary of the significant transactions
carried out between the Group and its related parties
in the ordinary course of business during the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2015, and balances
arising from related party transactions as at 31
December 2014 and 2015.
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BE-_ZT—hAF+=-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

32 EBAXRS (&)
(@) #E#%EEESNVER

ZERRR
MEERLE

)

MEBERENZEFRFX
BEPRL T RERMNEFR LT

(i)

FTEEEAE
THERELE

(iii)

ARBOBE R
LERER

(iv)

rEENE
R

N

(v)

(vi) FEZERRRZES

EBREARERAT]

MR (BB RERRAR
(vii) EMEBRERENE FIEH
EERXHRMERAT"

=

>
pul

AER=ZT-—AF+—AHET
e RZE-—AF+_R=1—
C R AT BRAAEEBERT

m W

32 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(@) Name and relationship with related
parties

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(V)

(vi)

(vii)

Controlling Shareholder
Mr. Lin Jianhua

Wife and children of Mr. Lin Jianhua
Ms. Yan Yuzheng, Mr. Lin Qi, Ms. Lin Liping

Key management personnel
Mr. Wang Juewei

Associates of the Group
Shanghai Daoxiangcun

Joint venture of the Group
Nanpu

Controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder

Shanghai Tiansheng Warehouse Co., Ltd.
Nan Pu (Hong Kong) Investments Limited

Controlled by the wife of Mr. Lin
Jianhua
Shanghai Tianpu Food Co., Ltd.”

* The company is no longer a related party of
the Group as at 31 December 2015 as it has
been disposed to a third party in November
2015.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

32 BBARS (®)

(b) T3R5 M ERE AT

)

HEmm R RE

32 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(b) The following transactions were
carried out with related parties:
(i) Sales of goods and services

BEt-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-RfF

—T-ImF
2015 2014
ARMT R ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000

SHE R m Sales of goods:

—EH — Nanpu 1,441,106 1,378,799
— EERBERGBERAHR — Shanghai Tianpu Food Co., Ltd. 120 260
1,441,226 1,379,059

R HRS Provision of warehousing services
—EA — Nanpu 762 1,733
— EERBRBERAR — Shanghai Tianpu Food Co., Ltd. - 120
762 1,853
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32 BHMARS (®) 32 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(b) THXZHEEEAET  (8) (b) The following transactions were
carried out with related parties
(Continued):
(i) BEERRREE (ii) Purchases of goods and services

BE+t-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—B-5F —T-mF
2015 2014
AR®T R ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
BEEm Purchase of goods
— B — Nanpu 835,903 789,811
— EEBRBREMBRAR — Shanghai Tianpu Food Co., Ltd. 74,069 59,556
— EERBARERAR — Shanghai Tiansheng
Warehouse Co., Ltd. 9 434
909,981 849,801
BXRHERYRRE - Receipts of warehousing and
logistics services:
— MEELE — Mr. Lin Jianhua 720 720
— LERBERERAR — Shanghai Tiansheng
Warehouse Co., Ltd. - 539
720 1,259
Pt ETHNE B R S5 iR The above sale and purchase transactions
B BEHERERBISETT o with related parties are carried out based

on mutually agreed prices between
respective parties.
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32 BBAIRS (H®) 32 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(c) EAEEAL#&EER (c) Balances with related parties
R+=A=+-—-H
As at 31 December
—E-EHF —T—MF
2015 2014
ARET T ARETTT
RMB'000 RMB’000
() EBHEWZIE (i)  Trade receivables:
—EH — Nanpu 777,714 610,588
— EERBRBERAF — Shanghai Tianpu
Food Co., Ltd. - 59,014
777,714 669,602
(i)  EfEYREE : @iy  Other receivables:
—EA — Nanpu 7,211 1,161
(i) EBEHEFFIE: (i)  Trade payables:
—FE — Nanpu 104,424 174,521
— FERBERERAR — Shanghai Tiansheng
Warehouse Co., Ltd. 11 -
— LEREEN — Shanghai Daoxiangcun - 108
104,435 174,629
(iv)  E (s Baes 5 508 - (iv)  Other payables to related parties:
— B8 — Nanpu 2,956 1,139
ELAh 6 U5 78 ek 5 KT 3 2 48 E UK A B Other receivables from related parties mainly
MEEE - EME S REE 2R represented rental fees due from the related
BT AAREETNRAE o parties. Other payables to related parties mainly

represented the expenses paid by the related
parties on behalf of the Group.
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32 BHMARS (®) 32 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(d) TEEBEASHM (d) Key management compensation
TESTEASBEEE (BT RIEHTIT) Key management includes Directors (executive
LERERRE - EERBEN MERE and non-executive) and senior management.
EEIE A BRI R The compensation paid or payable to key

management for employee services is shown
below:

Rt=A=t+-H
As at 31 December
—E-EfF —ZT—F

2015 2014

ARBT T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000

TEKHEMESREH Salaries and other employee benefits 4,037 3,817
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33 EEEMRA=E 33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS
BE_Z-—HAFT_A=1T—HILFE - £& The remuneration of each director of the Company
B2 ENAATSESTNHEMEHINGOT : paid/payable by the Group for year ended 31

December 2015 are set out as follows:
BEEHR Name of Director

BRARRER
HER  RAREGE
E2c) A Other  Pre-IPO share @t

Salary Bonus benefits award scheme Total
ARETT ARET T ARETT ARET T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

BITES Executive Directors
WEERE() Mr. Lin Jianhua (i) 550 - 15 - 565
BRSEE Mr. Yeung Yue Ming 538 - 1 66 615
THERE Mr. Wang Juewei 479 - 67 66 612
WEEE Mr. Lam Hang Boris 809 - 15 164 988
EEfELT Ms. Au Lai Hang 619 - 15 66 7
FHTES Non-executive Director
B+ 2 (i) Ms. Chen Shiyou (i - - - - -
BUFHTES Independent non-executive

Directors
BERAE Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong 244 - - - 244
TRREL Mr. Wang Longgen 244 - - - 24
REERE Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren 244 - - - 244

3,799 - 123 362 4,284
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33 EEwEMRF=EE) 33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)
HE_Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE K& The remuneration of each director of the Company
BEEN/TENAARSESHHMEIT paid/payable by the Group for year ended 31

December 2014 are set out as follows:

EEHE Name of Director
BRAREER
e aE]
e Pzl Hi#87  Pre-IPO share EEE)
Salary Bonus  Other benefits  award scheme Total
AEETT  ARETRT ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BITES Executive Directors
WEERA() Mr.Lin Jianhua (i 184 - 13 - 497
BRSEE Mr. Yeung Yue Ming 529 - 10 14 653
THERE Mr. Wang Juewei 442 - 63 114 619
MELE Mr. Lam Hang Boris 655 - 13 285 953
EEELT Ms. Au Lal Hang 655 - 13 114 782
FHTES Non-executive Director
B+ s (i) Ms. Chen Shiyou (i) - - - - -
BUFHTES Independent non-executive
Directors
ol e Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong 236 - - - 236
THEREE Mr. Wang Longgen 236 - - - 236
REELE Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren 236 - - - 236
3473 - 112 627 4212
0} ZEEAASENREAER EBREEFERA AL (i) The director received emoluments from both the Group and
Bk 7 R B & - AR 3B B AR F A AR A AR ML) AR 7S the related parties, Nanpu and Shanghai Tiansheng
B - ARESZREMARE KRR 5 FriR AR Warehouse Co., Ltd., part of which are in relation to their
A BeRRTESl S - S B E o # - services to the Company. No apportionment has been made
in respect of emoluments from related parties as the director
considers that it is impractical to apportion the amount
between his services to the Company and his service to the
related parties.
(ii) BHE_T—AF+-A=+—BE=Z—WF+=A (ii) No emolument was paid to non-executive Director for the
=+—HIEFE  SEFTHS TIERTES - year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.
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HE-_T—RAF+-_A=1t—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

33 EERARAE @)

HE_ZT-AF+_A=+—HR-Z—MNF
TZA=T—HIEFE  BEEEEASEK
RERME - ERREMBEREBE KR IMNER
SEENRESIEABBRAE UEREENE
FEEREEAME -

34 FRAREE
RZE—NFR-_T—AF+_A=+—H "
AEBNEENERFEINAARKE
1,229,000 7t & A = #1,110,000 7T 9 & F £t
ERERE - ANEBERERBEEZS L ERR
BERESGTER MBERZEANSBEEER
DA FETE - WTEREE M BEHRERAEL
B -
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33

34

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no
directors received emoluments from the Group as
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. No directors waived
or had agreed to waive any emoluments.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014 and 2015, the Group is still in
the process of renewing certificates for certain land
use rights with net book value amounting to
RMB1,229,000 and RMB1,110,000 respectively. The
Group might incur certain obligations in connection
with such application of land use right certificates,
while since the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability, no provision was
made in the consolidated financial statements.



B IS SRR MY EE

Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_Z-—-AF+-A=+—HLLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

35

AKPNREEEBRERBESRD 35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

R+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-hF —E—OF
2015 2014
AR¥ET AREEFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
R—KMBRAIMNEE Investments in a subsidiary 572,312 572,312
FIEBARNER Loan to subsidiaries 1,377,024 1,299,013
1,949,336 1,871,325
REBEE Current assets
m—REKTE A RN ER Loan to a subsidiary 143,268 257,449
o fE U IR Other receivables 86 16
HERESZEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,031 4,698
145,385 262,163
BEHAE Total assets 2,094,721 2,133,488
R EQUITY
f& s Share capital 164,634 164,634
fE A B Share premium 1,149,151 1,263,332
Hitfd Other reserves (B &E
(Note 648,414 561,745
25TEE Accumulated losses (P
(Note (36,623) (29,076)
FESAAEE Total equity 1,925,576 1,960,635
REBEE Current liabilities
B Borrowings 115,304 123,142
R EENGIE S Amount due to subsidiaries 53,841 49,711
=Rt to| Total liabilities 169,145 172,853
kB EEE Total equity and liabilities 2,094,721 2,133,488
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35 AAREEEERRFZEEEE () 35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
3% (@) AR R EEEE Note(a) Reserve movement of the Company
Hit e
Other Reserves
BRABEA
INEINEREE ROZBTE
ZitER ;&S currency Pre-IPO
Accumulated Capital  translation share award @st
losses reserve reserve scheme Total
AREFTT ARETT AREFTT ARBTFT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
N-ZE-—NE—-H—AH At 1 January 2014 (21,569) 572,312 (20,045) 1,893 554,160
& B RiEsT2 Employee share options
scheme - - - 2,588 2,588
FEER Loss for the year (7,507) - - = =
SNETE =R Currency translation
differences - - 4,997 - 4,997
R=—Z—NF At 31 December 2014
+=BA=+—H (29,076) 572,312 (15,048) 4,481 561,745
R=-ZE—HE—H—H At 1 January 2015 (29,076) 572,312 (15,048) 4,481 561,745
& BT Employee share options
scheme - - - 1,421 1,421
FEEE Loss for the year (7,547) - - - -
INETEERE Currency translation
differences - - 85,248 - 85,248
R=-B—HEF At 31 December 2015
+=A=+—8 (36,623) 572,312 70,200 5,902 648,414
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36 FEMBATMNFE 36 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES
N-_E—hRER-_ZE—NE+_A=+—8H " Particulars of the principal subsidiaries comprising the
AEBETEZWBARGERAT : Group as at 31 December 2014 and 2015 are as
follows:
FiRERERB AN
B4 /EMER Effective interests held %
(Fr) “2-1% —E-mE
INGES COuntry/PIace of Registered capital/ T=A=1-A TZA=+-B E&E
Company name incorporation paid up ('000) 31December 2015  31December 2014 Principal activities
ERHA
Directly Owned:
REERAR KRERES = 100 100 ERBERHFSREARR
Praise Sheen Limited BVI Investment holding in BVI
RIRES :
Indirectly Owned:
BAERERERAR(BALR) Bk 68,0007 100 10 FEESHRRERHARRE
Nanpu International Limited (Hong Kong Company) ~ HK HK$68,000 Distribution of food and beverages
and Investment in HK
HERERT(RE)ERAR e 90,0004 100 100 ERESERAHRMEHRE
Shanghai Tenwow Foods (Group) Co,, Ltd. PRC HK$990,000 Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC
AR L REMEARAR e AR 25,0007 66.65 6665 ARESERAHRBELH
Shanghai Dingshang Packing Material Co., Ltd. PRC RMB25,000 Manufacturing and distrioution of
food and beverages in PRC
EERESHRARAR e ARE20007T 52.5 525 FERESERS ERAERH
Shanghai Tenwow Paper Products Co., Ltd. PRC RMB2,000 Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC
AMIEEERERAA e ARES0,0007 100 100 FEREEERGENH
Shenzhen Nanpu Industrial Co., Ltd. PRC RMB50,000 Trading of food and beverages in PRC
HETHERMEREEAT e ARET60007C 100 100 FEREEERRESH
Wuhan Nanpu Co., Ltd. PRC RMB76,000 Trading of food and beverages in PRC
LBRERMEERRAH i ARE1,0007 95 %5 EHEHERAHRDERH
Shanghai Tenwow Food Production Co., Ltd. PRC RMB1,000 Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC
AR RERRBRAR e ARE130007 65.5 655 ERERERAHRRAGH
Shanghai Mornflake Food Co., Ltd. PRC RMB13,000 Manufacturing and distribution of

food and beverages in PRC
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36 FEMEATNFE B 36 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
MN-_E—RER_ZE—NE+_A=+—H" Particulars of the principal subsidiaries comprising the
AEBETEEZWBARGENAT : (&) Group as at 31 December 2014 and 2015 are as

follows: (Continued)

FisERERB AL
AR 24/ EmEA Effective interests held %
Bx/ % (f7) It %3 —F-mE

INGES Country/Place of Registered capital/ t-A=1-R T-A=+-B EiE

Company name incorporation paid up (000) 31 December2015  31December 2014  Principal activities

REHR

Indirectly Owned:

RE(RZE)READ e ARE30,0007 100 100 ERERERHHRMERH

Tenwow (Inner Mongoha) Food Co., Ltd. PRC RMB30,000 Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC

RE(BR)RAAD HE ARE100,00070 100 100 #EFERERSHRAEMRR

Tenwow (Fujian) Food Co., Ltd. PRC RMB100,000 Manufacturing and distrioution of
food and beverages in PRC

HAERBEERAR e ARE12,0007T 51 5 EPEIRERAHRTERE

Shanghai Royal Winery Co., Ltd. PRC RMB12,000 Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC

BEREFEARARAR e ARE15,0007 100 100 ERERERAHRMERE

Fujian Tenwow Drinks Co., Ltd. PRC RMB15,000 Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC

HEREEEARAR el AR 130,0007C 100 100 EREEERREHRH

Shanghai Tiansheng Wines and Spirits Co., Ltd. PRC RMB130,000 Trading of food and beverages in PRC

LB RAAD e ARE1,3507 75 15 ERESERAHRRELH

Shanghai Chuanxiang FIavourmg and Food Co,, Ltd. ~ PRC RMB1,350 Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC

EBIfRRED e ARES007 75 75 ERESERD HRMERH

Shanghai Chuanxmng Food Factory PRC RMBB00 Manufacturing and distrioution of
food and beverages in PRC

HAERERERAR e ARE10,0007T 100 10 ZEREEERmERH

Shanghai Royal Wines and Spirits Co., Ltd. PRC RMB10,000 Trading of food and beverages in PRC

BEREMAERAR e ARES,0007T 100 100 ERERERERRERRE

Fujian Tiansheng Logistics Co., Ltd. PRC RMBS,000 Warehousing and logistics
distribution services in PRC

ERTEREXHEERAT e AR 2500070 100 100 ARREERREHRH

Ningbo Contemporary Trading Co., Ltd. PRC RMB25,000 Trading of food and beverages in PRC
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36 FEMEATNFEE) 36 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
N-_E—hRER-_ZE—NE+_A=+—8H " Particulars of the principal subsidiaries comprising the
AEBETEZWBARGFENT : (&) Group as at 31 December 2014 and 2015 are as

follows: (Continued)

FiRERBRAA
MR 24 /EmER Effective interests held %
Bx/ 1% (fx) —§-%f “I-|E

AR Country/Place of Registered capitall  +=A=+-H T-A=+-B ZEiR

Company name incorporation paid up (000) 31December2015  31December 2014  Principal activities

A -

Indirectly Owned:

MNHRBRARAR HE ARE15,0007 60 0 EREEERBERE

Hangzhou Lin's Wines and Spirits Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB15,000 Trading of food and beverages in PRC

ERERBEERAR HE ARE120,0007 100 100 EHEIEERRELRH

Shanghai Huasheng Wines and Spirits Co., Ltd. PRC RMB120,000 Trading of food and beverages in PRC

RS LORMHERAR HE ARK5,0007T 725 725 EREISERS HRGEKH

Putian Dingshang Packing Material Co., Ltd. PRC RMBS5,000 Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC

RE(RE) RARAR HE AR 2200007 100 100 FRESERD HE mERE

Tenwow (Wuhan) Food Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB220,000 Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC

EERERESHARAR HE ARE 336007 100 100 EREISERAHHRRENE

Shanghai Tenwow Drinks Co., Ltd. PRC RMB33,600 Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC

RERBAERHARAA GilEi ARE 1500070 100 00 ERERERSHREEHH

Wuhan Tenwow Drinks Co., Ltd. PRC RMB15,000 Manufacturing and distrioution of
food and beverages in PRC

EETMAERRARAR HE ARE10,0007 100 100 ERBZERAHRRERE

Tenwow (Chongging) Food Co., Ltd. PRC RMB10,000 Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC

ERTRERREREEAT HE ARES0T 100 100 FREEERMERH

Xiangyang Nanpu Co., Ltd. PRC RMB500 Trading of food and beverages in PRC

RE (&) RmARAR HE 31,8007 100 100 FRESERD HE mERE

Tenwow (Chengdu) Food Co, Ltd. PRC US$31,800 Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC

BRAEEXERAA HE AR 2000007 100 100 ERREERGRESH

Fujian Tenwow Shiye Co., Ltd. PRC RMB200,000 Trading of food and beverages in PRC
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36 FEMEATNFE B 36 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
MN-_E—RER_ZE—NE+_A=+—H" Particulars of the principal subsidiaries comprising the
AEBETEEZWBARGENAT : (&) Group as at 31 December 2014 and 2015 are as

follows: (Continued)

FRERERB AL
EMRL B4 /Fmas Effective interests held %
%/ 1% (fr) “E-1f
IGES Country/Place of Registered capital/ t-A=1-R TEEE
Company name incorporation paid up (‘'000) 31 December 2015 Principal activities
REHR
Indirectly Owned:
RE(RE)RRARAR e ARE100007 100 100 ERERERHHRMERH
Tenwow (Tianjin) Food Co., Ltd. PRC RMB10,000 Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC
RAGEDFERAR e ARE91,0007T 100 100 ZEHERZERAHREERE
Changxinxian Jinshaguan Co., Ltd. PRC RMB91,000 Manufacturing and distrioution of
food and beverages in PRC
HRREERARAR & 20,0007 100 10 ZEEAEERMERH
Nanpu Fine Wine&Spirits International Company Limited HK HK$20,000 Trading of food and beverages in HK
WARERAEE HERAR e ARE30,0007T 100 100 APEZERAHRBERH
Shanxi Tenwow Kanghongda trading Co., Ltd. PRC RMB30,000 Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC
REREHRERARAR & 1087 100 100 #EEEEERMEHH
Tenwow Beverage International Company Limited HK HK$10 Tradling of food and beverages in HK
AERREE(LE) EHARA kG AR 200,007 100 00 AREAERGEHRH
Tenwow Food Group (Shanghal) Sale Co., Ltd. PRC RMB200,000 Distribution of food and beverages in PRC
RARERESHBRAA e - 100 - EPESERAHRRELH
Chengdu Tenwow Drinks Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC
RE(AR)RRERAR e = 100 - ERESHERRERE
Tenwow (Tai Yuan) Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Distribution of food and beverages in PRC
SEDAVNGIE: 3 e A G 2 R i =R 1 A W A The English names of the PRC companies referred to
REMPBEARBEXEEAEEEHLEEAR above in this Note represent management’s best
AP XX AR R ERE - efforts in translating the Chinese names of those
companies as no English names have been registered
or available.
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